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WE DO THING
DIFFERENTLY

Ovur aim is simple - to be the UK'’s leading

IT infrastructure provider in terms of employee
engagement, customer satisfaction and
financial performance.

We live by our values and believe that a few simple
truths about our business set us apart. They have
helped us achieve 96% employee engagement,
99% customer satisfaction and 44 consecutive
quarters of organic revenue and profit growth.

Come in; let us show you around. We are passionate
about what we do.
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Gross profit £m Adjusted operating profit £m

16 | 1207 | 16 | 463 | » Gross profit growth 17%

15 | 1028 | 15 | 406 | . Adjusted operating profit growth 15%

14 | 885 | " | 355 | . Cash conversion 85%

13 705 13 281 « New office opened in Glasgow

12 563 12 232 » Growth achieved across all business
lines and offices

Customer numbers ‘000 Gross profit per customer £°000 - Employee engagement $6%

16 | 122 | 16 | 99 | « Customer satisfaction 99%

15 | n4 | 15 | 90 |

" | 107 | 14 | 83 |

13 | 98 | 3| 72 |

) T o

See page 21 for more information on our KPls
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What we do

WE ARE
A RESELLER

In an industry where many are moving away from the

99%

customer satisfaction rating

word ‘reseller’, we actively embrace it. Reselling is what

we do (and we are very good at it too).

We believe there will always be a need to sell IT to
businesses and organisations, so we have made it
our mission to fill that need better than anyone else.

OUR OFFERING

We provide corporate and public sector erganisations with software
licensing, workplace technology, datacentre infrastructure,
networking and security

We do not develop bespoke applications or specialise in any
industry-specific verticat application but can partner with third-party
organisations for these requirements Our focus 15 on providing the IT
infrastructure and services to keep these applications performing,
highly available and secure

Networking Datacentre
and secunity mfrastructure
Software Workplace
licensing
100%
The Sunday Times
UK FOCUSED Top Track
AWARD-WINNING SERVICE

So how are we doing with our mission
to be the UK’s best IT reseller?
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OUR TEAM

We have a people-centric culture that enables us to delver
outstanding customer service We believe that If peopie enjoy
what they do they will do it better

GREAT PLACE TO WORK GREAT PLACE TO WORK

UK's Best Large Workplaces 1st Most Trusted Leadership
206 2016

GREAT PLACE TO WORK GREAT PLACE TO WORK

Laureate Award 5th Best Workplace in Europe
2016 2016
EMPLOYEES AS AT 31JULY 2016
MIMECAST VMWARE

Premier Partner of the Year 2016 European Solution Provider

Partner of the Year 2016




Leading IT infrastructure

yoda1 nfiaens

provider for UK small
and medium-sized
organisations Market-leading

OUR VENDORS

We work with over 200 different hardware and software vendors to
bring the best and largest range of technology to our customers as
well as a number of specialist service providers to complement the
services that are provided by our in-house teams

We work hard on our vendor relationships and strive 1o be the partner
of choice for each of our key vendars

200+

VENDORS
CISCo SOPHOS
Commerciat Partner Partper of the Year UK
of the Year UK&I 2016 & Ireland 2016

reputation based
on 20 years of
service excellence

OUR CUSTOMERS

We have a diverse customer base acress all sectors of the market
Traditionally we have served the small to medium-sized business
('SMB’) customer segment but over the years we've grown to also
trade with a number of 1arger orgarusations including some of the
very largest enterpnse organisations in the UK

We also enjoy 8 growing public sector business which has been
particularly successfut in health, education and local government N

SMB/mid market
Public sector

Enterprise

12,200+

CUSTOMERS
UK ENTERPRISE GROUP CANALYS EMEA
Partner of the Year 2016 Channel Partner of

the Year 2016
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Chairman’s statement

DEDICATED TO
OUR CUSTOMERS

€€ In the year of our IPO the Company
has continued to deliver strong
financial performance.

Brian Wallace, Chairman
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View our KPls on page 21

99%

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

96%

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

Throughout 2016 the Softcat team has continued to
focus on providing outstanding service to our 12 200
customers This has been the bedrock of the Company's
success since 1ts inception in 1993 and wilk continue to
be se intc the future

This has enabled us to grow revenue by 13% to £672m
{2015 £596m) and operating profit by 7% tc £42 2m
(2015 £396m) Adjusted operating profit Increased 15%
to £46 8m {2015 £40 6m}

1PO and governance

Softcat was admitted to the Lendon Stock Exchange
on 18 November 2015 and subsequently our share price
strengthened resulting in our being admitted to the
FTSE 250 on 21 March 2016 During the IPO process
many potential Investors took the time to visit our offices
and we were very gratified by ther feedback that the
visit brought to life the spint culture and differentiated
approach of Softcat which 1s hard to communicate ina
one-hour off-siie meeting We hope to welcome other
investors in the future

In reshaping the Board for the IPO we carned out a
meliculeus search process for Mon-Executwve Dsrectors
and, in Lee, Peter and Vin, | believe we have assembled
a very capable and commuitted team who bring strong
entrepreneunal, commercial, sector and public company
expernence to the table to support our executive leadership
team Most importantly they are excited by the Softcat
approach and prospects

As a Boarg we take our responsibilities very serously

to meet the expectations of our team our customers
and other stakeholders in ali aspects of our business
including governance We approach governance
positivety on the basis that it 1s not just important in its
own night but it is good for our expanding business and
provides a framework within which the spint and culture
of Softcat can contlnue to flounsh

TEAMWORK

The bedrock of Softcat’s success

Hodas 6ajess

Our greatest asset - the Softcat team

On behzlf of the Board, | would Iike to pay tnbute to the
entire Seftcat team so ably ied by Martin Like the best
sports teams Softcat benefits from having many leaders
throughout the business We have opened a new office
1n Glasgow and the team now numbers 827 (2015 794)
tn a year when the IPO could have been a distraction
they have carned on relentlessly, doing what they do
best — serving customers It was very pleasing that
Softcat took ist place in the Great Place to Work
Instilute’s Best Place to Work award category in

the UK and placed 5th in Euvrope

Dividend

On the hasis that the Company has sufficient distributable
reserves at the ime the Board intends to operate a dividend
pelicy which targets an annual dvidend of between 40%
and 50% of the Company’s profits after tax in each financial
year before any exceptional items Subject to any cash
requirements for ongoing investment, the Board wall consider
returming excess cash to shareholders over time The Board
may revise the Company's dwdend policy from time to time

The Board recommends a final dividend cf 3 6p per
ordinary share and a special dwvidend of 14 2p per ordinary
share ta be paid on 16 December 2016 to all ordinary
shareholders who were on the register of members &t the
¢lose of business on 18 November 2016 Shareholders will
be asked tc approve the finat and special dividends at
the AGM an 8 December 2016

Looking forward

Our marketplace s highly competitive and following the
EU referendum the business environment 15 uncertamn
However, the Board believes the Company 1s well placed
to grow its market share tn 2017 and will maintain its focus
on delivertng profitable growth and strong cash conversion

Brian Wallace
Chairman
19 Qctober 2016
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Chief Executive’s statement

WE ARE A RESELLER
AND PROUD OF THAT

€6 It's been an excellent year. Business
performance has been strong.

Martin Hellawell, Chief Executive Officer
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View our KPis on page 21

12,200+

CUSTOMERS

£9.9k

GP PER CUSTOMER

QA

wrth Martin Hellawell

In summary, how has

the year been for you?

It's been an excelient year Business performance
has been strong and the Company has continued
to show good growth and has executed well on our
strateqic objectives

The Company went public in November
2015 - tell us about that experience
While there was a lot of work involved in taking the
Company public, 1t was actually a very straightforward
process We were fortunate with the timing, the market
was very much cpen for IPOs when we launched

We were pleased with the reception we received from
investors and the resulung supportive shareholder
base we now have in Softcat

We tried very hard not to let the process distract employees
or affect the way we run the business and i think we
succeeded In achieving those objectives

How well have you executed against
your business mode! this year?

Most things about Softcat are simple and that includes
the business model We continue to grow the business
and to do that we need more people For the business
to succeed we need very special peopte people who
have a strong work ethic and are passionate, resiient
and real team players They ate very difficult people to
find and we spend an inordinate amount of time scouning
the market for great talent to join cur organisation A let
of new team members join us straight from uruversity or
at an early stage of thewr career, that model has served
us well

To satisfy the future growth ambitions of the Company
we have pushed the recruitment accelerator this year
and increased headcount from 794 to 927

The second strand of our business model 1s to stnve to
be a great place to work for Softcat people We want our
employees to be fully engaged with our Company and
motwvated to give therr all and we want their contribution
to be recognised and rewarded Softcat 1s well known
for its vibrant culture and I'm sure this has always been
absolutely key to our success We are far from perfect
and ensuring we are constantly evolving with an ever
larger and geographicalty more disparate workforce

15 @ huge challenge, but one that is very much at the
forefront of our minds

The teadership of the organisation has a pivotal role to play
i this, but | think this works because all our employees
accept and share the responsibility of making Softeat

the best possible place to work | therefere thank alf our

wodal oibaeilg

employees for the fantastic accolade we receved this
year, being named as the No 1 Best Workplace in the UK
by the Great Place to Work Instiute

We believe that the result of recruiting the night people
and strving 1o be the best place to work we possibly
can be results in a highly talented, engaged and focused
team who relish in providing cutstanding serice and wall
happily go the extra mile for our customers In a flercely
competitive market, we believe that consistent quality
of service 1s absolutely paramount to our success and 1s
the key reasen behind our growth and linancial results

Again we are not perfect and stnve to continually
improve all aspects of our customer service In our
annual customer satisfaction survey, which was carned
out In June 2016, 991% of customers reported an overall
tevel of satisfaction of good or very good (2015 991%)
I'd ltke to take this opportunity to thank both cur new
and long-standing customers for their busmess and
ongoing support

Are you pleased with this year’s
financial results?

I'm sure Graham wili go through these i more detait

1n the Financial Review, 5o Fil be bnef Overall, yes,

I'm pleased We have now delivered 44 consecutive
quarters of revenue gross profit and adjusted operating
profit growth This includes bath the third and fourth quarters
of our financial year when demand from our customers
remained solid despite the distraction of the referendum
and subsequent political developments I fact the Company
grew at an even faster rate during the second half On all
three measures we delivered good double-digit growth
for the full year with revenue growth of 13%, gross profit
growth of 17% and adjusted operating profit growth of 15%

The shape of the results was shghtly different this year
Over the previous thiee to four years particutarly with
our very strong growth in public sector, we have seen
revenue growing faster than gross profit and operating
profit Thes year we saw the opposite This was partly
due to a comblnation of one-off benefils and a change
in the mix of our business

In Iine with the rest of the market we saw less demand
for the more commodity high revenue lower margin end
of our business particularly due to a slower PC market
ang stronger demand for lugher margin solutions natably
In networking and secunty, datacentre infrastructure and
IT services We believe the Company excels in these
added-value areas so the shifts in customer reguirements
largely played to our strengths and cur gross profit and
operating profit benefited accordingly

Softcat ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016 7




Chief Executive's statement continued

+17%

GROSS PROFiT GROWTH

+15%

ADJUSTED OPERATING
PROFIT GROWTH

Are you pleased with this year’s
financial results? continued

| think 1t's important to note that our public sector
business recorded another very strong year of growth
and once again exceeded our expectations This was
achieved despite us deciding not to compete at negative
margins 1o win some very large revenue flagship
software deals n the secior

We were very pleased that these results were achieved
while investing significantly in both capability and sales
power, which we will benefit from in future years

The Company maintained focus on discipined
management of working capital and delivered another
year of strong cash conversion

How well are you delivering

on your sirategic objectives?

In simple terms our strategic objective 1S to sell more
to existing customers and to win hew customers

Gross profit per customer increased 9% and we saw

an increase In the rate of new customer acquisitions
We believe we have performed well ahead of the
market and taken market share, further consohdating
our position as one of the leading value-added resellers
{"VARs') in the UK

How is the market developing and how
are you adapting to those changes?

The IT market s a fast mowving market 1t always has
been and it always will be 1 think 1it's fair to say that

the pace of change only accelerates t's very important
that we stay close to our customers and ensure we
continually evolve our cffering to meet customers
changing requirements | think that’s one of our strengths

We are extremely well placed No matter what the
technology I1s or how it Is provided, customers need to
be informed about that technology They need to know

8 Softcat ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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it’s been an excellent
year. Business
performance has been
strong and the Company
has executed well on
our strategic objectives.

what benefits it brings how it might fit into their existing
infrastructure what the technical challenges are and
how best to procure it Once they have purchased

it they need ongoing support and customer care,
leading at some point to a technology refresh or renewal
Softcat has established an enviable position in the market
with one of, f not the, largest account maragement
team addressing a very large customer base, and ofter
with a positlon of frusted adwviser status with them, which
we have earned through many years of working with them
The relevance and need for the rofe Softcat plays 1s as
strong today as ever, perhaps even more s¢ as vendors
increasingly look to the channel to serve Softcat’s core
mig-mariet customer base Customers are faced with
ncreasingly complex technology choices and need a
trusted adviser that fs easy to do business with to help
them navigate their challenges

Customer requirements are constantly evolving
Increasingly, orgamsations want the IT function to

focus less on running operations and more on providing
incremental added value driven by technology That's
easier said than done and 1s not done overnight but there s
a definte trend in that direction Cloud computing can help
organisations wiih this ambition and we are enjoying 8
conbinued nse in business from cloud-related technologies




As always the devil Is In the detall Established
organlsations are finding that moving certain critical
legacy apphcations to the public cloud is not feasible
That results in organisations moving to a hybrid
cloud environment, which in many ways further
complicates the IT estate and how 1t 1S managed
Once workloads are in the public cloud they still
need managing and supporting These new types
of infrastructure prowisian, coupled with an ever
mcreasing need for true mobiity, drive further
considerations around security, connectivity
networking, sofiware management and end-user
computing 1o name but a few The degree of help
and suppost our customers reguire 1S increasing,
not decreasing, and these are the areas in which
we can heip

Scficat 1s adapting to these changes In addition
to our reselling business which will remain a core
regurement for our customers those same customers
want us to have deeper techmical skills to help them
with their new challenges They want us to help
them manage their journey to the cloud They
want us to provide more managed and support
services to them to help provide what they need
In this new style of IT without having to do everything
themselves We are delighted to accompany our
customers on that journey

That 1s the direction we are evohang in We continue
o provide our core reseller serices and, on top
of that, we further develop the technical and other
services we provide to our customers 1o adapt

to their changing requirements

7.5%

Increase In customer numbers

Any other highlights of the year?
We were pleased (o fill up a few more shelves with
further awards The Best Workplace ones are the
ones that matter most {0 us but it was very pleasing
to be awarded Partner of the Year by two of our
close partners who also successfully IPQ'd over
the last year — Sophos and Mimecast We receved
similar awards from a number of great and interesting
technology providers such as Cisco Systems Inc
and VMware Inc and were delighted to be named
the HP Enterprise Partner of the Year shortly after
year end The support and encouragement we
have received from all our key partners this year
has been phenomenal and | would hike to take
this opportunity to thank them for that

After opening a Leeds branch the previous year
which i1s now firmly established on the Softcat map
we were defighted to finally ‘go international’ and
open up in Glasgow! We are encouraged with the
early signs from that office

And moving forward,

what's the outlook?

As usual with Softcat it will be a year of continual
development and evolution We will continue to
focus on the core business model and strategy
We are now very firmly established in the mid-market
and the public sector and will continue 1o strive

to take market share in those sectors as well as
expand further into the large account market

With the development of our apprentice scheme
we also expect {0 see Increased penetration of the
small orgamisation market

Our growth to date has been purely organic and
this will continue to be the man focus Acquisiions
while not our main focus remain a possibility and
we always keep a watchful eye on potential
opportunities i the market

Brexit brings with it chaltenges to economic confidence
which may result in less overall market growth
Whatever the impact 15, we still have a small
percentage of the market and our capacity to
grow and take market share 1s proven and that

is what we will focus on Relentlessly

Most importantly we have 10 stay very focused

on bringing the right talent into Softcat and having
the most engaged, focused and motivated team
in the market May | take this opportunity to thank
my outstanding colleagues for the fantastic work
they do, for the manner in which they do it and for
the extraordinary results they have achieved

Ut Hetlavet

Martin Hellawell
Chief Executive Officer
19 October 2016
y Y
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Our business model

DELIVERING
OUTSTANDING
CUSTOMER SERVICE
AND SATISFACTION

We keep our business light and lean and nurture an open
and vibrant company culture that motivates our employees
to deliver the best for our customers.

WE RECRUIT AND TRAIN
GREAT PEOPLE WITH
HIGH POTENTIAL

We work with universities across the country and see
thousands of candidates each year before selecting those
that are night for Softcat We look for exceptional people
with the nght attitude

6,200

APPLICATIONS

WHAT SETS US APART

@ Our people

Read more on our people
pages 12to 13
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WE INCENTIVISE AND
ENGAGE OUR PEOPLE
TO PERFORM

We strive to be a great place to work where people are
rewarded for success We are well known for ous Company
culture and beheve 1t 15 at the heart of our success

926%

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

@ Our markets and offering

Read more on our markets and offering
pages 14 to 15




Read more on our strategy
page 20

WE DELIVER
OUTSTANDING
CUSTOMER SERVICE

We seek to provide truly outstanding levels of service to our
customers and we beleve that1s a direct function of the talent we
recrult, the tralning we give them and their jevel of engagement

99%

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION
FOR SIX YEARS IN A ROW

@ Our vendor partnerships

Read more on our partrerships
pages 161017

WE WIN NEW CUSTOMERS
AND SELL MORE TO
EXISTING CUSTOMERS

We have a strong track record of devefoping new revenue
strearns and are fast to move as the market evolves Despite
OUr SUCCESS we See more oppeortunites for organic growth

Customer numbers ‘000

16 | 122 |
15 | 4 |
4 | 107 |

Gross profit per customer £000

16 | 99 |
15 | 90 |
14 | 83 |

@ Ovur customer relationships

Read more on our customer relationships
pages 1810 19

Softcat plc Annual Report &ng Accounts 2016
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@ Our people

EVERYONE IS IN THIS
TOGETHER

We don‘t believe in individual offices,
so we put all of our desks together in the
same space, reflecting the Company’s ethos

12 Safteat pic Annual Report and Accounts 2016



LOOKING
FOR THE SOFTCAT ATTITUDE

Our Company attitude is centred on three key characteristics —
respect, positivity and courtesy. We employ individuals who exude
this attitude by the bucketload and believe that this behaviour is
essential in creating a super environment to work in.

Qur company values have always been summed up in three words:

Passion

To be passionate about everything we do and to constantly go the extra mile

To get passionate staff, Soficat needs o recrint the night people with the night attitude,
creale a fantastic workplace and provide a platform where employees feel truly
engaged with the activities of the busmess and feel part of the organisation’s goals

Intelligence

Softcat has to show tntelligence in everything It does All staff need to demonstrate
high levels of emotional intelligence to respect and encourage their colleagues
We need to manage the business in a highly inteligent way to succeed over our
intense competition

We value fun m all its vanious forms We want employees to want to come to work
and enjoy it We want customers to enjoy working with Softcat Different people
have fun in different ways and we embrace that!

yodal aifajens




@ Our markets and offering

WE STRIVE FOR
EXCELLENCE

We believe we have significant
untapped growth potential

4 Softcat plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016



GROWING

TO OUR FULL POTENTIAL

The requirement for technology is stronger
than ever. All organisations continue to need
to procure IT whether physically or virtually,
on premise or in the cloud. Customers need
to manage the complexities of dealing with
multiple technology suppliers and vendors
do not have the reach or relationships to sell
directly to customers.

OFFERINGS

Datacentre infrastructure
- Flash and hybnd storage
+ Converged and hyper-converged

SOFTCAT UK
MARKET SHARE:
c.6%*

infrastructure MARKETS

« Backup and Disaster Recovery as a Service
« Pnivate, public, hybrnid and mult-cloud

Network and security

« Software-defined networking

« Cloud connectivity and secunty

- WiFi analytics

» Machine learning endpoint protection

Workplace
« 0365 migration factory and service wrap

+ End-user mobihity — VDI
and application delivery

«  Windows 10 and multi-form-factor devices
+ Managed pnint

Software licensing

- Asset management

+ Centralsed licence desk service

« Transition to cloud-based licensing
+ Vendor audit response

* Market share s estimated based upon the CRN 2015 Top 100 VARs report

Public sector
Central government
Mid-market

Service providers
SMB

Enterprise

Lower enterprise

Micro market

Softcat plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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@ Our vendor partnerships

WE MAKE THE RIGHT
CONNECTIONS

Our aim is to be the most effective reseller to work with
and we are privileged to enjoy outstanding relationships
with our vendor partners

16 Softcat plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016




MAKING
THE RIGHT PARTNERSHIPS

We are proud of the Softcat offering,

of the vendors we represent and of the

services we provide. We value our partners

unc-i take our res.ponsibiliﬁe.s extremely Partnerships with a
seriously, which is reflected in the long rtfolio of rd-cl

list of partner awards we have received portiolio o W? -class
and the close relationships we enjoy. IT suppliers

Meg Whitman, CEO of HP Enterprise Co

and Martin Hellawell Michael Deil, CEO of el Technologies

and Martin Hellawe])

Softcat plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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@ Ouvur customer relationships

WE VALUE OUR CUSTOMER
RELATIONSHIPS

When a new recrvuit joins our sales force we teach
them about technology, how to be a great team player
and, most of all, how to provide outstanding service
to our customers

18 Softcat plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016



OFFERING
THE BEST SERVICE

We are proud of the Softcat technology
offerings, but the difference really lies

in our people and the service they (§)

provide. Our staff are highly skilled 98 /o

and passionate about delivering for ;

their customers. Every time. of custamers say they value
the quahty of our advice

¢¢ As an organisation Softcat cares passionately
about two things - outstanding employee
satisfaction and world-class customer service.
We believe the former drives the latter.

Martin Hellawell, Chief Executive

o
HOW DO CUSTOMERS 9t?tA)t-|g-

RATE OUR SERVICE?

Satisfied Very satished

22.7% 76.4%

Softcat pic Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Our strategy

WE HAVE A PROVEN
GROWTH STRATEGY

We are great believers in focus and so our strategy is simple.

OUR GOAL:

To be the UK'’s leading IT infrastructure solutions provider
in terms of employee engagement, customer satisfaction

and financial performance.

SELL MORE
TO EXISTING
CUSTOMERS

We continue to expand and deepen our relationships
with existing customers We call 1t ‘turming the white
space purpie’

DEVELOP
OFFERING

We are not pioneers but continue to move fast
as technology evolves 10 meet the emerging
needs of both our customers and our partners

WIN NEW
CUSTOMERS

In 2076 we grew our customer base by 75% but
still served less than one in five of organisations
in our target market

BUILD
SCALE

From office openings, access to new graduate
talent and o enhanced service capabilities,
we will continue to lay the foundations for
future growth

OUTSTANDING CUSTOMER SERVICE

20 Softcat plc Annual Report and Accounts 216



KPis

SUMMARY RESULTS AND KPiIs

The financial and operational key performance indicators shown below
demonstrate the Company’s progress against its strategic goals and its
delivery of financial growth. These metrics and trends are referred to
throughout this report and are discussed in detail in the Financial Review

on pages 22 to 23.

FINANCIAL
Revenue £m

16 | 6724 |
5 | 5961 |
1 5048 |

Adjusted operating profit £m

16 | 468 |
15 | 406 |
4 | 35 |

Adjusted operating profit is defined
as operating profit before the impact
of exceptional items and share-based
payment charges

Gross profit £m

16 | 1207 |
5| 1028 |
" [ 885 |

Adjusted diluted eamings
per share p

16| 191 |
15 | %5 |
1 | W |

Adjusted diluted earmings per share

{ EPS"} is defined as diuted EPS before
the impact of excepiienal tems and
share-based payment charges

Gross profit margin %

16 | 180 |
15 | 172 |
14 | 175 |

Gross profit margin is defined as gross
profit as a percentage of revenue

Cash balance £m

16 | 624 |
15 | 746 |
4 377

NON-FINANCIAL

Employee engagement score %
16 | 96 |
15 | 98 |
" | 98 |

Employee engagement score 15 denved
from responses to an annual survey
of alt staff

Gross profit per

customer £000

16| 99 |
15 | 90 |
14 83 |

Gross profit per customer is defined
as gross profit divided by
customer numbers

Customer satisfaction %

16 | 99 |
15 [ %9 |
'l 99 |

Customer satisfactlon is defined as
the percentage of customers who rate
themselves as either ‘satisfred or ‘very
satisfied' 1 response to an annual
survey {possible responses also include
‘dissatisfied’ and ‘very dissatisfied’)

In 2016 the survey had 1,078
respondents (205 1,088)

Customer numbers ‘000

16 | 122 |
15 | n4 |
1 | 107 |

Custamer numbers are defined as the
total number of unique entities that
traded with Soficat dunng the pencd

Softcat pic Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Financial review

DELIVERING
SHAREHOLDER
VALUE THROUGH
ORGANIC GROWTH

€¢ 2016 was yet another year of profitable growth for Softcat.
Cash generation remains strong and the business enters the
new financial year with confidence borne of a successful track
record and strong financial position.

Graham Charlton, Chief Financial Officer
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View our KPIs on page 21

Revenue and gross profit

Soficat achieved revenue growth of 12 8% duning the year, up to £672 4m, with
gross margin also nsing to 18 0% (2015 17 2%} As a result gross profit grew
strongly up 175% to £1207m (2035 £102 8m) This includas the impact of

£3 4m non-recurnng procurement savings within cost of sales Excluding this
impact, gioss profit grew by 14 1% and gross margln was 174% and this undertying
performance reflects continued progress agalnst the Company s strategic
goals of winrming new customers and growing income from existing customers

Excluding the non-recurring savings, growth In gross profit margin was drlven
by the Company's ability to capitalise on customer demand for complex technology
solutions, such as networking and secunty software and datacenire infrastructure
This was true across all customer segments and growth was evident in both
the public sector and corporate accounts |n keeping with recent years income
from public sector customers expanded as a proportion of total revenue to
29% (2015 26%}

Revenue mix across technology categornes (software hardware and services)
was largety unchanged Services iIncome expanded shightly as a proportion

of the total from 14% to 15% mainly refleciing strong growth In the resale of
vendor service preducts as well as the expansion of the Company’s internal
services capability

Customer KPIs

Customer numbers were up 75% (2015 6 5%} reflecting the positive impact
of the acceleration in new graduate hires into the sales force duning the past
18 months

Gross profit per customer rose by 9 2%, or 6 2% when the procurement saving
impact 15 adjusted out (2015 90%) The modest reduction In underlying gross
profit per customer growth 1s expected dunng a period of high new customer
additions due to dilution in average tenure The Company typically sees close
cortelation between customer tenure {whech 1s also closely tied to sales
force tenure) and GP per customer

Revenue remains well dispersed across the customer base, with the largest
customer accounting for yust 1% of total income

Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating profit increased by 15 2% to £46 8m, including a net benefit
of £2 6m from the one-off procurement savings {after commission costs) Excluding
the one-off benefit adjusted operating profit grew by 8 9% This reflects the
rise In gross profit, partially offset by new costs of public company governance
of £11m (2015 £0 2m} Excluding both the net impact of the one-off and the
governance costs adjusted operating profit increased 110% This is a strong
result In the context of significant investments In the form of new graduate
account managers as well as services and techmical staff

Adjusted operating profit margin of 70% (2015 6 8%) was up slightly on prior
year due 1o the nse in gross profit marqin

To support the Company's growth strategy a sixth office was opened during
the year The new locatlon in Glasgow welcomed its first graduate recruits durng
the third financial quarter Previous new openings in Bristol (2014) and Leeds
{2015) both delvered good growth in 2016 In line with our existing operaiing
medel, the incremental non-staff costs of the Glasgow office do not represent
a significant increase In the Company s cost base (<£03mpa}

16%

Adjusted diluted EPS growth

Operating profit

Operating profit of £42 2m {2015 £39 6m) is 6 6% up on the prier perlod
reflecting the growth in adjusted operating profit, counterbalanced by
exceptional 1PO costs of £37m (2015 £10m), and share-based payment
charges of £0 9m (2015 £0 0m)

Corporation tax charge

The effective tax rate for 2016 was 21 8% (2015 218%) This reflects the
offsetting impacts of a reduction in the blended standard rate of UK corporation
tax applicable to the period from 20 7% to 20 0%, set against the non-deductible
nature of some expenses related 1o the IPO The Company has a net deferred
tax asset carned forward of £426k at the balance sheet date, mainly in respect
of share-based payment reliefs which wiil be apphed to future penods

Cash and balance sheet

Cash conversion was strong at 85 5% (2015 132%), reftecting the ongoing
close management of working capital balances as the business continues

1o grow Cash conversion was excepiionally strong during 20142015 due
to improved debtor and creditor management n those years In 2016 closing
net assets excluding cash, as a percentage of revenue was constant year
on year at 37% (2015 3 6%), demonstrating the maintenance of the lean
position developed over the previous penods

The Company's balance sheel reftects the nature of the business belng bath
simple and efficent As a result of our partnerships with distributors and vendors
stock holdings are kept to an absolute summum and the value of nventory
recognised at year end mainly reflects goods in transit

The Company closed the year with an aggregate cash balance of £62 4m and
no debt, after the payment of pre-IPO and intenim ¢ividends in the year
totalling £43 5m

Dividend

Afinal dividend of 36p per share has been recommended by the Directors
and if approved by shareholders will be paid on 16 December 2016 The record
date will be 18 November and the shares will trade ex-dwidend on 17 November

In ine with the Company’s stated tention to return excess cash to shareholders
over ime the Board has proposed a further special dividend payment of 14 2p
per share If approved by shareholders at the Company's AGM this would also
be paid alongside the final dividend in December 2016 and would bring
total cash returned to shareholders since IPO to £38 5m

Gr ariton
Chief Financial Officer
19 October 2016
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Principa! nisks

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has established mechanisms to identify, evaluate and manage
risks with the aim of protecting its employees, customers and partners
and safeguarding the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Our approach

The Directors confirm that

they have carnied out a robust
assessment of the principal nsks
of the Company The Board has
Identified the dsks facing the
Company and considered the
likely impact that each could
have on the business This has
enabled the Board te target
nisks on a priontised basis

Qwnerstup for each risk has

been assigned to a member of
the senior management team
based upon alignment with
operational duties Risk owners
take responsibility for designing
appropnate internal controls and
pohicies to miigate the ikelhood
and potential impact of the

rnsk materialising

A nisk register 1s maintained
which captures the assessment
of each nisk together with existing
controls and further actions

in progress The risk register

1s reviewed penodically by

both the Board and the senor
management team to ensure It
remains current as the business
and 11s markets evolve, and that
contiols rematn effective and
actions are progressed An
internal audit function has been
established to suppor and
enhance the Company’s
managemert of principal nsks

Consideration of the nisk profile
15 factored into strategic planning
and annual budgeting

Principal risks and uncertainties

BUSINESS STRATEGY
Risk
Customer dissatisfaction

Softcat refies on 1ts ability 10
provide supernor customer service
to drlve growth

Potential impacts

« Reputational damage

« Loss of competitive advantage

Management and mitigahien

+ Graduate traning programme

- Ongaing vendor traming for
sales staff

Annual customer survey
with detailled follow-up on
negatve responses

« Process for escalating
cases of dissatisfaction to
MD and CEQ

Rusk

Failure to evolve our
technology offerng
with changing
customer needs

Potential impacts

« Loss of customers

» Reduced profit per customer

Management and mihgehon

= Processes in place to act on
customer feedback about
new technologles

.

Traiming and development
programme for all
technical staff

= Reqular business reviews
with all vendors

Sales specialist teams aligned
o emerging technologies

to support general

account managers

» Regular specialist and
service offening reviews with
senior management

OPERATIONAL

Risk

Cyber securnity

Softcat collects and hotds
sensitive data on customers,
employees and vendors

Potenhoal impacts

« Inability to defiver
customer services

» Reputational damage

« Financial loss

Manag W and r gahon

- Company-wide information
securnity policy

- Appropnate induction
and training procedures for
all staff

« External penetration testing
programme undertaken

IS0 27001 accreditation
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OPERATIONAL

Risk

Disruption to Managed
Services operations

Potential impacts

« Customer dissatisfaction
« Busimess interruption
« Reputational damage

« Financial loss

Management and mitigation

Operation of back-up
operations centre and
datacentre platforms

Established processes to deal
with incident management,
change control etc

Continued investment
In operations centre
management and
other resources

Cngoing upgrades o network

Regular testing of disaster
recovery plans

FINANCIAL

Risk

Profit margin pressure
including rebates

Potental impacts

+ Reduced margins

Management and miigation

Qngoing training for sales
and operatlons teams to
keep pace with new
vendor programmes

Rebate programmes are
industry standard and not
speclfic to the Company

Rebates form an important
albert minonty element of total
operatlng profits

PEOPLE

Rusk

Culture change

Softcat’s cutture 1s an integral part
of our business model

Potential impacts

Reduced staff engagement

Negative Impact on

customer service

Management and mitigation

Culture embedded In
the organlsation over a
long history

Branch structure with
empowered local management

Quarterly staff survey with
feedback acted upon

Regular staff events
and incentives

Risk

Poar leadership

Strong leadership s required to
maintan Softcat’s culture and
vendor relationships

Potential impacts

= Lack of strateqic direction

+ Detenorating vendor
relatronships

» Reduced staff engagement

Management and mitigation

« Succession planning process

+ Expertenced and broad
senior management team

For information on our viabibity statement, ptease turn to page 67
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Corporate social responsibility

HIGHLY SUPPORTIVE
ENVIRONMENT

We take our social responsibility seriously, particularly in the areas of charitable
activity, looking after our employees and minimising our environmental impact.

Charities

The chanties team at Softcat has been operating formally for almost a decade
raising maney for a number of worthy causes chosen by our staff and, where
possible, for causes our staff are already directly involved In or affected by
We aim to do this by getting as many of our people Involved as possible, as well
as customers and suppllers in order to fulfil what we see as a very important
pant of our corporate responsibility We feel it is important to promote awareness
of hardship and worthy causes and to show how individuals and teams may
come together to do something fantastic for the greater good

The primary purpese has been to help raise money and provide assistance
for chanties, which has resulted in aver £1 5m raised since the beginning of
the programme, and £240 000 alone i 2016 through both employee and
Company initiatives The Company has also benefited enormously from the
programme as this has helped to increase staff engagement employee
satisfaction and staff development through the multitude of activities
employees run, encouraged and supported by the Company

Many chartles both large and smalt local and national, have also benefited
from thes fundrasing to date, including Cancer Research UK Tuberous
Sclerosis Associaton, Clatterbndge Cancer Charity, Helen & Douglas House
Harry Mills Trust, EducAlD Afnca and Save the Children — Haiti In particular,
we have worked very closely with Dreams Come True aver the last four years
and were delighted to reach £1m in total funds raised to date dunng 2016
Alongside this, we support focus events from orgamisations such as Comic Rekef,
for whom we have acted as a contact centre for the last three years on top
of our own fundraising actraties for the cause These events are great fun
in and of themselves as well as helping those fess fortunate than curselves

in the year ahead we will continue to support Breams Come True as well as
other charities we have an existing relationship with In agdition, we plan to
develop some new themes for our efforts, including tackling homelessness in
the reglons close to our offices We will also work with the Bubble Foundation
UK to raise funds for medical equipment toys and educational aids for young
children and therr families

Environmental activity

Softcat is not a manufacturer of products and, as a services-based organisation,
our carbon footprint Is imited However, we take our envirenmental responsibility
sernously and try to contribute posiively wherever possible across the business
in our business this means doing tots of small things and setting an example
to employees

Softcat’s impact on the environment

In each office we have a group of volunteers who care about the environment
we call them the Green Team Environmenial 1ssues are of such importance
at Softeat that Lhe Green Team can boast that its ranks include our CEQ,
Martin Hetlawell The Green Team, alongside management, works together
to raise employee awareness around environmental issues

Decisions at Softcat are influenced by our care and passion for the environment,
from our choice of low emission pool cars ta our selection of energy-efficient
office equipment Soficat uses LED hghting and thin cllents instead of standard
enesgy-hungry desktops and has installed technology that automatically powers
down devices when not in use We recycle paper plastic and cans and have
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on-site composting at the Marlow office All Softcat offices (excluding Glasgow)
are 150 14001 and 150 50001 cerlilied Glasgow will undergo testing in the
new financial year

GHG emussions

QOur emissions have been calculated using the GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporiing standard (revised edition}, together with the
latest emission faclors from DEFRA and DECC

- Scope 1 compnises emissions from our pool cars and natural gas burnt for
heating 1n our owned bulldings

+ Scope 2 comprises our energy consumption in leased
and owned buildings

1000 —

950

900

850 —

tC0e

800

750

700

650 T ]

FY16 FY15

Scope T emissions Scope 2 emissions

We have chosen lo present our total emissions refative to the average
number of employees, 1n order to represent how our emissions are impacted
by the growth of our business We are pleased to report a 13 8% reduction
in emisslons per employee in 2016

Intensity ratios

2016 2005
1C0,efem 105 132
1CO efemployees 137 159

Softcat in the community

As well as our chantable activities Softcat endeavours to play a postiive
and active role 1n the local communities where we operate This takes the
form of helping several local sports teams and associations, prowding volunteers
for a number of activities and events and supporting bod:es like the local
Chamber of Commerce



1 Mayball event
2 Mayball event Softcat charity teaders with Jack Whitehalt
3 Softcat Marlow charity day

Looking after our employees

Soficat strves to provide a highly supportive emaronment for our most Important assets — our emplayees We are committed to equality and diversity and try to
provide the very best in employee welfare We provide excellent traming development opportumties strong feedback mechanisms for employees on therr
performance and frequent communication between employees and the senior team Regular face-to-face communication between the organisation and its employees
is seen as paramount and Includes a weekly alF-Company meeting The Company provides a wide range of beneiits, Including weekly on-site visits by a doctor
and access to a plethora of Softcat sporting and sccial activitles If any member of the Softcat team or their Immediate famlly faces personal difficultles, we look
to support them in any way we can

Gender breakdown
A breakdown of the Board senior managers and all employees is shown below

2016 2015
Number® % Number! %
Male Femate Mate Female Mate Female Male Female
Directors 5 1 83 17 5 o] 100 0
Senior managers 10 i 91 9 10 1 a1 g
Total permanent employees 649 278 70 30 585 229 71 29

Note
1 At31Juy 2016 and 31 July 2015

At Softcat we remamn committed to gender diversity and acknowledge the ‘Davies Report’ recommendation that at least 25% of Board members shoulc be
female The Company recognises the benefits that it gains frem having a diverse workforce throughout the organisation including at Board level Diversity
in its many forms Includlng but not fimited to the skills industry experience race ethricity and gender of the werkforce continues to enable the Company
1o mainiain Its competiive advaniage

The Strategic Report has been approved by the Board of Directors and 15 signed on #ts behalf by

Graham Charlton
Chief Financial Cificer
19 October 2016
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Introduction to governance

¢¢ The Board is committed

28

to promoting the highest
standards of corporate
governance.

Brian Wallace, Chairman

Softcat plc Annual Report and Acccunts 2016

A STRONG
GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK

Dear shareholder,

1 am pleased to present the Company s Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 31 July 2016 This review and the reports of the Audit Remuneration
and Normination Committees that follow summarise the Board’s activities
during the year

The Board 1s committed 1o promaoting the highest standards of corporate
governance as we betleve this supparts the achievement of the Company’s
strategy and also creates and preserves value for shareholders

This year has been one of positive change for Soficat In November 2015,
ow Company successfully isted on the London Stock Exchange As part of
the preparation for the IPO the Board appointed three Non-Executive Directors,
bringing a wealth of public company expenence and industry knowledge
The Board believes that these appointments enhance the leadership of the
business as it begins its journey as a pubfic company and provide effective
support to the executive team Biographical detalls for all Board members
can be found on pages 30 to 31




Since listing, the Board has continued to strengthen the Company's
governance and nsk management structure The Board has embarked on

an internal audit revtew pregramme and threugh the Audit Comenittee has
approved a plan for the next two financial years with the newly appointed
outsourced mternal auditor The Board has also reviewed the Company's nisk
culture and appetite to ensure that nsk and strategy are appropnately aligned
and to support the viability statement, published in this report an page 67

The Remuneration Committee has worked to establish and refine approprlate
remuneration structures for the executive team and all employees and the
Committee is pleased to present the first Remuneration Policy which 1s set
aut on pages 47 to 56

The Nomination Committee has been primanly focused on understanding
the key roles within the business and planning for succession at executive
and leadership team levels, recognising the value this has for both our
employee engagement and motvation and in supporting our strategic goals

The following report explains the main features of the Company’s governance
structure to enable a greater understanding of how the pnnciples and provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code have been applied and to provide
insight into how the Board and management team run the business for the
benefit of sharehelders

| hope that you will find this Corporate Gevernance Report both helpfut
and informative and we welcome any feedback you may have

Brian Wallace
Non-Executive Chairman
19 October 2016

Directors’ experience/backgrounds

Finance
Marketing
Operations
Management

W R A W W

Technology

Board composition

Chairman {independent
on appointment) 17%

Independent
Non-Executive Drrectors 50%

Executive Directors  33%

Tenure of Directors
Dwrector

M J Heltawell | 10 yes 7 mtns |

B Wallace
G L Charlten E:uﬂ'?mms
L. Ginsherg D -

P Ventress D ™

VMurna D Timths
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Board of Directors

MAKING IT WORK
WITH OUR TEAM

2016 was another year of evolution for the Softcat Board,
which now has a structure and membership fully compliant

with the Code.

BRIAN WALLACE
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AND CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Appointed to the Board
8 May 2013

Committee membership
Nomination Committee {Chair}
Disclosure Commttee

8nian jomed Soficat in May 2013 as a Non-Executive
Director and was appointed Charman in July 2014
He 1s also charman of Travelodge and a non-executive
director of FirstGroup pic Previously Brian held
executive board posittons with a number of FTSE
100 and FTSE 250 companies most recently as
group finance director of Ladbrokes ple Prior to
rejolning Ladbrokes, he was group finance director
and deputy chief executlve of Hllton Group plc

A Chartered Accountant, he began his career at
Price Waterhouse and went on o perform semor
ftnance 1oles at Schiumberger APY and Geest

He atso previousty served as a non-executive director
at Scottish and Newcastle plc Hays plc, Camelot
Entertainments plc and the Miller Group
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MARTIN HELLAWELL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Appointed to the Board
24 March 2006

Committee membership
Disclosure Committee

Martin joined Softcat in 2006 as Managing Drecior
and was appointed Chlef Executive Officer in 2014
Previously, Martin spent 13 years at Compuiacenter pic,
where he was responsible for the marketing function
ran Computacenter's French subsidiary and led
acquisitions in the United Kingdom, Belgium and
Germany He was part of Computacenter s initial
public offering team In 1998, ran operations chaired
Computacenter's international joint venture 1CG,
and was chief operating officer of the dot-com
spin-off Biomni Limnied Martin has also worked for
Specialist Computer Centres PLC and for Canalys com
Limited as an independent consuliant. Marba started
his career at Miles 33, a software solutions provider
for the publishing industry Martin earned a BA
{Hons} in management studies {marketing) and
French from Lancaster University

GRAHAM CHARLTON
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Appointed to the Board
19 March 2015

Committee membership
Disclosure Commutiee

Graham joired Softcat in January 2015
Previously he spent four years as finance
director at comparethemarket com (a trading
name of BISL Limited) Prior 1o that, Graham
spent one year as finance director at See Tickets
{the trading name of See Group Limited) and aver
five years i vanous roles including group financial
accountant finance manager and finance director,
decision analytics, at Experian Ltd Graham 1s

a Chartered Accountant and began his career
with Andersen Graham earned an MA in natural
scrences from King's College the University

of Cambridge




LEE GINSBERG
SENIOR INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR

Appointed to the Board
16 September 2015

Committee membership
Audit Commuttee (Chair), Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Commttee

Lee joined Softcat in September 2015 He s also
a non-executive director at Mothercare plc and
Trimty Mirror pic a non-executive director and
seqior independent director at On The Beach
Group plc, 3 deputy chairman and serior Independent
director at Patisserie Valerie Holdings plc and
nona-executive chairman at Oriole Restaurants
Limited Prior to joining Soficat he spent ten years
as chief financial officer of Domlno’s Pizza Group
plc and held the post of group finance director at
Health Club Holdings Linuted, formerly Holmes
Place plc, where he also served for 18 months as
deputy chief executive Lee earned a Bachelor of
Accounitng (Hons) from UNISA {University of South
Africa) and quallfied as a Chartered Accountant at
Price Waterhouse

PETER VENTRESS
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appomnted to the Board
10ctober 2015

Committee membarship
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneratien Committee (Chair)

Peter joined Softcat in October 2015 He s also
deputy chairman and senior independent director
of Galliferd Try plc, a non-executive director of
Pramier Farnell pt¢ and a director of BBA Awiation
plc Prior to Joiming Softcat he spent five years as

chief executive officer of Berendsen plc held several

senior executive roles, including international

president, at Staples Inc , held several senior execuive

roles including chief executive offices, at Corporate
Express NV prior to its acquisitran by Staples Inc
and held a number of other general management
positions across @ number of different businesses
in a variety of industries Peter earned an MA

In modern history and modern languages from
the University of Oxford and an MBA from the
Open University

VIN MURRIA
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointed to the Board
3 November 2015

Commiittee membership
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee

Vin joined Soficat in November 2015 She Is also a
non-executive director st Zoopia Property Group
Plc, and a partner at Elderstreet investments Prior
to joming Softcat, Vin spent seven years as the
founder and chief executive officer al Advanced
Computer Software plc prior to its acquisition by
Vista Equity Partners In 2015, and five years as
chlef executive officer of Computer Software
Group ple prior to 1ts acquisition by HG Capital
and then Hellman & Friedman in 2007 Previously
Vin was also a non-executive director at Chime
Communications plc Greenko plc and chief
operating officer at Kewlll Systems pic

Named Entrepreneur of the Year in 2074 at the
Grant Thornton Quoted Company Awards and
Woman of the Year at the 2012 Cisco verywoman
Technology Awards Vin 1s a successful entrepreneur
with a strong background in technology-based
businesses Vin holds & Bachelor (Hons} in computer
sctence and has also completed an MBA and a DBA
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Statement of corporate governance

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
Prior 1o the IPO, the Board worked to ensure that it had estabiished a framework
of best practice which would enable the Company to operate at the highest
standards of corporate governance In doing so, the Board has continued to
take guldance from the Financial Reporting Council s UK Corporate Govemance
Code 2014 (the 'Code’) and, with the following exceptions has mantained
compliance with each of its requirements

1) Provision 861— The board should state n the annuol report how performance
evaluation of the board, 1ts committees and its individual directors has
been conducted

) Prowvision B & 3 - The non-executive directors led by the semor independent
chrector, should be responsible for performance eveluation of the chairman
toking into account the views of executive directors

Regarding the above provisicns B 61and B 6 3, due to the short timeframe
between IPQ and the year end it was considered that it would be more
appropriate and worthwhnile {o assess the performance of the Board, its
Commitiees and the Chalrman after a full year of listing

wj Provision E 11~ The chairman should ensure that the wews of shoreholders
ore communicoled to the board as a whole The chairman should discuss
governance and sirategy with major shareholders Non-executive direclors
should be offered the opportunity to oftend scheduled meetings with
major sharcholders ond should expect to attend meetings (f requested
by major shareholders The senlor independent director should attend
sufficient meetings with a range of major shareholders to listen to their
views in order to help develop o bolanced understanding of the 1ssues
ond concerns of mgor shareholders

The Board ts commiited to effective and meaningfut communication with
shareholders and the Chairman ensures the wiews of shareholders are
communicated to the Board through the CEQ and CFC s meetings with
shareholders and through investor roadshows In addition, shareheiders
are encouraged to attend the Company s AGM on 8 December 2016

and the Board welcomes any meetings with tndividual shareholders

If requested Although no shareholders have requested any meetings

to date, In the next twelve months, the Chalrman intends to meet with
shareholders where possible to discuss governance and strategy
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The Board is committed to
effective and meaningful
communication with
shareholders.

Brian Wallace, Chairman

A copy of the Code 1s available from the Financial Reporting Council’s
website www fr¢ gov uk

Board structure and roles

The varying roles of Board members, including the Charman and the CEO
(and the separation of these two roles) the Non-Executive Directors and
the Senlor Independent Director are outfined below, along with that of the
Company Secretary

Chawrman

The pnncipal role of the Chairman is to lead the Board effectively and prowide
direction and focus to 1is discussions through setting agendas and ensuring the
requisite business, strategic and governance issues are covered thioughout the
year The Chairman is the guardian of the Board's deaision-making processes
and promotes effective probity of Issues through a culture of openness and
debate The Charrman was deemed tndependent upon appeintment to this
positicn The Chatrman's experience of the IT sector has been gained from
his membershup ¢f the Softcat Board since 2013 and of public imited companies,
both as an executive and non-executive director over many years which has
enabled the Board to function efficiently and effectively throughout the year

The Chairman’s other significant commitments are indicated in his biography
on page 30

Chief Executive Officer ('CEQY)

Martin Hellawell, who has spent over a decade runming the Company leads
the senior management team and develops and oversees the implementation
of all Board-approved actions, the strateqic direction of the Company and its
commercial objectives



Separaton of Chairman and CEO roles

In compliance with the Code, the roles of Chairman and CEQ are clearly
distingtished and the duties of each were set out in the Company’'s Prospecius
atlPO The Board recognises that sufficient separation between these positions
enhances the independence and objectivity of the Board and that no single
person has unfettered authonty over the Company

Non-Executive Directors

Each Non-Executwe Director of the Company 15 deemed ndependent by the
Board as considered against the criteria set out in prowision B11 of the Code
and provides a crucial function in challenging the Board's decisions and
dhscussions in an unbiased and objective way The Non-Executive Direclors
bring a wealth of experience, skills and knowledge to the Board from across
the IT sector and a number of large isted companies During the year the
Chairman met with the Non-Executive Directors, without the Executive
Directors present, on two occasions

Senior Independent Director ('SID’}

Lee Ginsberg has been the Senior tndependent Director of the Board since
his appointment Lee recelves updates from the Executive Directors on any
issues raised by shareholders and receives briefings from the Company
Secretary on corporate governance 1ssues which relate to investors In this
role, he acts as an intermediary for the other Directors and welcomes any
contact from shareholders on Company 1ssues

Company Secretary

Capita Company Secretanal Services Limited has served as the Company
Secretary since 19 October 2015 and 15 responsible for providing guidance
to the Board as a whole and to the Directors individually with regard to their
duties, responsibiiities and powers and ensuning the proper administration
of the proceedings and matters relating to the Board, the Company and the
shareholders of the Company in accordance with applicable legisiation

and procedures

The Board and each Director has unlimited access to the Company Secretary,
who advises the Board and the Board Committees on relevant matters,
ncluding compliance with the Company’s policies and procedures, relevant
legistation and reguiation, including the Listing Rules and the UK Corporate
Governance Code and other governance standards The Board is of the
opinion that the Company Secretary 18 competent and has the requisite
quahfications and experlence to effectively execute its dutles

Board composition and diversity
A ist of the Company's current Directors, including their biograptues, can be
found on pages 30 to N

At IPO the Board compnsed three Independent Non-Executve Directors
two Executive Directors and the Chalrman, who was independent on
appointment Each Director has an extensive set of skills, experience
and knowledge in a number of relevant sectors and careers which

15 of great value to the Company

The Company considers that each Non-Executive Director 1S independent as
outlined in the Code and 1s therefore able to exercise independent judgement

The Company recognises the benefils that It gains from having a diverse
workforce throughout the organisauon wcluging at Board fevel Diversdy in its
many forms, including, but not imited to the skills industry expenence race
ethnicity and gender of the workforce continues to enable the Company to
maintaimn its competiive advantage In preparation for the IPO, the Board was
refreshed to broaden the backgrounds of the Directors and ensure the Company
beneflted from the diversity of each member The Company now believes
that the Board of Directors 1s well balanced effective and capable of meeting
its strategic and operational needs for the future and will continue to promote
its growth and success

Whilst considering succession planning the Board and the Nommation Committee
routinely review the structure, size and composition of the Board and its
Committees The Nomination Commuttee will lead the process for Board
appoiniments, through its assessment of candidates and recommendation
to the Board for any approval Further details are included In the Nomination
Committee Report on pages 40 1o 41

As the Board 1s committed to making appointments based on merit, it has
decided not 0 1mpose a quota on the gender balance of the Board It does
however, reman committed to ensunng that the Board and the senior management
team reflect the diverse nature of its workforce and customers when
considering appointments

A breakdown of the gender diversity of the Company, including total staff,
senior managers ano Directors can be found on page 27

Board functioning

Role of the Board

The Board I1s respansible for the oversight of the Company through deciding
the strategic objectives and governance structure required to promote the
long-term success of the Company and increase shareholder value The role
of the Board 15 outlined n the ‘Matters Reserved for the Board' document
which detalls those duties which are the sole responsibility of the Board of
Directors In line with best practice, certain authonties have been delegated
to the Commiitees to undertake detisions and recommendations on the Board's
behalf Furthes information on the Committees of the Board can be found
below and speclficatly In the Committee Reports on pages 36 to 44

Board programme

The Chairman wath support from the Board sets the agendas for Board
meeungs to ensure that appropriate regulatory compliance has been met and
the Company’s strategic objectves for the year ahead are the central focus

Softcat ple Annual Raport and Accounts 2016 KE]

uewIdAch ajelodiod



Statement of corporate governance continued

¢¢ The Company recognises the benefits that it gains
from having a diverse workforce throughout the
organisation including at Board level.

Brian Wallace, Chairman

Board functioning continued
Board and Committee meeting attendance

Since IPO the Directars have held five face-lo-face Board meetings at a number of the Company's different offices across the counlry including a strategy
meeting in February 2076 1n ine with the Company's vision and ethss to be open and transparent and to engage fully with 1ts employees the Board has also
held questlon and answer sessions with and made presentations to staff al each office location visited The Company held three meetings of each of the
Audit and Remuneration Committees and two meetings of the Nomination Committee

The table below shows the Directors and Committee members who held the position dunng the year and Board and Commitiee attendance subsequent to the IPO

Meetings attended since IPO

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Mame Date of resignation Board Committee Committee Committee
M 1 Hellawell - O0000 - - -
B Wallace - olelelele - — OO
GL Charlton - 00000 - - -
L Ginsbery - Q0000 000 000 OO0
P Ventress - OOOOO OOO OOO OO
VMurria - O0000 000 000 00
PD JKelly 15 October 2015 - - — —
C W Brown 15 October 201% - - - -

O tended O Did not attend

Committees of the Board

tn hne with best practice recommendations, the Board established four
Committees to which 1 has delegated authority to consider matters in detail
before utimate approval by the Board The full terms of reference for each
Committee are available in the investor relations section of the Company's
website at www softcat com Reports on the role, composition and activity
undertaken duning the year of each Commuttes, with the exception of the
Disclosure Committee, are detalled on pages 36 1o 44

Audit Committes

The Audit Commuttee assists the Board in discharging s responsivilities

with regard 1o ensuring appropriate and effective external and internal audit
and compliance arrangements, establishing suitable fraud prevention and
whistleblowing arrangements and ensuring that the Annual Repert and
Accounts are reviewed and scrutimsed In accordance with the Code, each
member of the Committee 15 an Independent Non-Executive Director and the
Committee has sufficient relevant and recent financial experience in the
sector the Company operates in The Commuttee 1s chared by Lee Ginsberg
and more détail can be found m the Committee Report on pages 36 to 39

Nomnation Committee

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities
relating to the review of the size, composition and make-up of the Board and
through leading the process for Board appotntments to ensure an appropnate
balanice of skills expenence, availability, ndependence and knowledge of
the Company s mawntained The Commutiee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Non-Executive Chairman, who was
independeni on appaintment and 1s therefore in comphance with the Cade
The Commitiee Is chaired by Brian Wallace and more detail can be found in
the Committee Report on pages 40 to 41
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Remuneration Commitee

The Remuneration Commuttee assists the Board in determining its
responsidilities in relation to remuneration, mcluding advising the Board on
its overall Remuneration Policy i also undentakes to determine the individual
remuneration and benefits package of each of the Executive Directors

The Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors

and is therefore fully compliant with the Code The Commuttee is chared

by Peter Ventress and more detail can be found in the Committee Report

on pages 42 to 61

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Commuitee was formed by the Board following the introduction
of tiee Market Abuse Regulations in July 2016 and has respenstbility for
dentifying price sensitive information and determining en a timely basis

the disclosure treatment of such information  The Committee comprises the
Chairman and the Executive Directors and the Committee members present
at a meeting will elect one member to chair the meeting The Committee did
not meet pnor to the year end

Directorate matters

Appointment and tenure

Each Non-Executive Director 1s appomted under the terms set out m their
letter of appointment, including the expected iime commitment required
of them On appointment, each Non-Executive Director confirmed that they
had sufficient time to devote 1o their duties as a Director of the Company
The appaintment letters are available for inspection at the Company’s
registered office



The Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term of three vears, subject
to earller termunation, Including provision for early termination by either the
Company or the Non-Executive Director on three months’ notice in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association {'the Articles') ali Directors must
retire by rotation and seek re-election by shareholders every three years,
however, 1t 1s intended that the Directors will each retire and submit
themselves for re-election by shareholders annually

Directors’ induchon and traiming

The Chairman, with the support of the Company Secretary 1s responsible for
the induction of new Directors and the ongoing development of all Directors
The traiming needs of the Directors are pencdically discussed at Board meetings
and briefings are arranged on issues relating to corporate governance and
other areas of impaortance The Directors regularly have the opportumity to
vislt various Company offices around the country and meet members of the
senior management team to fully understand the business, culture and ethos
of the Company

The Board 1s kept up to date on legal, requlatory and governance matters by
the Company Secretary through presentations at Board meelings In addion
external advisers are also given the opportunity to present to the Board on
relevant matters Additional traiming 1$ available on reguest, where apprapriate,
so that Directors can update their skills and knowledge as applicable

Independent professional advice

All Directors may seek independent professionat advice in connection with
their roles as Directors at the expense of the Company All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary The Company
has provided both Indemnities and directors and officers’ Insurance to the
Directors in cennection with their duties and responsibilities

Director election/re-election

Following recommendatian from the Nomination Comnuttee, the Board
considers that all Directors continue to contribute effectively are committed
to and play active roles In their appointment and have sufficient time avallable
to perform their duties As set out in the Nemination Committee Report on
page 41 and in accordance with the Code, all of the Diregtors will be submitting
themselves for re-etection at the 2016 Annual General Meeting (AGM’)

Directors’ conflicts of interest

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) and the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Board may authonise any matter that otherwise
may Involve any of the Directors breaching his or her duty to avoid conflicts
of interest. The Board has adopied a procedure to address these requirements
which includes the Directors completing detailed conflict of interest
questionnayes The matters disclosed m the questionnaires are reviewed
hy the Board following the Directors’ appoiniments and annually thereafter
and, If considered appropriate authonsed n accordance with the Act and
the Artictes

Board, Committee and individual Director evaluahon

The Board recognises the importance of a formal and rigorous evaluation
process 1o enable objective review of the functioning of the Board and tts
Commuittees An internal evaluation shall be conducted annually and an
external provider shali be engaged to complete an external review every
three years in ine with the Code

suewanoh ajesodion

As outlined above, due $0 the short tmeframe between PO and the year end it
was considerad that it would be more apprepnate and waorthwhite to assess
the performance of the Board, its Commuttees and the Chairman after a full
year of isting However, dunng the period, the Chatrman has maintaned
regular contact and dialogue with the Non-Executive Directors

Shareholder engagement |
Responsibility for sharehotder relations rests with the Chairman CEC CFO
and SID Collectively, they ensure that there 1s effective regular and clear
communication with shareholders on matters such as govemance and strategy
In addition, they are respansible for ensunng that the Board understands
the views of shareholders on matters such as governance and strategy

The Board Is supported by the Company’s corporate brokers with whom

we are In regular dialegue The CEQ and CFQ attend farmal meetings with
Investors to discuss the Group s Intenim and final results During Intervening
penods the Company will continue its dialegue with the investor community
by meeting key investor representatives and holding investor roadshows

The Directors will be available at the Company s AGM to answer any queries
and look forward to having the opportunity to meet with shareholders

Accountability

lnternal controls and procedures

The Company has in place a compreherisive system of intermal controls, designed
to ensure that nisks are mitigated and that the Company Is able to fulfilits
objectives The Board has responsibility for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness of Internal controls operated by the Company, n¢luding
financeal, operational and compliance controls, and tisk management

The Audit Committee, through authornty delegated by the Board, oversees
the activities of the Company's internal and external auditor The Committee
reviews and approves any Company disclosures on internal controls and risk
management in addition 1o comphance, whistleblowing and fraud

Areview of the Company’s nsk management approach 1s further discussed
1 the Audit Committee Report on page 38 For detad on the management
and mitigation of each principal nsk see pages 24 and 25 The Group's
viability statement 15 detaled on page 67 of the Directors’ Report Please
atso refer to pages 36 to 39 for further detail in relation to the Audrt
Commuitiee’s role

Brian Wallace
Non-Executive Chairman
19 October 2016
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Lee Ginsbherg
Chairman, Audit Commuitiee

Members of the Audit Committee

L Ginsberg {Char}
P Ventress
V Murnia

Attendance of the Audit Committee

Name Commitlee attendance 2016
L Ginsberg 000
P Ventress 000
V Murna O O O
Total meetings held 000

O Aftended O Did not attend
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AUDIT
COMMITTEE
REPORT

Dear shareholder,

On 18 November 2015, the Company completed its successful initiat public
offering (IPC) and entered the FTSE 250 index of the London Stock Exchange in
March 2016 As aresutt the Board established an Audit Committee {the ‘Committee’)
which includes each independent Non-Executve Director as a member and
15 1n line wiih the UK Corporate Governance Code {the ‘Code’} Since the IPO
the Committee has underiaken a review of the Company s relevant audit and
risk framework and approved new policies and structures which help support
the Company being newly hsted

The implementation of the EU Audit Directive and Regulation 1n the UK was
also considered and the Company's nen-audit services pelicy accusately
reflgcts these requirements This Is explained In more detail on page 39

Lee Ginsberg
Chairman of the Audit Commuittee




Committee composition and meeting atendance

The composition of the Committee 15 in comphance with the Code, which
provides that alt members should be Independent Non-Executive Directors
The Committee held three meetings dunng the year and attendance 1s
disclosed on page 36

In line with the requirements of the Code and the FRC's Guidance on Audit
Committees, Lee Ginsberg the Committee Chairman, has recent and
relevant financial experience through his previous employment In senlor
financial positions at large companies inctuding listed companies, and 15
a Chartered Accountant The Board is also satisfied that the combined
knowledge and experience of its members within the Company s sector
enable the Committee to exercise its dutles effectively

The Company Secretary 1 secretary to the Committee and attends all meetings
Other atlendees at Committee meetings may differ from time to time and,
upen invitation from the Committee include Brian Wallace (Chairman),
Martin Hellawell {CEQ) Graham Charlton (CFO) and other members of the
senior management team The Committee will also invite representatives
from the intemal auditor {Grant Thornton LLP} and the external auditor
{Ernst & Young LLP}

Role and responsibilities

The Committee assists the Board with its responsibility regarding financial
reporting tnternal contsols and nsk management systems, complrance,
whistleblowing and fraud, and internal and external audit The Committee s
responsibilities include but are not hmited to

- reviewing and menltoring the integrity of the Company’s financlal statements
and announcements Including a review of the significant financral reporting
judgements contasned theren, assessing the basis on which the Company
has been delermined a going concern assessing the principal nisks

facing the Company and the prospects of the Company when considening

the viabihty statement reported to sharehelgers, and a judgement on
whether the financial reports are fair, balanced and understandable,

- reviewing accounting policies accounting treatments and disclosures
in the financial reports,

- assessing the Company's internal control and risk management systems,
+ overseeing and assessing the Company s management of a% significant risks

- reviewing the adequacy and secunity of the Company’s arrangements for
its empioyeas regarding possible wrongdoing in financial reporting or
other matters, fraud detecting procedures and bribery prevention
systems and controls

- monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Intarnal audit function
in the context of the overall nsk management system,

- overseeing the Company’s relabonship with its external avditor,

+ making recommendations o the Board as to the appoiniment or reappomtment
of the external auditor, reviewsng 1ts terms of engagement including audit
fees, engagement for nen-audit services, and monitoring the external
auditor's independence objectivity and effectiveness,

» reviewing the scope of the external audlt, Its findings and the
effectiveness of the audit process and

« reviewing the overall relationship with the external audit firm, including
the prowvision of non-audit services, to ensure that independence and
objectivity are mamtamed

Further details on the Committee's duties can be found inits terms of reference
which are avasiable on the Company's website, www softcat com

Main activities

Since the IPC the Committee has been focused oa the foliowing 1) manitonng
the risk management framewark, including the adoption of a sk register by
the Company, 1) approval of the external audit engagement fees and 2016
audit plan m) the appomntment of the internal auditor, review and approval
of the relevant internal audit areas for the year and approval of the internai
audit engagement and fees for the 2016/17 financial year Iv) considering and
making recommendations to the Board refating to the Company’s Hali-Yearly
Report, Annual Repert and the financial statements, and vj review and approval
of the Commuttee's terms of reference, as well as pelcies regarding risk
management, external suditor mdependence and non-audtt services

The Commuttee also undertook a review of the Company’s whistleblowing
policy and procedures, the Anti-Bribery Policy and the Code of Conduct
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Audit Committee Report continued

¢¢ Since the IPO the Audit Committee has focused
on monitoring the risk management framework
and the appointment of the internal auditor.

Lee Ginsberg, Chairman of the Audit Commiltee

Significant issues

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the annual financlal statements are detalled on pages 77 to 82 If applicable, further detall
i the notes to the financial statements relating to the below issues 15 referenced as indicated

The Committee, through a process of consultation with both management and the external auditor, considered the following significant audHt ¢Isks relating

to the Company s financial statements

Signilfcant audil risks Steps taken by the Commitiee

Inappropriate revenue recogaition

The Commuittee has reviewed the Company’s revenue recognition policy and discussed in detail with management

and members of the finance team the processes applied to accurately record revenue at perlod ends The Committee
also receves detalled monthly reporting on business performance to include revenue recognition data and trends
The Committee discusses the performance and data trends regularly with the CFQ The Committee has concluded
that the tming of secognition 15 in iine with current IFRS requirements

Rebates The Committee has taken steps 10 understand the nature and quantum of supplier rebates recenved by the Company
The Commitiee receives management information on rebates accrued as part of monthly performance reporiing
and monitors trends agalnst prior perlod results The Committee is satisfied (n the Company's abillty to accuralely
record rebates earned within the flnanclal perlod

Going concern and viability statement

At its meeting in March 2016 the Committee receved a report prepared by
the Company s finance team which addressed the new viability statement
requirement This repert enabled the Committee to evaluate a stress test
of the Company's three-year prefit and loss balance sheet and cash flow plan
agamst the impact of key risks sefected from the nsk register The strength
of the Company’s balance sheet was comfortably able to absorb the impact
of the stress test Accordingly, the Committee has considlered and recommended
to the Board the viability statement which seeks to examine the Company's
longer-term soivency and viability and which is detailed on page 67 It was
agreed that three years would be an appropriate timeframe on which to
base the long-term viabulity statement as it 15 in ling with the strategic
planning process undertaken by the Company and reflects the pace of
change n the technology sector

Internal controls and risk management

The Board believes that effective risk management underpins the running

of a successful business and is integral lo the objective of constantly adding
value to the Company It has adopted an integrated and effective risk
management framework which grades key nsks by reference to their hkelihood
and potential impact Risks are dvided into funclional areas under the ownership
of the executive leadership team Each member 1s responsible for the management
of nisks in their area, including the assessment of potential impact and
likelthood and defining necessary actions and controls for implementation

The Commitiee and the Board have a clear process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the signlficant risks faced for the year under review and up
10 the date of the Annual Report The process 1s regularly reviewed by the
Board and rs in accordance with the FRC's Guidance on Risk Management,
tnternal Control and Relatad Financial and Business Reporting and the
requirements of the Code
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The Board retains full and effective control over the Company and Is responsible
for monitoang management’s implementation of Board decistons and strategies
The Board ensures that the Company complies with the relevant laws regulations
and codes of business practice The Committee assists the Board, by routmely
reviewing and monrtoring the nsk management process and Company internal
control systems

Internal audit

During the penod, the Committee determined that to ensure objective

and effective accountabillty, this function would be outsousced Followlng a
competitive tender, Grant Thomton LLP was appointed as the Company’s
internal auditor The Committee Identified the key iternal audt areas and
agreed a two-year internal audit plan to include but not be hmited to
procure to pay, accounts recelvable rebates antl-bribery and fraud and
cyber and anformation secunty The internal audit funcion will be reqularly
monitored and reviewed by the Commitiee n the context of the Company s
overall sk management system

External audit
During the year, Emst & Young LLP (EY") has acted as the Company’s
external auditor and has been appomted since July 2013

The Committee I1s responsible for overseeing the external auditer on behalf
of the Board, including approving the anaual audit work plan and audit fee

External auditor independence and effectiveness

The Comanttee 1s committed to ensunng that the Company receves an
effective, objective and independent audit and i1s responsible for ensuring
this 15 delivered through an annual evaluation The Committee has reviewed
the independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the external auditor and
considers that EY continues to possess the skills and expenence required
to fulfil its dutles effectively and efficlently The Commitlee’s review of the
effectiveness of £Y as the external auditor is based on discussions with the
senlor finance team the robustness of the audit, the quality of reporting to
the Audit Commitiee and reporis published by the FRC




EY has confirmed that in its professional Judgement it Is Independent within
the meaning of requiatory and professional requirements and the objectivity
of the audit engagement partner and audlt staff is not Impaired

As part of the Committee s assessment of the external auditor, separate
meetings have been held between the Non-Executive Directors and the
external auditor, without management being present

Audit tender and audit pariner rotation

As a result of the UK s implementation of the EU’s mandatory firm rotation
requirements and the Competttion and Markets Authonty Statutory Audit
Services Order {CMA Order’) the Company IS required to ensure that the
external auditor's contract Is put out to tender at least every ten years, with
the proviso that no single firm may serve as the Company's auditor for a penod
exceeding 20 years The Commuttee will consider the appropriate iming to
conduct a formal tender process in accordance with these requirements while
continulng o assess the effectiveness and independence of the external audrtor
In accordance with UK ethical standards {which allow an additional two years
of flexibility if considered necessary to maintain audit quality), Kart Havers could
serve untll the financlal year commencing 1 August 2017 as a key audlt partner

Reappointment of auditor

The Committee has considered the objectvity and independence of the auditor
and has determined that it is satisfied with the service provided by EY
Accordingly, 1t has recommended to the Board that EY 15 réappointed as the
Company’s external auditor and that a resolution 1s included in the 2016
Notice of AGM far consideration by shareholders

Non-audit services

During the year, the Commuttee approved a non-audit services policy which
took into account the implementation of the EU Audit Directive and Regulation
and the FRC Ethical Standards The policy recognises that in certain crcumstances
1t may be appropnate and cost efficient to engage its external auditor to
undertake non-audit services, whilst not compromising its independence

or objectivity The Committee considered and approved appropriate total
annual monetary thresholds for non-audit serwices and deterniined
approprate approval systems and contrals

Duning the year, fees for the non-audit serice work carred out by EY were
275% of the audit fee, reflecting the considerable services EY prowided as
reporting accountant in connection with the preparation of the prospactus
on IPO The Company considered that hinng EY was (n the best interests
of shareholders due to thelr expertlse and expenence in such services and
their in-depth know!edge and understanding of the business In addition
certam elements of the work were required to be carried out by the auditor
To malntain the external audltor's Independence and oblectivity an
Independent partner was appotnted {0 lead on these services

Fees
Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements on page 83 for details
of the remuneration of the auditor

CMA Order
Duning the year, the Company has complied with the CMA Order The work of
the Commitiee in discharging ds responsibilibes is explained in more detad above

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Committee recognises the importance of the Company's Annual Report
to be fair balanced and understandable The Committee has therefore reviewed
the Annual Report and the process for its preparation and considered 1t in ight
of monthly management information and Board reporis received dunng the
year As a result the Committee has recommended to the Board that t confirms
the Annual Report and Accounts in its erirety s fair balenced and understandable

Signed on behalf of the Aucit Committee

Lee Ginsberg
Chairman of the Audit Committee
19 Cetober 2016

Softcat plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016 39

aueianoh aeodion



Brian Wallace
Chairman, Nomination Commuittee

Members of the Nomination Committee

B Wallace {Chair}
L Ginsberg

P Ventress

V Murria

Attendance of the Nomination Committee

Hame Committee attendance 2016
B Wallace [o]e)
L Ginsberg o]e
P Ventiess O O
V Murra O O
Total meetings held o]e)

O attended D DId not attend

40 Softcat plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE
REPORT

Dear shareholder,

} am pleased 10 present the Company s first report an the activities of

the Nomination Committee (the ‘Committee’) for the year to 31 July 2016
The Committee was established as part of the governance framework
adopted by the Company priof to the Inltial public offering of Its shates

on the premium segment of the London Stock Exchange in November 2015
(the "IPO’}

In preparation for the PO process, the membership of the Board was refreshed
and a number of Committees were established The Committee believes that
these appointments and the appoiniment of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors have provided addltional financial, strategic, technical and industry
skilis ang expertise to both the Board and its Committees During the year the
Committee has been predominantly focused on succession planning and
talent management for the Board and the Company as a whole

Brian Wallace
Chairman of the Nomination Commuttee




Committee composition and meeting attendance

The Commitiee comprises the Chairman and all the Non-Executive Directors

in the last year, the Commitiee has met twice and attendance at those meetings

15 gdetalled on page 40 Biographies of each member are shown on pages 30
and 31

The Company Secretary 1s secretary to the Committee and attends all
meetings Other attendees at Committee meetings may vary from time
ta time and upen invitation from the Commuttee include the Executive
Directors and key semor employees

Role and responsibilities

The Committee 15 responsible for evaluating the structure, srze and composition
of the Board and Its Committees, and gives considerallon to the skills
knowledge experlence and dlversity within each The results of the annual
Board performance evaluation process that relate to the composition of

the Board will be taken Into consideration by the Committee in making this
assessment The Committee also considers succession planning of Directors
and other semor managers in detail

The Committee 1$ asked to lead, on behalf of the Board the selection process
for new Board appoiniments as and when they anise and to make recommendations
in respect of such appointments When considenng appomtments to the
Board, the Commuttee will consider each candidate's ime commitments and
any potential conflicts of interest

At present the Board has not set any speclfic aspirations In respect of gender
diversity although 1t believes that refreshment of the Board should take
account of diversity m all its forms  Details of diversity within our workforce,
including at Board and executive management level, can be found on page 27

The time required from Non-Executive Directors will be reviewed by the Committee
on an annual basis The annual Board performance evaluation will also be
used 1o assess whether the Non-Executive Directors are spending sufficient
time to fulfil thelr duties

In accordance with the Code, each Director will be subject to annuai re-election
al each AGM To this end, the Commiltee evaluates the best interests of the
Company as a whole and recommends the elections or re-elecuons to the
Board, where considered approprate

The Committee's full terms of reference are available on the Company's
website at www softcat com

Maln activities

Pnior to the Company's IPO, the Board appointed an executve search consultant
Spencer Stuart, with whom the Company has no other connection, to identify
candidates {o fill three Non-Executive Board vacancies Following a rigorous
selection process, Lee Ginsherg, Peter Ventress and Vin Murria were appainted
as Non-Executive Directors

The Commttee’s main focus since IPQ has been to review the Company's
succession planning and tatent management [n May 2016 the Committee
undertook an extensive succession planning exerase for the Executive Directors
and key employees of the Company Following this, the Committee considered
and evaluated the structure of successlon within the Company and identified
those areas which required acditional training and development of staff to
ensure adeguate long-term successron The Company 1s dedicated to investing
In Its employees 1o ensure talented staff are able to flourlsh within thelr roles
and progress throughout the Company

The Commitiee also noted that the Board and Committees had been in place
for a short pengd of ime since the Company’s IPC and that, for the present
me ther structure, size and composttion remained sutable and edegquate
for the proper runming of the Company

Board and Committee evaluation

Due to the relatively short period of time between IPO and the Company’s
year end and since the Board composition was significantly updated in the
months immediately prier to IPO the Committee has not yet ungertaken a
formal evaluation process of the Board and its Committees A formal and
ngorous evaluation will be undertaken in the year to 31 July 2017

Directors’ election and re-election

As stated above, the Company has decided 1n accordance with the Code,
that each Director will be subject 1o annual re-election by shareholders at
the AGM The Commiitee considers that the performance of each of the
Directors standing for re-election at the 2016 AGM continues to be effective
and demonsirates commitment to therr roles The biographical details of the
current Directers can be found on pages 30 to 31

The terms and conditions of appomntment of Non-Executive Directors which
include ther expected time commitment are avalable for inspection at the
Company’s registered office Non-Executive Directors are appolnted for an
initial term of three years, subject to re-election at each AGM, and the Commuttee
will make a recommendation tc the Board for the reappointment of any
Non-Executive Director at the conclusion of thelr specified term of office

In particular for any term beyond six years

Signed on behalf of the Nomination Committee

Brian Wallace
Chairman of the Nomination Commiftee
18 October 2016

Softcat plc Annual Report ang Accounts 2016 41

dauewsanob spesodio



Peter Ventress
Chairman, Remuneration Committiee

Members of the Remuneration Committee

P Ventress (Chair)
L Ginsberg
V Murma

Attendance of the Remuneration Committee

Name Committee attendance 2016
P Veniress O O O
L Ginsberg 00
V Murna O O O
Total meetings held Q00

O Attended O Did not attend
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REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
REPORT

Dear shareholder,

As the Chair of the Remuneration Commuttee, | am pleased to present the
report of the Board covenng the Remuneration Policy ang practice for the
first time as a listed company Work on the Policy was started following the
initial share offering on 18 November 2015

| was appointed to the Board and as Chair of the Remuneration Committee
on 1 October 2015 Since then the Committee has reviewed and built on the
remuneration work done by the Board in the lead up 1o the IPO and
published In the prospectus

Our goat s to have a Remuneratson Policy which supports the Company’s
goals to develop as a leading provider in the IT infrastructure solutlons
industry and to deliver fong-term sustainable growth In our new
Remuneration Policy we are strving to incentivise and motivate the
leadership team to implement the Company’s strategic goals and ensure
they are aligned with shareholder expectations

This has gutded our thinking and actions sn owr work This report lays out the
core principles of our Remuneration Policy and our practice over the past year
In qur Policy description we have worked to provice the transparency and
clanty to enable our shareholders to understand the intent of our remuneration

Peter Veniress
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CHAIRMAN'’S ANNUAL STATEMENT

The application of this Policy and the current remuneration arrangements for the

Structure of the report management team reflect the specific development and history of the Company

+ Martin our CEQ, has been with the business since 2006 and has been
instrumental in the Company's development and IPQ last year He s a

* Diractors’ Remuneration Report ‘at a glance’ major shareholder of the business and therefore his current remuneration
{pages 45 1o 46) package has been structured to reflect his history with the Company and

ensuring that his interests are aligned to the next stage of the Company’s

development His base salary set at conservative levels compared to

« Annual Report on Remuneration (pages 57 to 61) FTSE 250 CEOs of a comparable size to Softcat reflects his unique

history with Softcat

* Annual Statement (pages 43 to 44)

+ Directors’ Remuneration Policy {pages 47 to 56}

+ Graham our CFO, joined Soficat in 2015 to support the Company on its
journey as a isted organisation His base salary level 1s currently conservative
compared to other FTSE 250 CFOs In line with the Remuneration Policy
the Remuneration Committee intends to review Graham's salary position

* to ensure Senior Executives are attracted, year on year 1o ensure his total remuneration opporturity moves towards
retained and motivated to drive the next stage 8 market-compelitwe level This may mean that, n the event the Committee
of development in the Company post-IPO, determines that adjustments to Graham’s base salary are appropriate his

salary may be increased at & level above that for employees generally

untll 3 competitive position 1s achieved

Qur core principles of remuneration:

*+ to incentivise the management team in extending
the Company‘s position in the IT mnfrastructure
soluhions industry, and + As a newly histed organisaton the management team 15 committed to

generating returns to our shareholders and 1o ensunng that their pay 1s

linked to Company performance Therefore, the Committee has proposed

a Remuneration Policy whereby the opportunity under the vanable incentives

{annua! bonus and long-term incentive opportunity} supports this

Company highlights for the 2016 financial year pay-for-performance philosophy The annual bonus opportunities of

2015 to 2016 was a transitional year for the Company as a result of the 200% of salary and 120% of salary for the CEO and the CFO respectively

public listing of the Company on 18 November 2015 Extensive work was are competitive against FTSE 250 companies of a similar size s ts the

undertaken by the senior management team in preparation for the 1PO annual long-term incentive opportunity of 200% of satary The achievement
to ensure is success of these incentlves s subject te stretching annual and multi-year targets

Throughout the transition and post-IPO, the CEQ the CFO and the senior - The Committee notes that in developing the proposed Palicy and the
management leam have continued to drive the Company’s strategy apphication of the Policy for our Executive Directors for 20167, it reviewed
the total remuneration opportunity with the mix of conservalive base salary

* to deliver long-term sustainable growth

The effectiveness of the senior management team In Implementing this levels and competitive vanable incentive opportunities The current
strategy has been substantiated in the actual level of achievement of the remungration framework results 1n a target opportunity for our Executive
Company’s KPIs {outlined on page 21),1n particular our strong performance Directors around the market lower quartile of FTSE 250 companies

against our operating profit targets which resulted In 99% of the maximum

bonuses being earned by the Executive Directors +  Overall the Committee Is satlsfied that the Remuneration Policy belng

proposed in this document and the application of that Policy reflect our
specific Company needs and the profile of our curient Executive Directors
and supports the business in its next stage of development

Remuneration Commitee decisions

and activity following the IPO

The Company's Remuneration Policy and practices were reviewed extensvely
in preparation for the IPQ to ensure appropnate remuneration arrangements
were In place to support Company strategy followng the hsting of the Company

The Policy that the Commuttee has developed and the implementation of
that Policy has been carefully considered to support the business strategy
The Commiitee has developed a remuneratien framework and pelicy which
adheres to practice that is fit for purpose for a FTSE 250 company The
Commitiee’s objective Is 1o operate this Policy to ensure that our Executive
Directors have a remuneration structure and total remuneration opportunsty
that is algned to Soficat’s business and 15 compelitive when assessed
agamst the market we compete for talent i
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN'’S ANNUAL STATEMENT CONTINUED

Remuneration Committee decisions

and activity following the IPO continved

Since the IPQ, we have taken the opportunily to review all the key components
of remuneration outhned above 1o ensure that the proposed Remuneration
Policy 1s fit for purpose for a listed company and aligns with the Company's
strategic objectives and sharehclder expectations

In addition, we have undertaken the following activities as a
Remuneration Commitiee

+ determined the Committee’s terms of reference,
- formulated the Company's Remuneration Policy as a listed company, and
- completed the Company s first Remuneration Report as a listed company

We shared our Policy with our top shareholders and the main shareholder
bodies in September prior ta its formal publication [t was a valuable
opportunity to receive feedback on our Remuneration Policy

Two resolutions will be put to shareholders at the AGM

We will first seek approval for the Remuneratlon Pellcy Report (Part A pages
4710 56) This outlines the Company’s Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors
effective from the 2016 Annual General Meeting {AGM} The vote 1s binding
on the Remuneration Committee and has a duration of up to three years

The second resolution 1s seeking approval for the Annual Report on
Remuneration (Part B pages 57 to 61) It detads decrsions and actions
taken by the Committee based on the performance of the Company
and remuneration cansequences This section of the report Is subject
to an annual advisory vote

Our goat has been to be thoughtful and clear in the tayout of both parts
of the report and | look forward to your support on both resolutions

| welcome any feedback from the Company's shareholders

Peter Ventress
Chairman of the Remuneraton Committee
19 October 2016
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Notes
An evaluation of the Remuneration Commnttee s effecliveness will be conducted after a full year
of operatton
This report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium sized
Companies and Groups [Accounts and Reports) Regulaticns 2008 as amended in 2013 the provisions
of the current Corperate Governance Code and taking into account the new UK Corporate
Governance Code (applying for financial years beginning on or after 1 Octaber 2014 {the Code’)
and the Lisung Rules The Report consists of three sections
the Annual Statement by the Remuneration Committee Chalman and associated ata glance section
the Remuneration Policy Report which sets out the Compary’s Remuneration Policy for Directors
and the key factors that were taken Into account in setting the policy This pollcy witl apply for
three years from Hs date of approval at the 2016 AGM and
the Annual Report on Remuneratlon which sets out payments made to the Directors and detalls
the fink between Company performance and remuneration for the 2016 financlal year
The Chairmans Annual Statement and the Annual Report on Remuneration will be subject to an
advisory vote at the AGM The Remuneration Policy will be subject to a bindling vote



AT A GLANCE

INTRODUCTION

In this section, we set out the remuneration outcomes for
the 2016 financial year and an overview of our proposed
Remuneration Policy for FY17 (subject to a binding vote by
shareholders at our 2016 AGM).

2016 financial year

Remuneraghon outcomes

FY16 was a transitional year for the Company as we successfully floated in November 2015 to become a listed company This marks a ssgnificant change
for the Company and for the roles of our Executive Directors

Despite the backdrop of changes for the Company in FY16, the Company delivered strong operational performance m the year Our 2016 results and the
associated annual bonus outcomes outlined below reflect the petformance measures and targets putin place from the start of our 2016 financial yeay
and the extent o which they were satisfied

2016 annval bonus outcomes

In respect of FY16, the bonus awards payable to Executive Directors were agreed by the Committee having reviewed the Company s results The FY16 annual
bonus structure was put in place pre-IPO comprising of a quarterly and annual assessment of performance The new annual bonus structure operating in
FY17 15 outiined on pages 48 to 49

Annual bonus payout

Actualasa %
Performance of maximum Martin Gragham
Performance condition penod Threshold Target Maximum Actual opportunity Hellawell Charlton
a1 £8 10m £9 00m £927m €8 70m 85%2 £20 400 £17,000
Q2 €9 85m £1094m £1127m £1137m 100% £24,000 £20 000
Normalised operating profit! Q3 £1140m £1267m £1305m £14 44m 100% £24,000 £20,000
Q4 £11 64m £1294m €13 32m £1333m 100% £24 000 £20 000
Annual {FY 16} £40 99m £45 55m £46 9tm £47 83m 100% £237 600 £98,000
Total £330,000 £175,000

Notes
1 Normalised operating profit Is defined as adjusted operating profit before the Impact of incremental public company governance costs of £108m

2 The FY16 Bonus Plan implemented befare IPO had a payoul range whereby operating profit wathin the range 95% - 9% 99% of target resulted in 85% of maximum bortus payoul for the quartet
The bonus was patd In full as performance exceeded the maximum requirement of 103% of target The FY17 Bonus Flan has a new structure and the schedule can te found on pages 48 10 49

The bonuses earnad by Maruin Hellawell and Graham Charlton in FY15, when the Company was a prvate company, amounted Lo £164 700 and £28,500
respectively Graham Charltor joined the Company in January 2015

No discretion was exercised by the Committee in relation to the outcome of the annual bonus awards The FY16 bonus will be paid in cash

Long-term incenhves awarded
On 21 December 2015, awards under the Company’'s Long Term Incentive Plan {'LTIPy were made to the Executive Directors

LTIP award LFIP award
Executive Birector (% of salary) [shares) Award date
Martin Hellawell 200 208 333 21112115
Graham Charlton 200 141 666 211215

No LTIP awards were made to the Executive Directors in FY15

Equity exposure of the Executive Directors
The followsng table sets out all subsisting mterests in the equity of the Company held by the Executive Directors at 31 July 2016

The CEQ's shareholdings are substantially in excess of the Company's minimum sharehotding requirement of 200% of base salary The CFQ who jomed the
Company in January 2015 1s buiding up his shareholding The Committee expects tim to build up to the mimmunm shareholding requirement of 150% of satary
over a five-year perlod from approval of the Remuneration Policy
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

AT A GLANCE CONTINUED

2016 financial year continued
Equity exposure of the Executive Directors continued

Value of Value of/gain

Shareholding requirement Benetically beneficially owned shares on interests over shares
[% of salary) owned shares (% of salan)' (1 e unvested/unexercised awards)

Martin Hellawell 200 14,784,399 20540 291%
Graham Charlion 150 616 1 290%

Notes

1 As at31 Jjuly 2016 This is based on a closing share price of £3 473 at 31 July 2016 and the year end salaries of the Executive Directors Values are not calculated for Non Executive Directors as they
are not sebject to shareholding requlsements

2 Indicative value of outstanding LTIP awards made in December 2015 - Martin Hellaweli (208,333 shares) and Graham Charlton (141 666 shares) based on share price as at 31 July 2016

The number of shares of the Company In which current Directors had a beneficial Interest as at 31 July 2016 are set out In detail on page 59
2017 financial year
Qur proposed Remuneration Policy for implementation in 2017

On the IPO the remuneration arrangements for the Company were updated to reflect the Company’s new public status and to allgn with Company strategy
as It transiticned into a histed environment as a FTSE 250 company

The Remuneration Commuttee has reviewed and considered the key components of remuneration since the IPO to ensure that the proposed Remuneration
Palicy (s fit for purpose and aligned with the expectations of a listed company

Our proposed Remuneration Policy (summarnised below) has been desrgned to align remuneration of our Executive Directors with Company strategy and to
drive continued success within a remuneration framework that meets the shareholder and governance expectations of a FTSE 250 company

Key elements and time perlod

Year + +2 +3 +4 +§  Overview of Remuneration Policy for 2017

For 2017, base salarles for the CEQ and the CFO will be £257 500 and £175 100 respectively

8asa salary This is a rise from the previous year of 3%

Pension The maximum contribution Into the defined contribution plan er a salary supplement In lieu
of pension will be 20% of gross basic salary

Banehts Standard benefils will be provided See Remuneration Policy for further details
The Commuttee car determine the proportion of the bonus earmed under the ABP that is provided

‘;‘;‘"U?‘LBB:"WS as an award of deferred shares

o(? (n ! For 2017 the maximum bonus ocpportunities for the CEC and the CFO will be 200% and 120%
as of salary respectively
Defetred

share award The annual bonus performance cendiion for 201715 ad|usted operating profit
The level of deferral in shares will be one third of the borus earned

The performance conditons for LTIP awards will be egually weighted between eamings per share [EPS?)
growth and comparative tolal shareholder return | TSR') assessed over a three-year performance period
For the achievernent of threshotd performance, 25% of the award will vest 100K of the award will
vest for maximum performance There Is straight-line vesting between these polnts

LTIP In 2017 the maximum annual LTIP award of 200% of salary will be awarded to the CEQ and the CFQ

The Commitiee will review prior to each grant whether ta place an additional helding pencd post
vesting (of up to twe years) It [s the Committee s Intention not 10 do this for the FY17 award due
10 the matenal shareholding which the CEQ has in Soficat and the CFG new in role 15 in the
process of building up his equity stake in the Company up to his minimum shareholding
requlrement of 150% of salary

NED annual fees

2017

annual fee
Chairman £103,000
Board fee £46,350
Semor independent Director £5,150
Committee Chairmanship (per Committee) £10,300

The NED annual fees for FY17 in the table above represent a nise from the previous year of 3% consistent with the base salary mcrease for Executive Directors

The Committee proposes to implement the policy for the 2017 financial year for the Non-Executive and Executive Directors subject to shareholder approval at our
2016 AGM Further details of the Remuneration Policy and how our proposed Remuneration Policy aligns to Company strategy 1s set out in the following section
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PART A - DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

INTRODUCTION

in accordance with the remuneration reporting regulations, the Directors’
Remuneration Policy (the ‘Policy’) as set out below will become formally
effective at the AGM on 8 December 2016, subject to shareholder approval,
and will apply for a period of three years from the date of approval.

The Company’s core prnciples of remuneration are

»  to ensure top Executives are attracted, retained and motivated
to drive the Company In its next stage of development postHPQ

« o incentivise management in extending the Company’s leadership
in the IT Infrastructure solutlons industry, and

- to deliver long-term sustainable growth

The Committee will review annually all elements of remuneration, including
the base salary, annual bonus levels, proportion of bonus to be deferred in
shares and annual and long-term incentive performance conditions for the
Executive Diractors and selected members of the senior management team

drawing on trends and adjusiments made {o all employees acress the
Company and taking into consideration

= our business strategy

- overall Company performance,

» market conditions,

« views of key stakeholders of the business
« corporate governance censiderations and

« changing views of nstdutional shareholders and their representative bodies

Qur Remuneration Policy and its link te our Company sirategy

The Company's strategy Is laid out on page 20

Ensuring the alignment of the proposed Remuneration Policy to the Company strategy was key for the Remuneration Committee in developing the proposed
Policy below The key elements of the Company's strategy and how its successful implementation 1s Inked to the Company’s remuneralion are set out i the

following table

Remuneration Pelicy
(from the date of sharekolder approval)

Generate sector igading
value for shareholders

Growth in proflt from
existing customers

Strategic priorities
Equity ownership Retain and reward
and retention exétulive team
Win new customers of shares to deliver the strategy

Annual bonus

The maximum benus

{including any part of the bonus
deferred into an ABP award)
deliverable under the ABP

will nat exceed 200%

Adusted operating profit

The key performance indicator for the Cempany The Committee belleves that the Directors
should focus on this key metric during the financial year to malntain high profit growth and the
success of the business fotlowing the IPO to detiver value for aur shareholders

of & participant s annual Growth In this metric is a direct demenstration of the successful execution of our business
base salary siraiegy Including winning new customers and growth of profit from existing customers
LTIP
Maximum annual award 15 normally
200% of salary EPS and TSR TSR EPS

The success n maxmising The generation of profit An incentive to grow this

Awards will vest at the end of three years profit g wil be measured
For 2016 the performance conditions for through the long term EPS
awards are equally welghted between  youn targeted by the LTIP

+  eamings per share (EPS) growth and In adcibion sustained value

comparative total shareholder generation wi be reflected n
return [ TSR the share pnce of the Company,
which will be measured through

growth targeted by the anaual
benus wil help enhance the
value of the Company which
will be measured through the
success of the Company s
TSR performance against its
comparators {a performance

market in the longer term is
provided through EFS growth
targeted by the LTIP The
success of this element of the
strategy should be ceflected in
long term TSR performance

the Company's TSR performance  condition under the LTIP)

urler the LTIP

Share Incantive Plan ('SIPY)

Mimimum shareholding
requirements

Chief Executive Officer 200% of salary
- Chief Financtal Officer 150% of salary

Softcat plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016 a7

sauewaneh ayiodio]



Remuneration Committee Report continued

PART A - DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Remuneration Policy table
Remuneration Policy aim

The Committee has developed a remuneration framework and policy which adheres 1o practice that is fit for purpase for a FTSE 250 company
The Committee's objective I1s to operate this policy to ensure that our Executive Direciors have a remuneration structure and total remuneration
opportunlty that s aligned 1o Softcat s business and is competitive when assessed agalnst the market we compete for talent In

Element of How It supports the Company $
remunetation shaort and long term strategic objectives Operation
Salary Provides a base level of remuneration tc support An Executive Director s basic salary is set on appeintment and reviewed annually or when there is a

reciuitment and retention of Execulive Directors with
the necessary experlence and expert:se to defliver the

change In positon of respensibllity
When determining an appropriate level of salary the Committee considers

Company s siraiegy + temuneration practices within the Company
the general performance of the Company,
salares within the ranges paid by the companles in the comparator group used for
remuneration benchmarking
any ¢<hange In scope role and responsibiliies and
+ the economic environment
Indivduats who are recruited or promoted to the Board may, on occaslon have their salarles set betow
the targeted pelicy level until they become established In thelr rote In such cases subsequent increases
In salary may be higher than the general rises for employees unill the target positioning is achieved
Benefits Provides a benefits package in line with practice relative The Executive Directors receive private health insurance life insurance and death in service benefit

to its comparator group 10 enable the Company to recrult
and retain Executive Directors with the experience ang

expertse to deliver the Company's strategy

The Committee recognises the need to maintain suitable flexiblity in the benefits provided to cnsure
it Is able to support the objective of atiracting and retainng personnel in order lo dellver the Company
stralegy Additiona! benefits may therefore be offered such as retocatlon allowances on recruitment

The maximum will be set at the cost of providing the beneflis described

Pensions Provides a pension provision in line with practice relative
1o its comparator group 10 enable the Company 1o recruit
and retain Executive Directors with the experience and

expertise to celiver the Company s strategy

Pensian arrangements are provided in line with practice relatlve to its comparator group to enable

the Company te recruit and retain Executive Directors with the experlence and expertise to deliver

the Company $ strategy

The Company operates a defined contribution { DCY) scheme The Exocutive Directors are entilled to
receive a maximum employer contnbunion into the BC scheme or a salary supplementn lieu of pension
of 20% of basic salary per annum

Element of How it supperts the Company s

remuneration short and long term strategic objecives Qperation

Annual and The Bonus Plan prowides a stgnidicant Incentive to The maximum bonus ncluding ary part of the bonus deferred inte share awards) dellverable under the Bonus
Deferrad the Executlve Directors linked 10 achievement In Plan will be up to 200% of a participant s annual base salary

Bonus Plan celivering goals that are closely aligned with the The Board wili determine the bonus to be delivered following the end of the relevant financial year

{'the Borus Plan’y Company s strategy and the creaticn of value

for shareholders

In particular the Bonus Plan supports the Company s
cbjectives allowing the setting of annual targets
based on the business strategy at the tIme, meaning
that a wider range of performance metrics can be

used that are relevant and achievable

The Commitiee has gisceetion to defer part of the
annual bonus earned In shares urder the Bonus

Plan The advantage of deferral Is

increased alignment between Executives and
shareholders created through deferrat and the
increased equity stake of management in the

Company and

amounts deferred in shares are subject to a
Director s centinuing employment which

provides an effective lock-In

The Company will set out In the section headed Implementation of Remuneration Policy, in the following
financlal year the nature of the targets and thelr weighting for each year

Detalts of the performance conditions targets and thelr level of satlsfaction for the year being reported on wiit
be set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration

The Commitiee can determine that part of the borus eamed under the Bonus Plan Es provided as an award of shares
The maximum value of deferred shares is 50% of the bonus earned
The main terms of these awards are
+ minimum deferral pertod of three years, during which ra performance conditions will apply and

the panicipant s continued employment at the end of the delerral period unless he/she Is a goed leaver
The Committee may award dvidend equivalents on those shares to plan participants to the extent that they vest.

The Commitiee will review prior to each annual bonus year whether to place additional holding periods
(of up 10 two years) past-vesting of the deferred bonus shares
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Maximum opporiunity

The Commitiee ensures that maximum salary levels are positicned in Iine with companies of a simllar size to Softcat and valldaled against companies operating In a similar sector so that
total remuneration opportunity (base salary benefits annuak bonus and Jong term Incentives) for the Executive Directors s competlitve against the market

When assessing salary levets the Commitiee will consider levels n the comparator group made up of organisations in the FTSE 250 fexcluding financial services real estate and equity
Investment trusts) and sector peer companies of comparable slze to Softeat

The Commuttee intends to review the comparalor groups each year and may add o remove companies from the greup as it considers appropriate Any changes to the comparater group
will be set out in the section headed Implementatien of Remuneration Policy in the following financial year

Ingeneral salary increases lor Exerutive Duectors will be infine with the merease for employees.
The Company will set out In the section headed Implementation of Remuneration Poficy in the following financlal year the salaries for that year for each of the Executive Directors

See description of benefits in previous column

The maximum contrlbution [nto the defined contributior plan or a salary supplement in lieu of penslon will be 20% of gress basic salary

The Company will set out in the sectien headed Implementatien of Remuneration Policy in the following financial year the pension coninbutions for that year fos each of the
Executive Directors

Maximum opportunity Performance metrics

Percentage of bonus maximum earned for levels of performance An award under the Bonus Pfan s subject to satisfying financial and strategic/operational performance/
Threshold 0% personak performance conditions and targets measured over a perlod of one financtal year

Ontarget up 10 60% A minimum of 50% of the borus shall be based on financial performance measures

Maximum 100% The Board will determine the bonus to be delivered following the end af the relevant financial year
The annual bonus will be pald in cash and deferred shares The Comrutiee Is of the opinion that given the commercial sensitvty arising in selation 10 the detalled

financial targets used for the annual bonus, disclosing precise targets for the Bonus Plan in advance

would not be in shareholders Interests Targets perdfarmance achieved and awards made will be

published at the end of the performance perlod so shareholders can fully assess the basis for any

payouts undet the Bonus Plan

In exceptional clrcumstances the Commitiee retains the discretion to

«+ change the performance measures and targets and the weighting attached to the performance
measures and iargels partway through a performance year if there Is a significant and material
event which causes the Committee to beligve the original measures weightings and targets are
no longer appropriate and

« make downward or upward adjustments 1o the amount of bonus eamed resulting from the applicauon
of the performance measures If the Committee believes that the bonus outcomes are not a fair and
accurate reflection of business performance

Any adjustments ar discretion applied by the Committee will be fully disclosed in the following year s

Remunetation Report

The Bonus Plan contains clawback and malus provisions
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

PART A - DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Remuneration Policy table continued

Element of How it suppons the Company’s

remuneralion short and lang term strategic objectives Operation

tong Term The purpose of the LTIP Is to incentivise and Awards are granted annually to Executive Directors n the form of a condiuonal share award nil-cost option

Incentive Plan
('LTIP’)

reward £xecutve Dlrectors in relatlon 10

long term performance and achievement

of Company strategy

This will better align Executive Directors interests
with the long term interests of the Company and
act as a retention mechanlsm

The use of comparative TSR measures the success
of the iImplementation of the Company's strategy in
delivering an above-market level of return

The use of EPS ensures Execulive Directors are
focused on long-term financizl performance to
ensurse this flows through to long-term sustainable
EPS growth

of restricted share award

Detalls of the perfermance conditions for grants made In the year will be set out In the Annua! Report on
Remuneration ang for {uture grants In the section headed implementation of Remuneratlon Poffcy in the
future financial year

Awards will vest at the end of a three-year perlod subject to

+ the Execuilve Rirector s continued employment at the date of vesting, and

«+ satisfaction of the performance cenditlens

The Committee may award dividerd equivalents on awards 1o the extent tha these vest

The Committee will review, prior to 2ach LTIP grant whether to place addltional hotding perfods {of up
to two years) post-vesting

Share Incentive
Plan ('SIP7)

The SIP Is an all-employee share ownership plan
which has been deslgaed to encourage all
employees 10 become sharehoiders in the
Company and thereby align thelr interests

with shareholders

The Company operates an SIP in which the Executive Directors are eligible to participate {which Is In line with
HMRC legistation and is open 1o all eligible staff}

The Executive Directors wil also be eligible to participate In any other all empleyee arrangement
implemented by the Company

Mimmum
shareholding
requirement

The Commitiee has adepted formal sharcholding g
hold a shareholding equivalent to a percentage of

uidelines that will encourage the Executive Directors to build up over a five-year period and then subsequently
base salary Adherence to these guldellnes Is a condition of continued participation i the equity incentive

arrangements This poticy ensures that the Interests of Executive Directars and those of shareholders are closely aligned

lllustrations of the application of the Remuneration Policy
The charts below illustrate the remuneratlon that would be pald to each of the Executive threctors for the financlat year 2016 to 2017, under three different
performance scenarlos (1) minimum, (i) on-target, and {ill) maximum The elements of remuneration have been categorised Into three components {)) fixed

{i} annual bonus

{deferred bonus) and (i) LTIP

Chief Executive Officer (Martin Hellawel})

Chief Financial QOfficer {(Graham Charlton)
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Maximum opportunity

Performance metrics

Normal maximum value of up to 200% of salary pa based on the market value
at the date of grant set In accordance with the rules of the LTIP

In exceptonat circumstances the Committee may grant an award with &
maximum of up to 250% of salary

25% of the award will vest for threshold performance

100% of the award will vest for mayimum performance There is straightdine
vesting between these points

The performance conditions for the 2076 LTIP awards are eamnings per share [EPS ) growth and refauve
total shareholder retvm { TSR }

The Committee may change the balance of the measures or use different measures for subsequent
awards as appropriate

Na material change will be made to the type of performance conditions without prior shareheider consultation
in exceptional circumstances the Committee retains the discretion to

- vary substitute or watve the performance conditions applying ta LTIP awards 1§ the Board considers 1
appropriate and the new performance conditfons are deemed reasonable and are not materially less
difficutt 1o satisfy than the original conditions and

make downward or upward adjestments fo the amount vesting under the LTIP resulting from the
appiication of the performance measures if the Committee belleves that the cutcomes are not a falr
and accurate rellection of business performance

The LTIP contains clawback and malus provisions

The maximums set by legislation from time to time

The Company in accordance with the tegislation may impose objective conditicns on participation in the
SIP for employeses

The following table 5ets out the minimum shareholding requirements

Rote Shareholding requirement (% of salary)
Chief Executive Officer 200
Chlef Financlal Otficer 150

The Comrmuttee retalns the discretion 1o Increase the shareholding requirements

The table below sets out the assumptions used to calculate the elements of remuneration for each of the scenanos set out 1n the charts opposite

Element Description

Minimum Target Maximum

Fixed Salary benefits and pensien’

Included Included Included

Annual bonus Aanuat bonus (including deferred shares)
Maximum opportunity of 200% of salary for the CED

and 120% for the CFO

No annual varlable

650% of maximum bonus 100% of maximum bonus

LTIP Award under the LTIP
Maximum annual award of 200% of salary

No multiple-year variable

50% of the maximum award 100% of the maximum award

Notes

1 Based on 2016 benellts payments and pension values as per the single figure table The actual benefits and pension contibutions for 2017 will only be known at the end of the financlal year

See page 57 for the single figure 1able and the accompanying notes

T N1

In accordance with the regulations share price growih has not been incuded In additon dividend equivalents have not been added to the defered share boaus and LTIP share awards
Participation In the SIP has been excluded given the relative size of the opportunity levels
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

PART A - DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Hlustrations of the application of the Remuneration Policy continued
Pay at nsk
The charts below set out the single figure of each Executlve Director based on whether the elements remain at risk For example

payment 13 subject to continuing employment for a period (deferred shares and LTIP awards), or
performance conditlons have to still be satisfied {LTIP awards} or

elements are subject to clawback or malus for a penod over which the Company can recover sums paid or withhold vesting Further details of what
tnggers clawback or malus are set out below

Figures have heen catculated based on target performance The charts have been based on the same assumptions as set out above for the illustrations of
the application of the Remuneration Policy

Chief Executive Officer {(Martin Hellawell)

Annpual bonus £309,600 |- -------- ‘i --------- }A _________

mpg2s7s00 [T l ‘
01617 2017118 2018119 2019/20 202021 2021722

------ Subject to malus Subject to clawback Sublect 1o performance

Al risk £566 500 Salary £257 500 Pension and benefits £771

Chief Financial Officer (Graham Charlton)

Annual borus £126,000 |' ________ '| -------- l' -------- ]

LTIP £175,000 , l

201617 201718 201819 2019/20 20201 202422

...... Subject to maius Subject to clawback Subjeci to performance

Atrisk £301000 Salary £175 Q00 Pension and benefits £5 246

Malus and clawback
The follawing describes the malus and clawback prowsions in the ncentive ptans

Malus 15 the adjustment of unpaid bonus, outstanding LTIP awards and deferred share bonus awards under the Bonus Plan as a result of the occurrence
of one or more circumstances listed below The adjustment may result in the value being reduced to 2ero

Clawback 15 the recovery of payments under the Bonus Plan or vested LTIP awards as a result of the occurrence of one or more of the circumstances
hsted below

The crcumstances in which malus and clawback could apply are as follows

-

52

the discovery that the assessment of any performance target or condition in respect of a Bonus Award or LTIP award was based on error or ingccurate
or misleading information, and/or

the discovery that any mformation used to determine the number of ordinary shares subject to a Bonus Award or LTIP award was based on error, of
waccurate or misleading information andfor

the action of conduct of a holder of a Bonus Award or LTIP award which, in the reasonabie opinion of the Board, amounts to fraud or gross misconduct, and/or

events or behaviour of a holder of a Bonus Award or LTIP award leading 1o the censure of the Company by a regulatory authonty or having a srgnificant
detnmental impact on the reputatlon of the Company provided that the Board Is satisfied that the relevant holder of a Bonus Award or LTIP award was
responsible for the censure or reputational damage and that the censure or reputational damage 1s stinbutable to him
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Malus and clawback continued

Annual Bonus Plan Deferred Bonus Plan Long Term incentive Plan

Malus Up to the date of payment of a cash bonus
Clawback

To the end of the three year deferal perlod To the end of the three year vesting period

Three years post the bonus determination nfa Two years post vesting

The Committee believes that the rules of the plans provide sufficient powers to enforce malus and ctawback where required

Discretion
The Committee has discretion in several areas of pobcy as set out in this report

The Commuttee may also exercise operational and admimistrative discretions under relevant plan rules approved by shareholders as set out in those rules (n
addition, the Committee has the discretion to @mend policy with regard to minor or administrative matters where it would be, in the opinion of the
Committee, disproportignate to seek or await shareholder approval

1t 1s the Commttee’s intention that commitments made in line wath 1ts policies prior to admission wilt be honoured, even if satisfaction of such commitments
is made post the Company s first AGM following admission and may be Incansisient with policy

sdueusanob ajesodion

Recrvitment policy

The Company’s principle 1s that the remuneration of any new Executive Director recruited will be assessed i line with the same principles as for the incumbent
Executive Directors, as set out 1n the Remuneration Policy table above The Committee 1s mingful that it wishes to avoid paying mare than it considers necessary
to secure a preferred candidate with the appropriate calibre and experience needed for the role In setting the remuneration for new recruits, the Committee
will have regard to guidelines and shareholder sentiment regarding cne-off or enhanced shart-term or long-term Incentive payments as welt as considering
the appropnateness of any performance measures associated with an award

The Company’s detalled policy when setiing remuneration for the apponiment of new Directors 1s summansed in the table below

Remuneration element

Recrultment policy

Salary, benefits
and pension

These will be set In line with the policy for existing Executive Dlrectors

Annual bonus Maximum annual particlpation will be set in line with the Company s policy for existing Executive Directors and will not exceed 200% of salary

LTIP Maximum annual particlpabon will be set in line with the Company’s policy for existing Executive Directors and will not exceed 200% of salary in normal
circumstances and 250% of salary In exceptional arcumstances

‘Buyout’ of Where the Commitiee dewermines that the indmdual circumstances of recrutment Justifies the provision of a buyous the equivalent vatue of any Incentlves

incentives forfertad
on cessahion
of employment

that will be forfeited on cessation of an Executive Director s previous employment will be calculated taking inte account the following
- the proportion of the performance period completed on the date of the Executive Director s cessatlon of employment,

- the perdformance condltions attached Lo the vesting of these incentives and the likelthood of them belng satlsfied and

- any other terms and conditions having a materlal effect on their value ( fapsed value’)

The Committee may then grant an award up to the same value as the lapsed value where possible under the Company s incentive pians To the extent that
it was not possible or practical to provide the buyout wathin the terms of the Company s existng incentive plans, a bespoke arrangement would be used

Maximum vanable
remuneraton

The { variable r

ation which may be granted in normal circumstances is 400% of salary {450% of satary I the maximurn LTIP grant is made)

Where an existing employee 1s promoted to the Board, the policy set out above would apply from the date of promotion but there would be no retrospective
apphication of the policy in relation to subsisting incentive awards or remuneratron arrangements Accosdingly, prevailing elements of the remuneration
package for an exising employee would be honoured and form part of the ongoing remuneration of the person concerned These would be disclosed to
shareholders in the remuneratton report for the relevant financial year

The Company's policy when setting fees for the appoiniment of new Non-Executive Directors is to apply the policy which applies to current Non-Executive Directors
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

PART A - DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Payment for loss of office

The Committee will honour Executive Directors contractual entitlements Service contracts do not contain iquidated damages clauses [f @ contract 1s to be
terminated the Committee will determine such mitigation as it considers fair and reasonable in each case There 1s no agreement between the Company

and rts Executive Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid

The Commuttee reserves the nght to make addittonal payments where such payments are made in geod faith in discharge of an existing legal obligation
{or by way of damages for breach of such an obligation} or by way of settlement or compromise of any clalm ansing in connection with the ermination
of an Executlve Director’s office or employment

Etement Overdew of policy

Principles The Committee will honour Executive Directors contractual entltlements
If @ contract 15 1¢ be terminated the Committee will determine such mitigation as it considers fair and reasonable In each case

Salary, benefits These will be paid over the notice perlcd The Company has discretion to make a payment &5 set out above 1h addition provisien is retained to make
and ponsion a payment in lleu of notice
Cash bonus awards Good leavers performanca conditfons will be measured at the bonus measurement date Bonuses will normally be pro-rated for the period warked during

the financial year
Other leavers no bonus payable for year of cessation
Discretion — the Remuneration Committee has the following elements of discretion

+ 10 determine that an Executlve is a good leaver Itis the Commitiee s intentlon 1o only use this discretion is crcumstances where there Is an appropriate

business case which wilt be explained in full to shareholders and

to determine whether to pro-rate the bonus to time The Remuneration Committee s norma! policy is that it will pro rate bonus for time Tt is the
Remuneration Comimittee s Intention to use discretion o not pro rate in circumstances where there 15 an appropriate business case which will be
explalned In full to shareholders

Share bonus awards Good leavers all subsisting deferred share awards will vest at the end of the original deferral perlod
Other leavers lapse of any unvested deferred share awards
Discretion — the Remuneration Commitiee has the following elements of discretion

to determine that an Executive Is a good leaver It Is the Remuneration Committee’s intentlon to only use tms discretion in circumstances where there is

an approprlate business case which will be explained n full to shareholders

- tovest deferred shares a1 the end of the original deferral peried er at the date of cessation The Remuneration Committee wilt make this determination

depending on the type of good leaver reason resulting in the cessation, and

« to determine whether to pro-rate the maximum number of shares to the time from the date of grant to the date of cessation The Remuneration
Committee s normai pedicy Is that it will not pro-rate awards for ime The Remuneration Committee will determine whether to pro-rate based on the
clrcumstances of the Executive Director s departure

LTIP Good leavers pro rated to time and performance in respect of each subslsting LTIP award
Other leavers lapse of any unvested LTIP awards
Discretion — The Remuneration Committee has the followlng elements of discretion

to determine that an Executhve is a good leaver I1is the Remunerailon Commitiee s Intention to only use this discretion In drcumstances where there Is

an appropriate business case which will be explained in full to shareholders
+ to measure performance aver the original performance period or at the date of cessation The Remuneration Committee will make this determination
depenging on the type of good teaver reason resulting in the cessation and
to determine whether to pro-rate the maximum number of shares to the time from the date of grant 1o the date of cessation The Remuneration
Committee s normal policy is that it will pro rate awards for time ki is the Remuneration Committee s intention to use discretion to not pro-rate in
circumstances where thete is an appropnate business case which wili be explained In full to shareholders

Other contractual There are no other contractual prowisions other than those set out above, agreed prior te 27 June 2012
obligations

A good leaver reason Is defined as cessation in the following circumstances

+ death, - retrement,
= Al heatth, » transfer of employment to a company which is not a Group company and
« injury or disabilty, - atthe discretion of the Committee {as descrnibed above)

- redundancy,

Cessation of employment in crcumstances other than those set out above I1s cessation for other reasons
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Change of control
The Committee’s policy on the vesting of incentives on a change of control 15 summarised below

Name of incenttve plan

Change of control

Discretion

ABP cash awards

Pro rated to time and performance to the date
of the change of control

The Committee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the bonus to time The Committee s normal policy
Is that it will pro-rate the bonus for time [t is the Commitiee s intention to use its distretion o not pro-rate m
circumnstances only where there Is an approprate business case wtiich will be explained in fulf to shareholders

ABP deferred
share awards

Subsisting deferred share awards will vest
on a change of control

The Committee has discretion regarding whether to pro-rate the award to ime The Commlitee s normal
policy Is that it will not pro-rate awards for tme The Committee will make this determlaation depending on

the circumstances of the change of control

LTIP

The number of shares subject to subsisting
LTIP awards will vest on a change of control
pro rated to time and performance

The Committee will determing the proportion of the LTIP award which vests taking into account, among other
factors the period of ime the LTIP award has been held by the participant and the extent to which any
applicable performance conditions have been satisfied at that ime

Non-Executive Director remuneration

Element of remuneration

How it supports the Company's
short and long-term strategic ebjectives

Operation

Performance

Opportunity metics

Non-Executive
Director and
Chatrman fees

Provides a level of fees to support recrultment
and retention of Non Executive Directors and
a Chairman with the necessary experience

to advise and assist with establishing and
monitoring the Company s strategic objectives

The Board Is responsible for setiing the
remuneration of the Non-Executive Direclors
The Remunesation Committee Is responsible
for setting the Chalrman s fees

Non Executive Directors are paid an annual
fee and additional fees for chairmanship

of Committees The Chairman does not
receive any additional fees for membership
of Committees

Fees are reviewed annually based on
equivalent roles in the comparatos group
used to review salarles paid (o the Executive
Directors. Fees are set at breadly the median
of the comparator group

Non Executive Directors and the Chalrman
do not paruieipate in any variable
remuneration or benefils arrangements

The fees for Non-Executive Directors and the  None
Chalrman are set at broadly the median of

the comparatar group

tn general the level of fee increase for the
Non-Executive Dlrectors and the Chairman

will be set taking account of any change

In responsibility and wil! take into account

the generai rise in salaries across the

UK workforce

The Company will pay reasonable expenses
incurred by the Man Executrve Directors and
the Chairman and may seftle any tax
incurred in relation to these

Executive Director contracts and letters of appointment for Chalrman and Non-Executive Directors
Execuhve Directors

Notice periods

Compensation

Nature From From provistons for

Name Date of service contract of contract Company Director early termination
Martin Hellawell 29 October 2015 Rolting Twelve menths Twelve months None
Graham Charlton 29 October 2015 Rotling Twelve months Twelve months None

Non-Executiva Directors

Name Date of letter of appointment
Brian Wallace 29 October 2015'
tee Ginsberg 4 August 2015
Vin Murna 3 November 2015
Peter Ventress 29 September 2015

Note

1 Commencement date as Chalrman 1July 2014

The Committee's policy for setting notice penods is that a twelve-month period will apply for Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (including the Chairman) do not have service contracts The Non-Executive Directors are appointed by letters

of appoiniment Each Independent Non-Executive Director s term of office runs for a three-year period

The imtial terms of the Non-Executive Directors' positions are subject to their re-election by the Company's sharehalders at the AGM and to re-election
al any subsequent AGM at which the Non-Executive Directors stand for re-election

All Directors will be put forward for re-election by shareholders on an annual basis
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

PART A - DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Statement of considerations of employment conditions elsewhere in the Company
The Remuneration Policy for all employees is determined in terms of best practice and ensunng that the Company 1s able to attract and retain the best
people This principle is followed in the development of our Policy

The remuneration strategy of the Company has been designed to ensure all employees share i its success through performance-related remuneration
and share ownership On IPO two new remuneralion arrangements were introduced the LTIP for Executive Directors and annual bonus deferral fer some
members of the semor team Awards under both these plans will provide alignment between semior leaders and our shareholders based on overalt
corporate performance of the business

For all employees the Company has adopted a SIP Under the new plans, all employees will have the opportunity to purchase shares in the Company subject
to certain restrictions

The Company does not use remuneration comparison measurements nor have employees been consulted directly on the Policy In setting the Remuneration
Policy for Directors, the pay and conditions of other employees of Company are taken into account, including any base salary increases awarded

The Committee 15 prowided with data on the remuneration structure for management-level hiers below the Executive Directors and uses this information
lo ensure consistency of appreach throughout the Company

Link to objectives
The following table demonstrates how key objectives are reflected consistently In plans operating at various levels witnin the Company

Strateglc
objectives
Retain and
reward
Generaie Equity Executive
sector-leading  Growth w profit owmership team 1o
valve for from existing Win new and retentlon delver the
Plan Purpose Eligbility shazehotders customers customers of shares strateqy

SIP To broaden share ownership Al employees
and share in corporate success
over the medium term

Annual bonus  Incentivise and reward Executive Directors,
short-term performance Senlor Executives Senior
At senior level, an element of  Managers and Managers
bonus 1s deferred In shares

LTIP [ncentrvise and reward Executive Directors
leng-term performance and Senior Executives

Statement of consideration of shareholder views

The Committee takes the views of the shareholders senously and these views are taken into account in shaping Remuneration Policy and practice
Shareholder views are considered when evaluating and setting the remuneration strategy and the Commuttee commits to consuling with key shareholders
prlot to any significant changes to Its Remuneratien Policy

The Committee consulted with the Company's key shareholders along with the Invesiment Association (‘1A and the Institutional Shareholder Services {155)
on the proposed Policy set out in this report
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PART B - ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)
Executive Diractors (audited)

The tables below set out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Executive Director in respect of FY16 and FY15

FY16

Taxable
Executlve Directors Salary benefits? Bonus* TIPS Penslon Sip Other Total
Martin Hellawell’ (CEQ} £227.734 &N £330 000 — - £3,612 - £562 117
Graham Chartton? (CFO} £164,751 £303 £175 000 - £4 943 £903 £268,200° €614 100
Notes

1 Salary of £168 920 prior 1o IPO date (Nov 2015} and £250 000 following the IPO 1o the end of the Enancial year

2 Salary of £150 000 prior to IPO date {Nov 2015) and £170 000 folflowing the IPO to the end of the financial year

3 See section below setting out detalls of the benefits provided

4 Details of the bonus targets thelr level of satisfaction and the resutting bonus earned in FY16 are set out on page 45
5 The first grant of LTIP awards made in December 2015 which will vest in December 2018

&
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As part of the pre IPQ arrangements disclosed in the Prospectus Graham held 200 000 share options (Issued on 31 March 2015) that vested on IPO The exercise price of these options was £1059

Peter Kelly and Colin Brown were Executive Directors prior to the Company's IPO, until their resignations on 15 October 2015 The table below sets out their

remuneration as Executive Directors between 1 August 2015 and 15 October 2015

Taxable
Executive Directors Salary benefits Bonus Pensicn Total
Peter Kelly £33,872 £652 £17 000 - £51524
Colin Brown £36 071 £126 £56 083 £1082 £93,362
FYi5
Taxabie

Exetutive Directors Salary benefits® Bonus’ LTIP Penslon Total
Martin Hellawell (CEQ) £168,920 £2,142 £164 700 - - £335 762
Graham Charlton® {CFO) £63 281 £337 £28,500 - £1,898 £94,016

Notes
3 See section below setting out detalls on benefils provided

2 Similar to FY16 the FY15 bonus structure was put i place pre IPO comprising a quarterly and annual assessment of performance
3 Grzham Charlton joined the Company in January 2015

Peter Kelly, Colin Brown and Richard Lecoutre were Executive Directors during all {or n the case of Richard Lecoutre until his resignation on 19 March 2015)

of FY15 The table below sets out thewr remuneration as Executive Directors durning FY15

Taxable
Executive Direclors Salary benelits Benus Pension Total
Peter Kelly £158,620 £2,940 £90,000 - £251,560
Cofin Brown £168,920 £1241 £154 610 £37,958 £362 729
Richard Lecoutre £78,108 £1,005 £23,100 £2,343 £104 556

Taxable benefits
Benefits in the year for the Executive Directors comprised private medical Insurance

2016 annual bonus outcomes

In respect of 2016, the bonus awards payable to Executive Directors were agreed by the Committee having reviewed the Company s results The 2016 annual
bonus structure was put in place pre-IPQ compnising & quarierly and annual assessment of performance The new annual bonus structure operating w 2017

15 outiined on pages 48 to 49

Detalls of the targets used to determine bonuses in respect of FY16 and the extent to which they were satisfled are shown in the table on page 45

These figures are included in the single figure table
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

PART B - ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Long-term incentives awarded
Awards under the Company's Long Term Incentrve Plan ('LTIP) are shown in the table on page 45

The awards were subject to the following performance conditions

Measure Welghting Details

Adjusted EPS 50% +  20% vesting of this element for absolute EPS at end of performance penod of 18 7p
- Full vesting for 216p

- Straght-ine vesting between these points

Relative TSR -- assessed against the constituents 50% « 30% vesting for median performance against the comparators
of the FTSE 250 {excluding real estate and equity

»  Full vesting for upper quartile performance
investment trusts)

« Straight-lne vesting between these points

Pension entitlements
The Company operates a defined contribution pensien scheme which the Executive Directors can participate in or they can take a cash supplement in lieu
of pension

In FY16 and FY15, Martin Hellawell did not recewve any pension entitlements and Graham Charlton received 3% of salary employer pension contnbutions into
the defined contribution scheme

Share Incentive Plan (‘SIP)

The table below sets out the free shares awarded to the Directors i the financial year

The Directors have an entdlement to purchase partnership shares under the SIP Graham Charlton purchased 616 panrtnership shares during the year in
addition to the recelpt of free shares below The total SIP holdings are provided on page 59 as part of the Directors’ share Interesis table

Free shares
awarded during Awarg Market price Lapsea
Executive Director the year date  oneward date during period
Martin Hellawelt 1,204 112115 £300 -
Graham Charlton 301 1112115 £300 —

Non-Executive Directors {(audited)
The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Non-Executive Director

Non Executive Diectors 2016 fees! 2015 fees Roles
Brian Wallace £100,000 £100 000 independent Non-Executive Chairman
Lee Ginsberg £55 000 — Sengr Independent Non-Executve Director

Charr of the Audit Commettee
Vin Murna £33,750 - Non-Executive Director
Peter Ventress £45830 - Non-Executive Director

Charr of the Remunerauon Commitiee

Note
1 The fees are proporticnate to time In service to reflect total fees pald durlng the financial year

Payments to past Directors/payments for loss of office
There were no payments in the financlal year
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Statement of Direclors’ shareholding and share interests

Shares held directly Other shares held Options
Deferred shares LTIP Interests
Shareholding Current not subject subject 10 Interests Shaieholding
requirement  shasehalding Benehcally to performance performance in unvested Vested and requirement
Director [% of salary) % of salary)’ owned cendillons conditions SIP shares* unexercised Unvested Exercised met?

Executive Directors

Martin Hellawell® 200 20540 14784399 - 208 333 1,204 — — - Yes
Graham Charlton 150 1 6167 - 141,666 301 - - 200 000* No
Non-Executive Diractors

Brian Wallace nfa nfa 860,000 n/a nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa
Lee Ginsberg nfa nfa 20,833 nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa n/a nfa
Vin Murna na nfa 30 000 nfa nfa nfa n/a na nfa n/a
Peter Ventress nfa nfa 30 000 n/a nfa nfa n/a na na nfa
Notes

1

[T N

5

As 2t 31 July 206 This is based on a closing share price of £3 473 and the year end salanes of the Executive Directors Values are not calcufated for Non Executive Directors as they e not subject
1o sharehokding requirements Graham Charlton has purchased 137 partnership shares since the year end and the date of this report. There have been no further changes 10 the interests of the e.her Drectors

Investment in partnership shares under the SIP
Interests of free shares under the 51P

As pas of the pre4PO arrangements disclosed in the Prospecws Graham held 200 000 share optlons (issued on 31 March 20i5) which vested and were exercised on IPO The exerclse price of these
optlons was £1059

In¢ludes ordinary shares held by of in trust for Martin Hellawell and/or his family members

At 31 July 2015, pnor 1o the pre-IPO share reorganisation which occurred on 12 November 2015, Martin Hellawell and Brian Wallace held 1197298 and 15,000
shares 1n Softcat Ltd respectively Nene of the cther Directors held shares in the Company at 31 July 2015

Fees retained for external non-executive directorships
Executive Directors may hold postions in other companies as non-executive directors and retain the fees Martn Hellawell and Graham Charlton currenly
hold no external directorships

Comparison of overall performance and pay
The graph betow shows the value of £100 invested in the Company's shares since listing compared with the FTSE 250 index The graph shows the total
shareholder return generated by both the movement in share value ang the reinvestment over the same penod of dvidend income

The Committee conslders that the FTSE 250 is the appropriate index because the Company has been a member of this since the first review of the index
since the PO This graph has been calculated in accordance with the Regulations It shouid be noted that the Company histed on 18 November 2015 and
therefore only has a listed share price for the perod of 18 November 2015 to 31 July 2016

Total shareholder return

10
130
120

FTSE 250
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

PART B - ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Chief Executive Officer’s historic remuneration
The table below sets out the total remuneration delivered to the Chief Executive Officer over the last year valued using the methodelogy appiied to the
single total figute of remuneration

Chief Executive Officer 2016 2015
Total smgle figure £562 117 £335,767
Annual bonus payment level achieved (% of maximum opportunity) 99! 72
LTIP vesting level achieved (% of maximum opportunily) nfa? nfa?
Notes

1 In FY15 the 01 bonus achlevement was below target which resulted in B5% of maximum bonus payout The Q2 Q4 targets and the annual target were met and resulted In a full payout {100%)
2 First LTIP award was made In December 2015 which will vest in December 2018

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below sets out the relative Importance of spend on pay In the 2016 financial year All figures provided are taken from the retevant Company accounts

Disbursements from profit Disbursements from profit

in 2016 financlal yeal in 2015 finanoal year

Profit distributed by way of dividend £43 5m £7 3m
Total tax contributions £16 7m’ £147m
Qverall spend on pay, including Executive Directors £59 3m £439m

Note
1 Includes corporation tax and employers National insurance contributions

Change in the Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration compared with employees
The Company has chosen not to provide this information for 2016 as the Committee does not believe that the remuneration payable in iis earlier years
as a private company bears any comparative value to that which is to be paid post-IPQ In the 2017 report comparative Infermation will be provided

Statement of implementation of the Remuneration Policy in financial year 2017
See table on page 46

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The Board has delegated to the Committee, under agreed terms of reference responsibility for the Remuneration Policy and for determining specific
packages for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the senior management team Prior to the establishment of the Remuneration Committee,
remuneration decisions were made by the Board of the Company The Company consults with key shareholders in respect of the Remuneration Policy and
the introduction of new incentive arrangements

The terms of reference for the Commitiee are avallable on the Company’s website, hitps/fwww softcat com/nvestorelationsboard-members-and-corporate-governance
and from the Company Secretary at the registered office

Qur main responsibiities are

+ 1o determine and agree with the Board the broad Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the senior
management team,

»  to review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the Remuneration Policy, and
- to revlew any major changes tn employee benefil structures throughout the Company and 1o administer all aspects of any share scheme

The Commitiee receives assistance from the Company Secretary, who will aitenid meetings by Invitation The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finanaial Officer
attend by invitation on occasion
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Advisers to the Remuneration Committee
Following a selection process carned out by the Board prior o the [PO of the Company, the Committee has engaged the services of PwC as independent
remuneration adviser

During the financial year PwC advised the Committee on all aspects of the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors and selected members of the senior
management team PwC also provided the Company with tax and assurance work during the year The Committee Is salisfied that no conflict of interest
exists or exssted In the provision of these services

PwC 1s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and the voluntary code of conduct of that body 1s designed to ensure objectve and independent
advice 15 given to remuneration commedtees Fixed fees of £15,000 (2015 Enil) were provided to PwC during the year in respect of remuneration adwice receved
Statement of voting at general meeting

The 2016 AGM will be the first AGM of the Company as & listed entity and therefore there Is no historic voting information

This Remuneration Report has been approved by the Board of Directors and 15 signed on 1ts behaif by

Peter Veniress
Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee
19 October 2016
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’
REPORT

The Directors present thew report for the year to 31 July 2016

Softcat pic 1s a public campany hmited by shares, incorporated in England
and Wales and its shares are iraded on the Premium segment of the Main
Market of the London Stock Exchange

Disclosures Incorporated by Reference

The following disclosures required to be included in this Directors’ report
have been incorporated by way of reference to other sections of this report
and should be read in corjunction with this report

- corporate governance statement — refer to pages 32 1o 35 of this report

- strategy and relevant future developments — refer to page 20 of the
Strategic Repert, and

« Financial nisk management objectives and policies — refer to the Risk
Management Report included n the Strategic Report an pages 24 to 25
and note 20 te the financial statements on pages 9110 92

Directors of the Company
The following Directors have held offlce since 1 August 2015

Date of appaintment/

Name Position resignation
M J Hellawell Chief Executive Officer -
B Wallace Chairman -
G L Charlton Chief Financial Officer -
L Ginsberg Senier Independent Director Appointed
16 September 2015

P Ventress Independent Non-Executive Appointed
Director 1 October 2015

V Murmna Independent Non-Executive Appointed
Director 3 November 2015

P D JKelly Non-Executive Director Resigned
15 October 2015

C W Brown Managing Director Resigned
15 October 2015

Directors’ biographies can be found on pages 30 to 31

Powers of Direclors

The general powers of the Directors are contamed within UK legislation and
the Company’s Articles of Association {the ‘Articles’} The Directors are entitied
to exercise all powers of the Company, subject te any hmitations imposed
by the Articles or applicable legislation
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Directors’ interests

The interests of the Directors in the 1ssued shares of the Company at 31 July 2016
are disclosed in the Remuneration Report on page 59 The Remuneration Repost
also sets out details of any changes in those interests between the year end
and 19 October 2016

No Directos had a material interest in any contract of significance with the
Company at any time during the financial year

Appointment and replacement of Directors

The rules about the appointment and replacement of Directors are contained
in the Articles They provide that Directors may be appointed by ordinary
resolution of the members or by a resolution of the Direciors Any Director
s¢ appointed must retire and put themsetves forward for election at the next
Annual General Meeting {'AGM’) Directors wishing to continue to serve as
members of the Board will seek re-electron annually in accordance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2014 (the ‘Code ),
at the 2016 AGM each Director will stand for re-election

Indemnification of Directors

The Directors have the benefit of an indemnity provision contaned in the
Aricles The provision was in force during the year ended 31 July 2016 and
remains in force and relates to certain losses and liabilities which the Directors
may Incur to third parties n the course of acting as Directors of the Company
In addition, Directors and officers of the Company and Its subsidiaries are
covered by directors and officers iiability insurance

Compensation for loss of office and change of control
There are no agreements in place with any Dwector that would provide
compensation for toss of office or employment resulting from a change of
control Change of control prowvisions for the Company’s share plans may
cause options and awards granted under such plans to vest on a takeover
Further information Is provided in the Remuneration Report on page 54

The Company is not party to any other significant agreements that take
effect after, or terminate upon a change of control

Articles of Association

The Articles may be amended by a special resofution of the members At the
AGM held on 12 November 2015, shareholders approved by special resolution
the amended Articles which took effect at the date of the Initlal publlc
offering ('IPO } on 18 November 2015

Related party transactions
No related party transactiens have been undertaken by the Company during
the year




Share capital and ¢ontrol

The Company’s ordinary 1ssued share capital as at 31 July 2016 was 197 406 143
ordinary shares of 0 05p each, which have a premium listing on the Lonidon
Stock Exchange The ordinary share class represents over 99 8% of the
Company’s {otal 1ssued share caputal

In addition to the ordinary shares the Company also has a ctass of 18,933
deferred shares which were created following the share capitat reorganisation
at1P0 and which are not admitted to trading on a requlated market

Shares acquired through the Company's share schemes and plans rank
equally with the other shares in i1ssue and have no special nghts The
Company has an Employee Benefit Trust { EBT ) and a Share Incentive Plan
Trust ('SIP Trust'} for the benefil of employees and former employees of the
Company The EBT holds nil ordinary shares and the SIP Trust holds 787,064
ordinary shares in the Company

During the year ended 31 July 2016, share options were exeraised pursuant

to the Company Share Option Plan resulting in the ailotment of 112,961 new
ordinary shares On 11 December 2015 629 B83 ordinary shares were allotted to
Capita IRG Trustees Limited, as trustee of the Company’s SIP Trust, to facilitate
the free share awards 1o certam eligible employees of the Company

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to attend and speak at genera! meetings
of the Company, to appoint one or more proxies and, (f they are corporations,
corporate representatives who are entitled to attend general meetings and
o exercise voting rights

The deferred shares carry no voting rights or rights o recelve any of the profits
of the Cempany available for distribution by way of dividend or otherwise

On a return of capital on a winding up of the Company (but not otherwise)
the holder Is entitled only to the repayment of the amount paid up on that
share after payment of the capital paid up on each other share in the capital
of the Company and the further payment of £10,000,000 on each such share
The deferred shares represent less than 0 01% of the Company’s total issued
share capital

Further information on the Company’s 1ssued share capital can be found in
note 16 to the financial statements

The Company passed the following resolutions on 12 November 2015
= Anordinary resolution providing the Directors with authority to

(% allot ordinary shares up to a maximum rominal amount of £32,792
to be reduced by the nominal amount allotted or granted under
paragraph (i} below in excess of such sum and

(n} allot ordinary shares up to 8 maxtmum nominal amount of £65,585 n
connection with a pre-emptive offer by way of a rights issue, such amount
to be reduced by any allotments made under paragraph {i} above

- Aspedtial resclution granting the Diectors the authonty to make market
purchases up to 19675 492 ordinary shares, representing 10% of the
Company's 1ssued ordinary share capital No shares have been
purchased pursuant to this authority

These authorities are due to expire at the Company’s AGM to be held on
8 December 2016 and proposals for the renewal of the authority to allot
ordinary shares are set out i the Notice of the Annual General Meeting
The Company has no Intention to complete a market purchase of its
shares and will not seek this authority at the 2016 AGM

The ordinary shares are freely transferable with the exception of lock-up
arrgngements pursuant to the Underwniting Agreement dated 13 November 2015
and deed polls of elechion entered into pror to the PO Those restrictions were
set out in detail In the Prospectus at IPO and, subject to customary exceptions,
the following restnctions were still in place at year end

» each Director {and each of his or her famity members and each trustee
of a trust, the beneficiary of which s a Director andfor a family member
of a Director) undertook not to sell any further ordinary shares, other than
at IPO, for a perioc of 365 days after the date of the IPO

+ each 'selling shareholder’, other than the ‘core selling shareholders’
{as such term is defined In the IPO prospectus), who was an employee
of the Company and who had a hclding of ordinary shares of 0 5% or
more of the Company's issued share capital (n each case as at the date
of the IPO Prospectus undertook not to sell any further ordinary shares,
other than at IPQ, for a period of 365 days after the date of the IPO and

- certamn ‘non-selling shareholders’ unceriook not to sell any ordinary
shares for a period of either 180 or 365 days after the date of the IPO

There are no further restnctions on the transfer or kmitations on the holding
of ordinary shares and ne requirements {o obtain approval prior to any transfers
other than certain restnichons which may from time to ttime be imposed by
laws and regulations (for exampte nsider trading laws) and pursuant to the
Market Abuse Regulation and the Company’s own rules whereby Divectors
and certain employees of the Company require the approval of the Company
to deal In the ordinary shares and pursuant to the Articles where there 1s
defautt in supplying the Company wath information concerming interests in
the Company's ordinary shares There are no special control nights in relation
to the Company's ordinary shares

There are no agreements between holders of securnities that are known
to the Company which may result in restrictions on the transfer of securliies
or on voling nights
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Directors’ Report continued

Substantial shareholders

The substantial shareholdings in the table below represent those Interests netified to the Company as at 31 July 2016 in accordance with the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules of the UK Listing Authority, and those holdings may have changed since notification to the Company

As s 31 July 2016 As at 19 October 2016
Ordinary shares Voting rights Qrdinary shares Voting rights
John Nash* 13,318,364 6 75% 13,318,364 6 75%
FMR LLC 13,571 106 687% 16,029 079 8 1%
Martin Hellawell* 14 784 399 7 49% 14,784 399 7 49%
Peter Kelly! 64,976,058 3291% 64,976,058 3291%
Note

1 The ordinary shares held by Peter Kelly Martin Hellawell and John Nash Include shares held beneficially via varieus entities o connected persons

Principal shareholder and Relationship Agreement

In accordance with Listing Rule 9 8 4R {14) the Company has set out below
a statement describing the Relationship Agreement entered Into by the
Company with its principal shareholder {the ‘Relationship Agreement’)

As at 19 October 2016 Peter Kelly the founder of Softcat plc held 32 91%
of the issued crdinary share capital of the Company

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Peter Kelly entered into the
Relatienship Agreement The pnincipal purpose of the Relationship Agreement
15 to ensure that the Company will be capabie of carrying on its business
independently of Peter Kelly and certain persons deemed to be connected
with him {‘Connected Persons )

Pursuant to the Relationship Agreement Peter Kelly infer olio,

- shall procure that all transactions agreements or arrangements entered into
between the Company and Peter Kelly {or any of s Connected Persons)
are conducted on an arm’s length basis on normal commercial terms
and in accordance with the related party transaction rules set out in
Chapter 11 of the Listing Rules and Peter Kelly shail abstain from voting
on any resgiution to which LR 1117R{4) of the Listing Rules applies relating
to a transaction with Peter Kelly (or any of his Connected Persons) as the
related party

+ shall (and shall precure that each of his Connected Persons shall) ) not
take any actions that would reasonably be expected to have the effect
of preventing the Company frem complying with Its obligations under the
Listing Rules or be prejudicial to the Company's status as a listed company
or the Company's eligibility for listing, {n) not propose or procure the
proposal of a shareholder resolution that would circumvent or appear
to circumvent the proper application of the Listing Rules, and {ill} not
exarcise his voting nghts or other nghts to procure any amendment
to the Articles which would be contrary to the malnienance of the
Company’s independence, including its ability to operate and make
decisions independently from Peter Kelly, or otherwise inconsistent
with the provislons of the Relationship Agreement

- has agreed that for a penod of two years from 18 November 2015,
he shall not be entitled to operate, establish or acquire an undertaking
which constitutes a competing business and
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+ has agreed that for a penod of two years from 18 November 2015, he
shall not (and shall procure that each of his Connected Persons shall not)
sohcit or encourage for service or employment any of the executive
directors or members of senigr management

Furthermare, the Company and Peter Kelly have agreed that for s¢ long as
Peter Kelly (together with any of hus Connected Persons) holds 10 per cent
of the Company s issued share capial, he shall be entitled to appoint one
non-executive director of the Company, although no such director has been
appomnted as at the date of this Annual Report

The Relationship Agreement will remain in effect for so long as {a) Peter Kelly
{andfor any of his Connected Persons} holds at least 10 per cent of the
Company s issued share caprtal and {b} the ordinary shares are admitted
to the premium listing segment of the Official List mantained by the
Financial Conduct Authorty

The Company has and 1n so far as it 1s aware, Peter Kelly and his Connected
Persons have complied with the independence provisions set out in the
Relationship Agreement from the date of the agreement

Risk regarding financial instruments

The financial nsk management objectives and policies are disclosed i note
20 to the financlal statements on pages 91 to 92

Research and development
The Company did not carry out any research and development activities
during the year (2015 none)

Political donations

The Company &id not make any pohtical donations during the penod
{2015 £nify

A resolution to authorise the Company to make pohitical paymenis up to £50 000
has been included for shareholder consideration in the Notice of AGM The
Company does not intend to make any payments to polital organisations or
1o incur other political expenditure, however this resolution has been proposed
lo ensure that the Company has authority under the wide definitlon used In
the Companies Act 2006 of matters constituting political donations




Greenhouse gas emissions
Information relating to the Company’s greenhouse gas emissions Is detailed
on page 26 of the Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Corporate social responsibility
Detaits on our commitment to corporate socsal responsibility can be found
on pages 26 to 27 of the Sirategic Report

Equality and diversity

The Company operates an equal epportunsties policy which endeavours 1o
treat indwiduals farly and not to discnminate on the basis of gender, disability
race, national or ethnic ongin, sexval onentation or mantal status Apphcations
for employment are fully considered on their ments, and employees are given
appropriate training and equal opportunities for career development and promotion

The Company 1s committed to ensuring that adequate policies and procedures
are In place to enable disabled applicants to receive training to perform safely
and effectively and to provide development opportunities to ensure they
reach their full potential Where an individual becomes disabled dunng the
course of their employment with the Company, the Company will seek to
provide, wherever possible, continued employment on normal terms and
conditions Adjustments will be made to the environment and duties or
alternatively sutable new roles within the Company will be secured with
additional traimng where necessary

Requirements of the Listing Rules

Detals of the Company’s gender breakdown are given in the Corporate
Social Responsibility Report on page 27

The Company places considerable value on the involvement of its employees
and centinues to keep them informed on matters affecting them as empleyees
This 1s undertaken through a vanety of methods including, but not mited to,
weekly all-Company meetings, team briefings Company days email and the
intranet At team meetings, managess are responsible for ensuring that
information sharing discussion and feedback take place on a regular basis
As a resuit of these meelings management can communicate the financial
and economic factors affecting the Company and ensure that the views

of employees are taken into account in Company decisions which are

hikely to affect their interests

Post balance sheet events

Dividend

The Board recommends a final dividend of 3 6p per ordinary share and a
speciat dividend of 14 2p per ordinary share to be paid on 16 December 2016
to all ordwinary shareholders whe were on the register of members at the close
of business on 18 November 2016 Shareholders will be asked to approve
the final and speclal dividends at the AGM on 8 December 2016

The Company’s dmdend policy 15 detailed i the Chairman’s statement
on page 5

The following table provides references to where the information required by the Listing Rule 9 8 4R 1s disclosed

Listing Rule requirement

Location in Annual Report

A statement of the amount of interest capitalised dunng the penod under review and details

of any related tax relief

Notapphcable

Information required In relatlon to the publication of unaudited financial informatlon

Not applicable

Details of any long-term incentive schemes

Directors Remuneration Report, page 47

Details of any arrangements under which a Director has wawed emoluments, or agreed

to wawve any future emgluments, from the Company

Not applicable

Details of any nan-pre-emptive issues of equity for cash

Directors’ Report, page 63

Detalls of any non-pre-emptive 1ssues of equity for cash by any unlisted major subsidiary underiaking

No such share allotmenis

Details of parent participation in a placing by a hsted subsicrary

Not applicable

Detalls of any contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially interested

Not applicable

Detalls of any contract of significance between the Company {or one of its subsidiaries)

and a controlting shareholder

Not applicable

Details of waver of diedends by a shareholder

Not applicable

Board statement in respect of Relationship Agreement with the centrolling shareholder

Directors Report page 64
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Directors’ Report continued

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP ('EY ) has signified its willingness to continue in office as
auditor to the Company and the Company 1s satisfied that EY 1s independent
and that there are adeguate safeguards in place to safequard s objectivity
Aresolution to reappoint EY as the Company’s auditor will be proposed

at the 2016 AGM

Statement of Direclors’ responsibilities in relation

to the financial statements

The Directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable taw and regulations

The Direclors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial
year in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs')
as adopted by the European Unicn Under company law the Directors must
not approve the finanoial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
atrue and fair view of the state of affarrs of the Company as at the end of
the financial year and the profit or loss of the Company, so far as concerns
members of the Company for the financial year [n preparing those financiat
statements the Directors are required to

- select and apply accounting policies s accordance with 1AS 8,

« present information including accounting policies, i a manner that prowides
relevant, reliable comparable and understandable infermation and

- provide addional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements
In IFRSs 15 insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of
particular transactions, other events and conditions on the enlity’s
financial positien and financial performance

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting recards which
are sufficient to disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
positien of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
They are aiso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other rrregularities

Fair and balanced reporting

Having taken agvice from the Audit Commitiee, the Board considers the
Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole 18 far balanced and understandable
and that «t provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company’s posttion and performance business model and strategy
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Responsibility statement pursuant to FCA's Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rule 4 {'DTR 4°)

Each Director of the Company (whose names and functions appear on
pages 30 to 31) conflrms that (solely for the purpase of DTR 4) to the best
of his or her knowledge

- ihe financial statements In this document, prepared in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the
assets, llabiliiies, financial position and profit of the Cempany, and

- the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the
Company, together with & descnption of the principal nsks and uncertainties
that it faces

Disclosure of information to the auditor
The Directors In office at the time of approval of the Directors Report are
listed on page 62 and have each confirmed that

- so far as he or she 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information
of which the Company s auditor 1s unaware and

+ he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken
as a Director to make himself or herself aware of any such relevant
audit information and 4o establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware
of that information

This confirmation i1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Going concern

The Company's business actinties, together with the factors hkely to affect
its future development, performance and position are set out In the
Strategic Report on pages 1to 27 The financial position of the Company, its
cash flows and Lquidity position are descnbed in the Financlal Review on
pages 22 1o 23 In addition, note 20 to the financial statements include the
Company's ohjectives, poticies and processes for managing its capital, its
financlal nsk management objectives and iis exposures to credit risk and
liquichty nsk

The Birectors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue i operational existence for the foreseeable future and
have therefore continued te adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the
financial statemenis




Viability statement

In accordance with provision C 2 2 of the 2014 revision of the Code the
Board has assessed the prospects of the Company over a longer period
than the twelve months that has in practice been the focus of the

going concern’ provision

The Board conducted the review for a three-year peniod, corresponding
with the period covered by its strategic ievel three-year plan process These
forecasts are updated on an annual basis and reflect the Company’s polley
of growth Increased customer offerings and avallable intemal and financlal
resources without the need for external funding They consider profits cash
flows, funding requirements and other key financlal ratios over the period
as well as the desired minimusm cash float

The principal nisks are set out on pages 24 to 25 and the most relevant
potential impact of these risks on wiabthty was considered o be

- asubstantial and sustained decrease n revenue resulting from a loss
of Softcat culture or Inabifity to satisfy customer needs,

» & substantial fail in achievable gross margins resulting from margin
pressure assaclated with a fall in levels of customer service

- asignificant reduction in rebate income and
« anongoing increase In the working capital cycle

The Board overlaid the potential impact of the principal nsks which ¢ould
affect the financial position in 'severe but plausible’ scenanos onto the
three-year forecasts and concluded that the business would remain viable
As part of this they performed sensitivty analyses that flexed to the forecasts
including reduced income, profitability and Increased working capital cycle,
both individually and in unison 1o refiect these severe but plausible scenarios

Based on the results of the pracedures outined above the Directers have
a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to continue In
operation and meet its liabthties as they fall due over the three-year period
of assessment

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s first AGM since IPO will take place on 8 December 2016

at the Company's registered office Softcat plc Fieldhouse Lane, Marlow,
Buckmghamshire SL7 1LW Subject to any resinictions set out in this section
on a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares who 1S present in person
or by proxy at a general meeting had one vote on each resolution and, on

a poll, every holder of ordinary shares who is present in person or by proxy
has one vote on each resolution for every erdinary share of which hefshe

1s the registered holdes A proxy will have one vote agamst a resolution on

a show of hands In certain crcumstances specified In the Arlicles The Notice
of AGM specifies deadlines for exercising voting rights The Notice of AGM
can be found in the Investor relations sectlon of the Company's website,
www softcat com, and ts being posted at the same time as this Annuai Report
The Notice of AGM sets out the business of the meeting and prowdes
explanatory notes on all resolutions Separate reselutions are proposed

in respect of each substantive Issue

A holder of ordinary shares may vote personally or by proxy at a general
meeting Any form of proxy must be delivered to the Company not less than
48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment proposes to vote
{for this purpose, the Directors may specify that no account shall be taken
of any part of a day that is not @ working day} A corporation which 1s a
holder of ordinary shares in the Cornpany may authorise such persons as

it thenks fit to act as 1ts representatives at any genesal meeting of the Company

No holder of ordinary shares shall be entitled to attend or vote, etther
personally or by proxy at a general meeting in respect of any ordinary share
if any call or other sum presently payable to the Company in respect of such
ordinary share remains unpald or In certain other circumstances speclfied in
the Articles where there 1s default in supplying the Company with information
concernming interests in the Company's ordinary shares

The AGM 15 the Company's pringipal forum for communication with private
shareholders In addiion to the formal business, there will be a presentation
by the CEO on the performance of the Company and Its future development
The Charman of the Board and the Chairmen of the Commuttees, together
with the Directors, will be available to answer shareholders' questions at
the meeting

The Directors’ Report has been approved by the Board of Directors and s
signed on its behalf by

i

G on
Chief Financial Officer
19 Octaber 2016
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Financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
to the members of Softcat plc

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 July 2016 and of its profit for the year then ended,

- have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {'tFRSs') as issued by the
Internatronal Accounting Standards Board ('IASE ) as adopted by the European Union, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the UK Companies Act 2006

What we have audited
We have audited Softcal plc’s financial statements which comprise

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Inceme

Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of Cash Flows

Related notes 1 to 26 1o the financial statements

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied In the preparatlon of the Company s financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as Issued
by the !ASE and adopted by the European Union

Overview of our audil approach

Risks of matenal - Inappropriate revenue recegnition misstatement of revenue recogrused at or near year-end
misstatement - Rebates misstatement of the year end rebate accrual to understate cost of sales and overstate gross profit
Audit scope - The Company performs all transaction processing and financial statement preparation centrally in the UK Our audit

procedures cover a single set of accounts and our audit scope covers 100% of revenue profit and balance sheet items
by way of full scope procedures

Maternahty «  Materlallty of £2 3m which represents 5% of profit before 1ax and exceptional items
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Ovur assessment of risk of material misstatement
We identified the nisks of matenal misstatement described below as those that had the greatest effect on our overall audlt strategy the allocation of resources
n the audit and the direction of the efforts of the auditteam In addressing these nsks we have performed the procedures below, which were designed in
the context of the financial statements as a whole and consequently we do not express an opinlon on these individual areas

Inappropniate revenue recognition

misstatement of revenue recognised at or near year end

Supporting references in tha Annual Report and Accounts

During the year the Company recognised revenue of £672m (2015 £596m)

We focused on this due to the susceptibiliy of this account to manual
ovemde refated to year end adjustments and journals posted

The Audit Commuttee Report [pages 36 1o 39),
Accounting Policies [pages 7810 79}, and
Note 2 of the Company Financiat Statements {page 82)

Summary of the nature of the nsk

Our response to the risk

Qur conclusion to the Audit Committee

«  Revenue 15 a key value driver for the
business as a whole and ts one of the key
performance indicators used to measure
the value of the business

« The Company may at times be under
pressure to meet ambHious growth
targets and analyst expectations as a
newly isted entity

« Certain compensation incertives are
based on quarterly and annual revenue
targets, creating a nisk of revenue and
gross margmn misstatements which may
Involve management override

«  Management's process for accounting for
certain revenue transactions, particularly
those at or near the year end 1S manual
and therefore susceptible to management
overnde

To gain assurance that the requirements for revenue
recognition have been met dunng the penod we tested the
two-way correlation between revenue and trade recevables
and three-way correlation between revenue, trade recevables
and cash We also tested other revenue and recewvables
transactions that didn’t conform to our expectations of
typical revenues postings,

We performed substantive testing on a sample of

deferred revenue transactions to obtaln assurance over
the completeness and existence of the year end deferred
revenue balance,

We tested revenue cut-off by obtaining and testing
management’s sales cut-off analysls and Independently
testing transactions therem on a sample basis,

To address the nsk of management overnde, we tested
manual journal entrres recorded at or near year end and
credit notes issued subsequent to the year end, and

We made inquines of certain sales personnel and management

as to their awareness of sales and discounting practices that

may Indicate the existence of side agreements which could
impact revenue recognised durning the account period

We concluded that revenue 1s
matenally correct and has been
recognsed in accordance with
company policy and IFRSs

SiusWREs [eueuld

Rebates misstatement of the year end rebate accrual
to understate cost of sales and overstate gross profit

Supporting references in the Annual Report and Accounts

We focused on this due to the inherent estimation subjectvity of the
rebates recevable accrual based on the varying types of rebate
arrangement terms the manual processing requrred, as well as the

potential for management avernde of controls

The Audit Committee Report (pages 36 to 39)
Accounting Policies [page 79} and
Note 11 of the Company Financial Statements {page 86)

Summary of the nature of the risk

Qur response to the nsk

Cur concluslon to the audit commiitee

« The rebate precess 1s manual and is
considered complex due to the vanous
types of contracts and contract terms,

- While most rebates are agreed with the
supplier and paid dunng the year there
15 Inherent esumation required to determine
the year end rebate accrual when
confirmation has not been received
{from the supplier

We tesled management’s controls around the rebate process
which include vertfication of amounts reported by suppllers
caleuation of the rebate recevable accrual, and a retrospective
review of cash receved against amounts accrued,

We tested the year end rebate recevable and transactions

from throughout the year by vouching a sample of transactions
to third-party source documentation and cash recespts

We challenged management's methodology for calculating

the year end rebate recenvable, including vouching accruat

rates to indwidual rebate partner agreements

We conciuded that the rebate
recevable 1s matenally correct and
has been recognised in accordance
with Company policy and IFRSs
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Financal statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

to the members of Softcat pic

The scope of our audit

The Company has business operations In vanious locations throughout the
UK however, all transaction processing and financral statement preparation
occurs centrally at the Company's headguarters o Marlow Additionally as
the Company prepares only one set of statutory accounts our audit 1 of one
UK statutory entity that covers 100% of revenue profit and balance sheet
items by way of full scope procedures

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of matenality in planning and perforrung the audit, in
evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and in forming
ouf audit opinion

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be
expected to influance the economic decisions of the users

of the financial statements Materiality provides a basis for
determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures
We determined materality for the Company te be £2 3m, calculated as 5%
of normalised pre-tax earnings which 18 calculated by adding back exceptional
ttems related prmarily to the Company’s tnitial public offering in November 2015
For the fiscal 2015 audit, we determined matenality for the Company to be
£19m calculated as 5% of profit before tax and without adding back exceptional
ftems, which were immatenal In the prior year We believe that profit before
tax ang after adding back exceptional items provides us with a consistent
year-on-year basis for determining materiaéty and 1s the most relevant performance
measure to the stakeholders of the enbity Detanled audit procedures are
performed on matenal non-recusming tems

Starting basis
- Profit before tax —£42 4m

Adjustments Adjusted to acd back exceptional items

{before tax) of £37m

Materiality Adjusted profit before tax multiplled by

5%, gving matenality of £2 3m

Dunng the course of our audit we reassessed intial materiality and the only
change in final matenality was to reflect the actual reported performance of
the Company i the year
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Performance materiality

The application of materahty at the indmdual account

or balance level It 1s set at un amount to reduce to an
appropriaiely low level the probability that the aggregate
of uncorrected and undetected misstatements

exceeds materiality

On the basis of our nsk assessments, together with our assessment of the
Company's overall control envirenment, our jJudgement was that performance
matenahty was 50% 2015 50%) of our planning materiality, namely £11m
(2075 £1m) We have set performance matenality at this percentage in order
that the totat amount of uncorrected and undetected misstatements does
not exceed our planning mateniahty of £2 3m for the financial statements

as a whole

Reporting threshold

An amount below which identified misstatements are
considered as being clearly trivial

We agreed with the Audit Commitiee that we would report to them all
uncorrected audit differences in excess of £01m (2015 £01m), which 1s set
at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below that threshold
that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We did not
Increase our reporting threshold following the increase In final materiality

We evaluate any uncorrected misstaternents against both the quantitative
measures of materiality discussed above and other relevant qualitative
considerations in forming our opwion

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the ameunts and disclosures

i the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Cempany’s circumstances and have been
consistently appled and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of
slgnificant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financlal statements |n addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information in the Annual Report to idenhify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any
information that I1s apparently matenaily sncorrect based on or materiafly
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquured by us in the course of performing
the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsistencres we consider the implications for our report




Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditor

As explained more fulty in the Directors’ Responslbllitles Statement set out on page 66, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
siatements and for belng satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinien on the financlal statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them n an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members
as a bedy, for our audit work, for this repert or for the opinions we have formed

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

+ The information given In the Strategic Report and the Directors Reportis consistent with the Company s financlal statements, and

+ The section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described as being audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the basis
of preparation as described therein

Mcotters on which we are required to report by exception

I1SAs (UK and Ireland) We are required 1o report to you If, in our opinten, financial and non-firancial infermetion  We have no exceptions to report
reporting in the Annual Report 15

- Materally Inconsistent with the information In the audited financlal statements, or

« Apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our
know!edge of the Company acquired in the course of performing our audit or

+  Otherwise misleading

In particular we are required to report whether we have identfied any inconsisiencles

between our knowledge acquired in the course of performing the audit and the Drectors’

statement that they consider the Annual Report and Accounts taken as & whole 1s fair

balanced and understandable and prowdes the information necessary for sharehotders

to assess the entity's performance, business model and strategy, and whether the

Annual Report appropriately addresses those matters that we communicated to the

Audit Committee that we consider should have been disclosed

Companies Act 2006 We are required to report to you If in gur opinton We have no exceplions to report

feporiing « Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns

adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

+  The parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

« Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
- We have not recewved all the infermation and explanations we requre for our audit

Listing Rules review We are required to review We have no exceptions {o report

requirements » The Directors statement in refation to gong concern, set out on page 66,

and longer-term viability, set out on page 67 and

+ The part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's
comphance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified
for our review
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Financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED
to the members of Softcat plc

Statement on the Directors’ Assessment of the Principal Risks that Would Threaten the Solvency
or Liquidity of the Entity

ISAs (UK and Ireland) We are required 10 give a stalement as to whether we have anything matenal toaddar ~ We have nothing matenal to add
reporting to draw attention to In relation to ar to draw attention to

« The Directors’ confirmation in the Annual Report that they have carned out a robust
assessment of the principal nsks facing the entity including those that would threaten
Iis busiress model future performance, solvency or hquidity,

« The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those nisks and explain how they
are being managed or mitigated,

« The Directors statement in the financial statements about whether they considered
i1 appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and
thenr tdentificatton of any material uncertainties to the entity s ability to continue to do
so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements, and

» The Directors’ explanation in the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the
prospects of the entity, over what penod they have done so and why they consider
that period to be appropnate, and therr statement as 1o whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the entity will be able to continue in operation and meet 1ts rabifites
as they fall due over the penod of thetr assessment, iIncluding any related disclosures
drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions

Karl Havers
for and on
London

19 October 2016

Young LLP

Notes

1 The mantenance and Integrity of the Soficat pic website (s the responsibility of the Directors the work carned out by the auditor does not inveolve Consideration of these matters and accordingly
the auditor accepts nc responsiiity for any changes that may have occurred to the financlal statements since they were iitially presented on the website

2 Legslation in the United Kingdom g g the prep ang disser of financial statements may differ from tegistation in other junsdichions
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 July 2016

2016 2015
Notes £000 £ 000

Revenue 2 672 351 596 084
Cost of sales (551,634} {493,309)
Gross profit 120717 102775
Adminisirative expenses (78 527} (63,193)
Operating profit 3 42,190 39582
Adjusted operating profit 46 791 40,586
Exceptional items 4 {3673} (999}
Share based payment charge 24 (888} {5}
Finance income 5 213 195
Profit before tax 42 403 39777
Income tax expense 6 (9,245} {8 680)
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year 33158 31117
Profit attributable to
Owners of the Company 33,158 EXREY)
Earrings per ordinary share {pence)
Basic 17 169 163
Diluted 17 169 160
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share (pence)
Basic 17 192 67
Diluted 17 191 65

The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive income has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continulng operations
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Financial statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 July 2016

2016 015
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and egquipment 8 6 391 6,997
Intangible assets 9 667 458
Deferred tax asset 14 426 678
7484 8133
Current assets
Inventores 10 4,611 2652
Trade and other receivables 1" 132 787 121,952
Cash and cash equivalents 13 62 361 74,642
199 759 199,246
Total assets 207,243 207 379
Current habilihes
Trade and other payables 12 {115,527) (108,053)
Income tax payable (4,352) (3510)
{118 879) {111,563
Net assets 87,364 95816
Equity
Issued share capital 16 499 98
Share premium account 4454 3942
Other reserves (3531} {3,994)
Retained earnings 86 342 95,770
Total equity 87,364 95,816

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 19 Octeber 2016

On behalf of the Board
Martin Hellawell ﬁn%gy
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Cfficer

Softcat plc Company registration number 02174990
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 July 2016

Equity attributable 1o owners of the Company

Share premium Reserve for Retained

Share caphal account own shares earnings Tatal

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 August 2015 98 3942 (3.994) 95,770 95,816
Total comprehensive income for the year — — - 33,158 33158
Share-based payment transactions - — - 572 572
Dmvidends pald - - - (43 453) {43 453)
Shares ssued in the year 1 512 — — 513
Tax adjusiments — - - 295 295
Qwn share movement during the year — - 463 - 463
Balance at 31 July 2016 99 4,454 {3.531} 86,342 87,364
Balance at 1 August 2014 95 2,865 {1469} 70,808 72299
Total comprehenswe income for the year — - - 3117 31117
Shere based payment transactions - - - 5 5
Didends paid - - - {7 298) (7,298}
Shares issued in the year 3 1,077 - — 1080
Tax adjustments - — - 1,234 1,234
Own share movement dunng the year — - (2,525) {96) (2,621}
Balonce at 31 July 2015 a8 3942 (3,994) 95770 95 816

The share capital and shase premium accounts represent the nominal value and premium ansing on the issue of equity shares

The reserve for own shares relates to ordinaty shares owned by an Employee Benefit Trust and a Share Incentive Plan Trusi During the year ended 31 July 2016,
4,237740 share options (2015 5,504,380) were exercised Proceeds of £976,328 (2015 £1,038 749) were realised from the exercise of these share options

As at 31 July 2016, the Employee Benefit Trust owned mil ordinary shares {2015 2,538 520) and the Share Incentive Plan Trust owned 787064 ordinary shares

{2015 ni)
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Financial statements

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 July 2016

2016 2015
Notes £000 €000
Net cash generated from operating achvihes 18 29925 47411
Investing activihies
Finance income 5 213 195
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment 8 {1,190} {2.217)
Purchase of intangible assets 9 {536} {288)
Proceeds from asset disposals 1 4
MNet cash used in investing achivities {1502 (2 306)
Financing activities
Issue of share capual 513 a77
Deferred purchase share proceeds 1,773 676
Dvidends paid 7 {43 453 {7.311)
Own share transactions i6 463 {2525
Net cash used In finanang actwvities {40,704 {8.183)
Net ({decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {12 281) 36,922
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13 74,642 37,720
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 62 361 74 642
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2016

1 Accounting policies

1 1 Corporate informahion

The financial statements of Softcat ple for the year ended 31 Juty 2016 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on

19 October 2016 Softcal plc is a public limited company incorporated and domuclled in the United Kingdom and whose shares are publicly traded The
reglisterad office Is Solar House, Fleldhouse Lane, Marlow Buckinghamshire: In the United Kingdom

The pnncipal actvity of the Company continued to be that of a value-added 1T reseller and IT infrastructure solutions prowder to the corporate and public
sector markels

1 2 Basis of preparation

These financlal statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financlal Reporting Standards (FRS } as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board {'|ASB') and as adopted by the EU (‘Adopted IFRS’) and the Internauional Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (1FRIC)
Interpretations and 1n accordance with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and are presented In the Company's presentational and functional
currency of Pounds Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand ('£°000'), except when otherwise stated

The Company applied all standards and interpretations issued by the |ASB that were effective as of 31 July 2016 The accounting palicies set out below have
unless otherwise stated been applied consistently to all pertods presented in these financlal statements

Going concern

For reasons noted on page 66 the financial information has been prepared on the going concern basls, which assumes that the Company will cortinue 1o be
able te meet s liabilitles as they fall due for the foreseeable future being a pened of at least twelve months from the date of signing these financlal statements
Al the dale of approving the financial statements, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances that could lead to the Company being unable to settle
commitments as they fall due during the twelve months from the date of signing these financial statements

1 3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of eshmahon uncertainty

When applying the Company’s accounting policies management must make a number of key judgements involing estimates and assumplions concerning
the future These estimates and Judgements are based on factors considered to be relevant including historical experience that may differ significantly from
the actual outcome The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimatlon uncertalnty at the balance sheet date that have a significant
risk of causing a matenial adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabifities within the next financlal year include

SJUWALES [ROUEULY

Revenus cut off

The Company's management information systems are configured to recognise revenue upon notfication of dispatch from the supplier or distributor which

In nstances especially regarding physical shipments may not be aligned to when the fisks and rewards of ownership have been transferred Under IFRS the
point of recognition on physical shipments shoutd be aligned to the date of delivery, not dispatch Management therefore performs an exercise to capture
items that may have been dispatched fram distnbutor but not delivered in the financial year, and subsequently defers the recognition of revenue into the
following year The exercise applied includes several assumptions which management believes are reasonable, In order to Identify items that fit the criterla
for deferral Separately management reviews indivicual large deals on a case by case basis which reduces the opportunity for error

1 4 Adoption of new and revised standards

At the date of authorisatlon of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations which have not been applled In these financial
statements were [n issue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

+ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers see below

« IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

« IFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based Payments

« 1AS12 (Amendments) Recogniton of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
« |AS 7 (Amendments} Statement of Cash Flows

+ IFRS 16 Leases

- Annual Improvemenis (2012-2014 Cycle)

- |AS 16 and IAS 38 {Amendment) Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisatlon
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 31 July 2016

1 Accounting policies continued

1 4 Adoption of new and revised standards continued

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Directors anticipate that the adogtion of these standards and interpretations in future periods will have no materal impact on the financlal statements
of the Company, except for

IFRS 15 was 1ssued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step mode! to account for revenue anising fram contracts with custeners Under IFRS 15 revenue 1s
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects ta be entitled in exchange for transferming goods or services to a customer
The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition reguirements under IFRS Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective application 1s required for anrual periods beginming on or after 1 January 2018 Early adoption 1s permitted

IFRS 15 may have an impact on the Company's revenue recognition policies and disclosures, however, until management’s detalled review has been
completed It 1s not practicable to provide detatls of the impact that its adoption will have on the Company s financiat statements

IFRS 16 Leases

Replacing IAS 77, IFRS 16 was Issued In January 206 and applies to annual reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 IFRS 16 specifies how to
recognise, measure, present and disclose leases The standard provides & single lessee accounting model, requinng lessees to recogmise assets and liabiities
for all leases with the exception of those with a lease term of less than twelve months or the underlying asset has a low value

Softcat 1s a lessee on iease arrangements for all its offices with the exception of its head office in Marlow, for which it owns the freehold These leases
typically have a five-year lease term and therefore it 1s expected that following adoption of IFRS 16, Softcat would recognise both an asset and a llabilty
on its Statement of Financial Position relating to these leases

1 5 Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits wili flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideratlon received or recervable taking into account contractually defined terms of payment
and excluding taxes and duty The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific critena in order te determine if it 1s acting as principal or agent
The following specific reccgnibion criteria must also be mel before revenue 1s recognised

Sale of goods

The Company sells hardware and software that 1s sourced from and delivered by a number of suppliers Revenue from the sale of these goods 1s recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed 1o the buyer usually on delivery of the goods

The Company has primary responsibility for the acceptability of goods sold, 1s exposed to inventary risk duning the delivery periad, establishes the selling
price itseff and bears the customer’s credit rsk 1t 1s therefore considered to be acting as principal in these sales and revenue s measured using the price
charged to the customer, excluding sales tax

Provision of services

The Company also provides datacentre, cloud and software services Revenue in respect of these services Is recognised when the service has been
satisfactorily completed or 1n ine with the stage of completed work It (s measured at either the sales prices excluding sales taxes, or by reference to the
costs Incurred as a proportion of the total estimated costs of the contract

In addibion, the Company sells services provided by third parties Revenue for services provided by third parties 15 recogmsed at the point of sale to the
customer as the Company has no ongoing obligations The Company establishes the selling price and s exposed to customer credst nisk on this revenue
and therefore considers ltself to be acting as principal, measuring revenue as the price charged to the customer, excluding sales tax

interest income

Interest income I1s accrued on a ttme basis by referance to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate { EIR’) applicable EIR 15 the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected Iife of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability interest income 1$ ncluded in finance income In the Income statement
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1 Accounting policies continued

1 6 Cost of sales

The Company recognises cost of sales at the pomnt in which it recognises revenue as explained above Cost of sales predominantly relates to the cost of goods
and services purchased from suppliers and then sold to customers In addition to these costs the following elements are also included within cost of sales

Rebates
Included within cost of sales are rebates receved from commercial pariners Further details are provided on rebates in 17, below

Managed service infrastructure costs

The Company operates its own network operating centre which facilitates the selling of Softcat hosted managed services The costs of maintaining this
ability mclude, but are not Imited to, the rental of space in data warehouses, energy and hicensing costs These costs represent the cost of sale of selling
hosted managed service solutions and are included within cost of safes

Marketing costs and related credits

The Company carnes out numerous training programmes, activities and schemes that aim to educate Its sale force and internally promote the products the
business resells These actvibies are often funded by the Company's partners Both the cost of the programmes borne by the Company and the credits
receved, where apphcable, are included within cost of sales

Settlement discounts
Through the nosmal course of business the Company receives credits from distributors and suppliers for the prompt settlement of invoices Soficat recogmises
these discounts In cost of sales as they are recagmised as a reduction in the cost of goods sold

1 7 Rebates

Rebates fram suppliers are accounted for i the penod in which they are earned and are based on commercial agreements with supphers Rebates earned
are mainly sates volume related and are generally short ferm in nature with rebate earned but not yet received typically relating to the preceding quarter’s
tracing Rebate income 15 recogmsed In cost of sales in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and rebate earned but not yet
recerved 1s included within accrued income in the Statement of Financial Position

SIUBLISIES [RIURYIY

1 8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than freehold land 15 stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and/or mpairment losses If any if the costs
of certaln components of an item of property, ptant and equipment are significant in relation to the total cost of the Item, they are accounted for and
depreciated separately Depreciation Is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful Ife, as follows

Freehold bullcings 50 years straight line

Buillding improvements remaining period of lease — ten years straight line
Computer equipment three—five years straight ine

Fixtures fittlngs and equipment SIX years straight line

Motor vehicles three years straight ine

Land 1s not depreciated

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when ne future economic benefits are
expected 10 anse from the continued use of the assel Any gain or loss ansing on ihe dispesat or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and i1s recogmsed in the income statement when the
asset 15 derecognised

Building smprovements relate to expenditure on improving both lessehold property and the freehold property of Solar House in Marlow Improvements to
Solar House are depreciated over a ten-year penod, which represents therr useful Iife Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their useful ife which
is the lesser of the remaining length of the lease or ten years

The residual values useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed for reasonableness at each finandial year end and adjusted for prospectively If appropriate
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 31 July 2016

1 Accounting policies continued

1 9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on itial recogmition at cost Following iitial recognition, intangeble assets are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated tmpalrment losses, if any Intangible assets with a finite useful life are assessed for impairment whenever there 1s an Indication that the
intangible asset may be Impaired Amortisation Is provided for at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful fife as follows

Computer software three—five years straight line

The amortisation expense on intanglble assets with finite lives is recognised in the Income statement in the expense category consistent with the function of
the intangible assets The amoruisation perod and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting penod Gains or losses ansing
from derecognition of an intanglble asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cairying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the income statement when the asset s derecognised

110 Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on a straight-line basis over the lease term even if payments are not made on such
a hasls Onerous property leases are prowided for In the Statement of Financlal Position and represent the present value of the onerous element of an
operating lease This anses when the Company ceases to use premises and they are left vacant to the end of the lease

At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether such an arrangement 1s or contains a lease At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement
that comans a lease the Company separates payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other
elements on the basis of therr relative fair values

1 11 Inventories
Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value is the estimated selling pnce in the ordinary course of business
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated casts to sell

Inventones are predominantly goods in transit and rtems for which a customer purchase order has been recewed but the goods have yet to be delivered
to the customer

1 12 Financial instruments
Financial assets

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and trade other recelvables All financial assets are recognised when the Company
becomes party to the contraciual provisions of the mstrument

1) Trade recevables
Trade recewvables are recognised and carried at onginal invoice amount iess prowision for impairment

A provision for impairment of trade recewables is established when there 15 objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according te the original terms of recelvables The amount of the provislon is determined as the difference between the asset s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows and is recognised in the Income statement in adminisirative expenses

u) Cash and cash equrvalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, calt depostts and bank overdrafts

Financial habihiies
Finandial liabilibes are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered inte The Company s financial liabllities comprise trade
and other payables All financial llabllities are recognised initlally at their falr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

1} Trade payobles
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

1 13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, call deposits and bank overdrafis
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1 Accounting policies continved

1 14 Pensions

The pension costs charged 1n the financial statements represent the contributions payable by the Company during the year on the defined centribution pension
scheme The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Company in an independently administered fund The amounts charged te the income
statement represent the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting peniod and represents the full extent of the Company s liability

1 15 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitles in the financial statements
and the cormesponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the batance sheet liabibty method Deferred tax habilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that itis probable that taxable profits wil
be available agalnst which deductible temporary differences can be utillsed Such assets and habillties are not recognised If the temporary difference anses
from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than 1 a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax
profit nor the accounting proft

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or past of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the hability 1s settled ar the asset 15 realised Deferred tax s charged
or cregited in the ncome statement except when It relates to tems charged or crediied directly to eguity in whuch case the deferred tax 15 aiso dealt with
In equity

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current lax assets against current tax abifities and when they
relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authorty and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabihties

1 16 Current taxation

Current income tax assets and lisbilities are measured at the amount expected to De recovered from or paid o the taxat:on authonties The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countnies where the Company operates
and generates taxable :ncome

Current income tax relating to items recogrised directly In equity 1s recegnised in equity and not in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income Management penodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate

1 17 Foreign currency translahon
Monetary assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pounds Sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date Transactions In foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction Al differences are taken 1o the income statement

1 18 Share-based payments
During the year the Company operated the foliowing equity-settled share option schemes

Company Share Ophion Plan ('CSOP’)

The Company Share Option Plan provides share options for nominated employees The purchase price 1s set at a mid-market price on the date of grant
The CSOP operates both approved and unapproved schemes with vesting dependent on continued employment with the Company Options typically vest
between one and three years and lapse after ten years from the date of grant

The farr value of the CSOP options 1s estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model and 1s charged as an expense in the income statement
over the vesting penod with a corresponding increase in equity

Share Incentive Plan {'SIP’)

The Company operates a Share Incentive Plan for employees who were awarded free shares following the initial public offering in November 2015 Shares
were allocated to employees on the basis of iength of service Free shares awarded to an employee under the SIP are subject to a holding period ending not
earlier than the third anniversary and not later than the fifth anniversary of the date on which beneficial interest in the relevant ardinary shares 1s conferred
by the SIP Trustee to the employee

The fair value of the SIP shares 1s determined by the share price at date of grant on 9 December 2015, and the number of shares expected to be transferred
following the three-year vesting peniod The assumption used for expected leavers within three years from the date of award has been calculated with
reference 1o histoncal employee retention rates The resulting fair value charge 1s charged as an expense in the income statement over the vesting peniod
with a corresponding increase In equity
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 31 July 2016

1 Accounting policies continved

1 18 Share-based payments continued

Long Term Incentive Flan ('LTIP’)

Detaits in relation to the Softcat Long Term Incentive Plan 2015 awards to Executive Directors are included in the Directors’ Remunerauon Report on page 45

The awards will only vest and become exercisable upon achievement of performance targets, linked to earmungs per share and total shareholder return, as
well as being conditional upon continued employment with the Company The fair value is measured using a suitable valuation model where appropriate
Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of LTIP shares expected to vest at each reporting date so that, ultimately, the
cumulative amount recogmsed over the vesting period 1s based on the number of LTIP shares that will eventually vest Market vesting conditions are factored
into the fair value of the LTIP shares granted The cumulative expense 15 not adjusted for farlure to meet a market vesting condition The resulting fair value
charge Is charged as an expense In the income statement over the vesting period with a corresponding Increase in equity

Employee Benefit Trust and SIP trust
The Company operates an Employee Benefit Trust and a SIP trust for the benefit of eligible employees The Company recognises the assets and labilities of
these trusts as its own until such assets hetd vest unconditionally with identifted benefictaries The Company meets all costs incurred by the trusts

1 19 Company accounts ‘
Softcat pic Is a single entity with no subsidiary undertakings The Employee Benefit and SIP trusts, which hold shares on behalf of employees, are not
consolidated within the results of Softcat plc and nstead are treated as extensions of the Company

1 20 Excephtional tems
ltems that are materal in size and unusual in nature are included within operating profit and disclosed separately in the income statement The separate
reporting of these stems helps 1o provide a more accurate indication of the underlying business performance

2 Segmental information

The information reported to the Company's Chief Executive Officer who is considered to be the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance 1s based wholly on the overall activities of the Company The Company has therefore deiermined that it has only
one reportable segment under IFRS 8 which is that of value-added IT reseller and IT infrastructure selutions provider’ The Company's revenue and results
and assets for this one reportable segment can be determined by reference to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and
Statement of Financial Position An analysis of revenues by product which form one reportable segment, 1s set out below

2016 2015
Revenue by type £000 £ 000
Software 319978 287 469
Hardware 250 692 223 845
Services 101,681 84,770

672 351 596,084

The total revenue for the Company for the year has been denved from its pnincipal actwity as an IT reseller Substantially all of this revenue relates to trading
undertaken in the United Kingdom
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3 Operating profit

2016 2015
Operating profit 15 stated aftes charging 000 000
Depreciation of tangibte assets 1796 1794
Amortisation of intangible assets 327 353
Operating fease rentals 520 501
Foreign exchange loss 262 234
Exceptional items 3673 999
Inventories expensed in the year 228,215 204,941
Auditor’s remuneration
Fees payable for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 150 45
Total for statutory audit services 150 45
Taxation advisory services 18 5
Other non-audit services 394 242
Total for non-audit services 412 247
Other non-audit services pnmanly represent professional fees related to the nstial public offering
4 Exceptional items
2015 2015
£000 £000
IPC costs 3673 999
All IPO costs incurred directly relate to the Company s listing on the London Stock Exchange in November 2015
5 Finance income
2016 2015
£000 £000
Bank interest 213 85

Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

For the year ended 31 July 2016

4 Income tax
The major components of the income tax expense for the years ended 31 July 2016 and 31 July 2015 are

2016 2015
£000 £000
Statement of profit or loss
Current income tax charge in the year 9,179 8,970
Adjustment in respect of current income tax m previous years N (6)
Total current income tax charge 9172 8 964
Deferred tax
Current year 153 {274)
Adjustment i respect of previous penods 97 (34)
Effect of changes In tax rates 17 4
Defarred tax charge 73 {(304)
Total tax charge 9,245 8,660
Reconakhiation of total tax charge
Reconciltation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by the Company’s domestic tax rate for 2016 and 2015
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 42,403 39,777
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by standard rate of UK corporation tax of 20 00% (2015 20 67%} 8481 8,220
Effects of
Non-deductible expenses 851 313
Adjustment to previous penods {104) (6)
Stock option differences - 158
Deferred tax prior year adjustment — {34)
Deferred tax rate changes 17 9
764 440
Income tax charge reported In the profit or loss 9245 8660

in the year ended 31 July 2016, £475,0C0 of current tax was credited to equity

Non-deductible expenses in the year predominantly relate to the legal and accountancy costs assoclated with the initial public offering

Changes affeching the future tax charge

In the FY15 Summer Budget the Chancellor announced a further reduction o ihe corporation tax rate to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 8% from 1Apnl 2020

These rates were substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the asset is realised or the hability settled,

based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and therefore these have been measured at 19%
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7 Dividends

2016 2015
£000 £000

Declared and paid during the year, prior to IPO ond share recrganisation
Ordinary dividend on ordinary shares 36,765 6622
Qrdnary dwvidend on ‘MR’ shares 864 240
Ordinary dvidend on ‘A ordinary shares 2,469 449
40098 7311

Daclared and paid during the year, post IPO and share reorganisation

Ordinary dividend on ordinary shares 3,355 —
43 453 731
Adjustment in respect of prior period - (13)
43,453 7,298

The dwidends paid 1n the six months ended 31 January 2016 were paid prior to the reorganisation of share capital, see note 16, and therefore are shown as

dwidends split between the pre-rearganisation share classes

Anintenm dvidend of 170p per share, amounting to a total dividend of £3 36m was paid on 29 Apnl 2016 to those on the share register on i Apnl 2016

The Board recommends a final dividend of 3 6p per ordinary share and a speclal dividend of 14 2p per ordinasy share to be pald on 16 December 2016 to all
ordinary shareholders who were on the register of members at the close of business on 18 Novernber 2016 Shareholders will be asked to approve the final

and special divdends at the AGM on 8 December 2016

8 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Fixtures

land and Bullding Computer fitings and Motor

buildings Improvements qulp gulpment vehicles Total

£000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 August 2014 2,649 1465 4839 824 180 9,957
Additsons - 283 1,700 166 68 2217
Disposals - (20} - (45) {14) {79
AL31 July 2015 2649 1,728 6,539 945 234 12 095
Additions — 198 768 190 34 1,180
Disposals - - - - - -
At 31 July 2016 2649 1926 7,307 1135 268 13,285
Depreaation
At 1 August 2014 50 237 2813 334 116 3,350
On disposals - (4 - (28} {14) {46)
Charge for the year 25 168 1412 148 41 1794
At 371 July 2015 75 401 4025 454 143 5,088
On disposals - - — - - —
Charge for the year 25 261 1287 170 53 1,796
At 31 July 2016 100 662 5312 624 196 6 894
Net book value
At 31 July 2016 2549 1,264 1.995 511 72 6,391
At 31 July 2015 2574 1,327 2514 491 9 6,997

Freehold land amounting to £14m {2015 £1 4m) has not been depreciated
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 31 July 2016

9 Intangible assets

Computer
software
£000
Cost
At 1 August 2014 888
Additions 288
At 31 July 2015 1,176
Additions 536
At 31 July 2016 1,712
Amortisation
At 1 August 204 365
Charge for the year 353
At 31 July 2015 718
Charge for the year 327
At 31 July 2016 1045
Met book value
At 31 July 2016 667
At 31 July 2015 458
The amortisation of intangible assets 1s included in admintsirative expenses within the income staiement See note 3
Intangible assets, consisting entirely of non-Integral computer software assets, are amortlsed over their estimated useful lives of three to five years
10 Inventories
016 2015
£000 £000
Finished goods and goods for resale 4611 2652
The amount of any write down of Inventory recogrused as an expense n the year was tnil (2035 L)
11 Trade and other receivables
2016 2015
£000 £000
Trade and other recewvables 123833 112,943
Prowision agamst receivables {1,265) (1008}
Net trade recewables 122,568 111,935
Called up share capital not paid - 1,783
Other debtors 59 49
Prepayments 4,764 3785
Accrued income 5,396 4,400

132,787 121,952

Trade recevables do not carry interest The average credit penod on sale of goods 1s 44 days {2015 46 days)
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11 Trade and other receivables continved

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recewvables approximates to their fair value

The ageing profile of trade receivables was as fotlows

Related Related
2016 provision Net 205 provision Net
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000
Current 88,326 (434) 87,892 74,802 {187) 74,705
1-30 days 27.831 (142) 27 68% 30236 (76} 30,160
31-60 days 5,175 {68) 5107 4046 (38) 4,008
61-90 days 1,521 {45) 1,476 2,057 {9) 2,048
Over 90 days 980 {576} 404 17112 {698) 1,014
Total due 123,833 (1,265} 122,568 112,943 {1008) 111,935

The Company provides against its trade recevables where there are serous doubts and objective ewdence

as to future recoverability based on prior

expenience on assessment of the current economic climate and on the length of time that the recelvable has been overdue Further details on how the

Company manages its credit risk can be found in note 20

Mavement in the provision for trade recewvables was as follows

016 2015
£000 £000
Balance at beginning of year 1008 1674
Increase for trade receivables regarded as potentially uncollectable 1,223 472
Decrease In provision for trade receivables recavered, or written off, during the year (966) {1,138}
Balance at end of year 1,265 1008
See note 20 for details on how the Company approaches its exposure to credit nsk
The Company does not hold collateral as securnity
12 Trade and other payables
2016 2015
£000 £000
Trade payables 67759 71,213
Qtrer taxes and social secunty 11778 9,209
Accruals 24,000 23,361
Deferred income 11,990 4270

115,527 108,053

The Directors consider that the carryimg amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 30 days (2015 35 days)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 31 July 2016

13 Cash at bank and in hand

2016 015
£000 £.000
Cash at bank and i hand 62,361 74 642

Cash and cash equlvalents comprise cash at bank and cash In hand Cash at bank earns Interest at floating rates based on dally bank deposit rates All cash
held 15 accessible and 15 not restricted for any penod of time

14 Deferred tax
The deferred tax asset 1s made up as follows

2016 2015
£000 £000
Accelerated captial allowances 44 90
Share-based payments (214} (625)
Other timing differences {256) (143)
Net deferred tax assets {426) 678)
2016 2015
£000 £000

Reconciicheon of deferred tax asset
Balance at 31 July 2015 (PY 31 July 2014) (678) (535)
Adjustment in respect of previous years {97) (33)
Profid and loss account 169 271)
Charge 10 equity 180 161
Balance at 31 July 2016 (PY 31 July 2015} 426} (678}

The Company recognises all deferred tax movements in the year within the income statement, except for £180,000 (2015 £161,000} charged to equity in
relation to deferred tax movements on share based payments

The Company offsets tax assets and fiabllitles If and only If It has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax llabillties and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities relate to sncome taxes fevied by the same tax authority

15 Pension and other post-retirement benefit commitments
Defined contribution pension scheme
The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme The assets of the scheme are hek separately from those of the Company in an independently

administered fund The pension cost charge represents contnbutions payable by the Company to the fund At the year end pension coninbutions of £124,759
(2015 £183,604) were outstanding

2016 2015
£ 000 1000
Contnbutions payable by the Company for the year 657 554
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16 Share capital

075
£000
Authonsed
Pre-reorganisation
Crdinary shares of 1p each 112
‘MR’ shares of 1p each 2
‘X ordinary shares of 1p each 6
120
Limits on authorised share capital were removed on re-registration as a public mited company
2016 2015
£000 £000
Allotted and called vp
Pre-reorganisation
Ordinary shares of 1p each 90
‘MR’ shares of 1p each 2
‘& ordinary shares of 1p each 6
98

Post-reorganisation
Ordinary shares of 0 05p each 99
Deferred shares’ of 0 01p each —

99

Note
1 At 31 July 2016 deferred shares had an aggregate nominal value of £186 33
Share reorganisation

0On 12 November 2015, pursuant to special resolutions of the Company and conditiona! upen admission to the official list of the FCA (which took place on
18 November 2015}, it was resolved that

. 188,500 MR’ shares of £0 01 each be redesignated as ordinary shares of £0 01 each and thesr nghts vaned accordingly

« 588,322 ‘A ordinary shares of £0 01 each be redesignated as ordinary shares of £0 01 each and their nights vaned accordingly,
«+ 18,933 ‘A ordinary shares of £0 0t each be redesignated as deferred shares of £0 01 each and

« each ordinary share of £0 01 be sub-divided into 20 ordinary shares of £0 0005 each

Employee Benefit Trust
In the penod from 1 August 2015 to 12 November 2015 4 237740 share options were exercised with 2,538,520 shares satisfied from existing shares held
the EBT The value of shares exercised, and satisfied by the EBT, was £463 280

Share Incenhive Plan Trust

Follawing both the above reorganisation and initial public offering 629 883 free shares were 1ssued to employees in a share Issue for nd consideration
These shares are held in the SIP Trust untif the performance conditions are met which require the employee to remain an emgloyee for a perod of three
years from issue The SIP Trust also holds shares on behalf of emplayees who have chosen o participate in the voluntary partnership share purchase
programme as part of the SIP

n

5 000 shares 1ssued on 8 December 2014 under the Deferred Purchase Scheme and subsequently forfeited on 3t August 2015 were cancelled duning the year

No 1ssued ordinary shares of 0 0005p each were unpaid at 31 July 2016 (2015 5,060,000 unpaid)

Al ordinary shares rank par passu in all respects
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 31 July 2016

17 Earnings per share

2016 2015
Pence Pence
Earnings per share
Basic 169 163
Driuted 169 160
Ad|usted earnings per share
Basic 192 i67
Diuted 191 165
The calculation of the basic and adjusted earnings per share and diluted earnings per share 1s based on the following data
2016 2015
£000 £000
Earnings
Earnings for the purposes of earnings per share being profit for the year 33,158 3117
Adjusted earnings
Profit for the year 33,158 31117
Exceplional costs 3,673 999
Share-based payment charge 888 5
Tax effect of adjusting 1tems (97) (57)
Earnings for the purposes of adjusted earnings per share 37,622 32,064
The weighted average number of shares 1s given below
0186 2015
000 000
Number of shares used for basic earmings per share 196,040 191,540
Number of shares deemed to be 1ssued at nil consideration following exercise of share options 696 3,228
Number of shares used for diluted earnings per share 196 736 194,768

Adjusted earnings per share represents basic earmings per share adjusted for the impact of non-recurring items and share-based payment expense The Board
uses this measure as it believes it 1s more representative of underlying performance

18 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconcihahon of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2016 2015
£000 £ 000
Operating profit 42,190 39582
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 1796 1,794
Amortisation of ntangibles 327 353
{Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets {9 28
Cost of equity-settled employee share schemes 572 5
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital 44,876 41762
{Increase)/decrease in inventory {1,961) 1,830
Increase In debtors (12 608} (22,425)
Increase In creditors 7474 33,563
Cash generated from operations 37,7814 54,730
Income taxes paid (7 856) (7 319)
Net cash from operating activities 29925 47 411
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19 Financial commitments
Operahing leasas
At 31 July 2016 operating leases represent short-term leases for office space in Marlow, London, Manchester, Bristol, Leeds and Glasgow

Future mintmum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases for office buildings are as folfows

Office bulldings
2018 2015
£000 £000
Operating lease payments due
Within one year 585 597
Between two and five years 868 1282
In over five years - —
1,453 1879

20 Financial instruments and financial risk management

The Company’s principat financial abilities compnse trade and othes payables The pnmary purpese of these financial lamilities 1s to finance the Company's
operations The Company has trade and other recevables and cash that dernive directly from its operations

Financial assets
The financia! assets of the Company were as follows

2015 7015

£000 £000

Cash at bank and n hand 62 361 74,642
Trade and other recevables 132787 121,952

195 148 196 594

The Directors consider that the carrying amount for all financial assets approximates to thelr fair vatue

Finoncial liabibihes
The financial Habilities of the Company were as fallows

2016 2015

£000 £000
Trade payables {67,759} (712%3)
Accruals {24,000 {23,361)

(91,758  (94.574)

The Directars consider that the carrying amount for all financial llabilltles approximates to thelr fair value

Financial risk management

The Company 15 exposed to interest rate nsk, foreign currency nisk, credit nsk and liquidry nsk The Company's senior management oversees the management
of these nisks and ensures that the Company's financial risk taking is governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identfied
measured and managed in accordance with Company policies and Company risk appetite

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees the policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below

Interest rate nsk

Interest rate risk fs the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates At the
year end the Company has no borrowings and therefore the exposure to interest rate nisk is inuited to the rates receved as mterest income on cash deposits
The Company accepts the nsk of losing interest on deposits due to interest rate reductions Due to the imited exposure to interest rate nsk no sensitmty
analysis has been prepared

Foreign currency risk

The Company 1s exposed to foreign currency rnsk when dealing with customers and suppliers who wish 1o be billed 1n a currency other than Pounds Sterling
As the vast majonity of transactons are with UK customers and are denoninated in Pounds Sterding, the Directors consider this foreign curiency nisk 1o be
small and do not hedge this risk due to the hmited exposure The level of foreign currency transactions 1s momitored closely to ensure that the level of
exposure 15 manageable Due to the imited exposure to currency nisk no sensitevity analysis has been prepared
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20 Financial instruments and financial risk management continued

Finanaal risk management continued

Cradit nsk

Credit nisk is the nisk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial Instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss The Company
is exposed to credit nisk from Its operating activities {primarily for trade receivables) and from lis financing activities including deposits with banks and
financial institutrons

Trade receivables

Credit nsk from trade recewables 1s managed in accordance with the Company's established policy, procedures and contro! refating to customer credil nsk
management A customer s credil quality is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and Individuat credit limits are defined in accordance
with this assessment

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly morutored At 31 July 2016, the Company had 871 accounts {2015 853) that owed the Company more than
£25 000 each These accounts accounted for approximately 14% {2015 14%) of total customers and 82% (2015 81%) of the total value of amounts recevable
There were 250 customers {2015 218 customers) with balances greater than £100,000 accounting for just over 4% (2015 4%) of the total number of recevable
accounts and 58% {2015 54%) of the total value of amounts receivable

The requirement for impairment 1s analysed at each reporting date The calculation is based on actual incurred histoncal data The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of financlal assets The Company does not hold collateral as securlty The Company evaluates
the concentration of nisk with respect to trade receivables as low as there is limited rellance on single or a few, customers, Instead, sales are typically smalk
In size but Jarge In volume as are the number of customers This 1s dlustrated by the fact that no more than 3% of receivables are due from any one customer
at the year end

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk fram cash balances with banks and financial institutions Is managed In accordance with Company policy The Company has significant cash reserves
which are accessible immediately and without restrction Credit nsk with respect to cash deposits 1s managed by carefully selecting the institutions with
which cash 15 deposiied and spreading its deposits across more than one such institution to ease concentration fisk

Liquidity nsk

The Company generates positive cash flows from operating aclivitles and these fund short-term working capltal requirements The Company aims to maintain
significant cash reserves and none of its cash reserves are subject to restrictions Access to cash is not restricted and could ali be drawn upen immediately
If so required The Board carefully monitors the levels of cash deposits and is comfortable that for normal operating requirements no external borrowings
are currently required

The following table detalls the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for Tts financial llabilities based on undiscounted contractual payments

Within 1 year 11to 2 years 210 5 years Over 5 years Totat
£000 £ 000 cON £000 £ 000

2016
Trade payables {67.759} - - - 67,759
Accroals (24 000) - —_ - {24 000}
(91,759} - - - {91 759)

2015
Trade payables (71,213} — - - {71213
Accruals {23361) - - — {23,361)
{94.574) - - - (94,574)

in both the current year and the prior year, materlally all of the financlal liabllitles above have a contractual settlement date of between zero and three months

Capital sk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while also maximising the operating potential of the business
The capital structure of the Company consists of equity atinbutabte to equity holders of the Company, compnising 1ssued capital, reserves and retaned
earnings as disclosed in the Company Statement of Changes in Equity The Company 15 not subject to externally imposed capita! requirements

21 Capital commitments
At 31 Juty 2016 the Company had £l capital commitments {2015 £mil)
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22 Directors’ remuneration

2016 2015

£000 £000

Remuneration for qualifying services V277 1,179
Company pension contributions to defined contribution schemes ] 42
1283 1224

During the year ended 31 Juty 2016 the Directors of the Company were awarded a total of 350 000 LTIP shares {2015 Enil) a1 an average exeraise price of
£l {2015 £k and 1,505 free shares (2015 nil) at a market price of £3 00 (2015 £nil) No further share options wese 1ssued to Drectors (2015 200 000)

In the year ended 31 July 2016 the Directors of the Company exercised 200 000 {2015 300 000} share options with an exercise pnice of £106 (2015 £0 30}
and forfeited 944,280 options (2015 nll) with an exercise price of £106 (2015 Lnil)

The number of Directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes amounted to one {2015 two) The number of Directors
who are entitled to recewve shares under long-term incentive schemes durning the year was two (2015 three)

Gains on share options exercised in the year were £268,200 {2015 £44 250)
Share based payment charges include £248 280 (2015 £3104} in respect of Directors

Remuneration disciosed above includes the following amounts paid 1o the highest paid Director

2016 2015

£000 £000

Remuneration for qualifying services 559 324
Company pension contributions to defined contribution schemes — 38
559 362

23 Employees

Number of employees

In the current year management has refined how employees are categorised, as shown below, to align to internal repoerting Prior year numbers have been
restated accordingly The average monthly number of employees (Including Directors) durning the year was

2015
2016 Number
Nurmnber as restated
Sales 616 500
Services 114 97
Admunistration 143 125
873 722

Employment costs
2016 2015
£000 £000
Wages and salarnes 26,906 21,289
Sooial security costs 6467 5200
Other pension costs 692 554
Share cption charge 888 )
34953 217,048
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 31 July 2016

24 Share option schemes
The Company operates a CSOP for nominated employees, and an LTIP for Executive Directors The Company also operates a SIP for emplayees who received
free shares In the year and for those that have decided to participate in the partnership shares programme

The Company recognised the following expenses related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions

2018 2015
£000 £000
csep 79 5
Lilp 199 —
SIP *free shares’ scheme 254 -
572 5
Employer's National Insurance contributions payable on all schemes 316 —
888 5

All options vest at the end of the vesting penod relating to that option or on the occurrence of a contingent event Thisincludes substantial sale ar substantial
business asset sale If the options remain unexercised afier a perod of ten years from the date of grant the options expire Furthermore, the vesting of
these share options is dependent on continued employment

Follow:ng the public isting of shares in the Company, share options become readity convertibe assets for which the Company 1s hable for employer's National
Insurance contnbutions The Company accrues for National insurance contnibubions on a straight-ine basis from the date of award to the vesting date

Company Share Option Plan {{CSOP’)

The CSOP provides share options for nominated employees The purchase price is set at a mid-market price on the date of grant This 1s an approved scheme
and vesting 1s unconditional Options typically vest between one and three years and lapse after ten years from the date of grant Options are forfelted if the
employee leaves the Company before the options vest

At 31 July 2016, share options outstanding under the CSOP were as follows

No of shares No of shares
under aptions under optlons

asat 45 at
QOptlon term {vesting date to expiry) Exercise price 31 July 2018 31 July 2015
June 2008 to May 2016 £0 06 — 72 240
October 2009 to July 2016 £0 07 - 82,200
June 2013 to May 2021 £018 — 3595620
July 2016 to July 2024 £105 - 944 280
June 2047 to June 2024 £0 44 - 200,000
March 2017 to March 2025 £105 - 200000
August 2016 1o August 2025 £105 200000 -
August 2017 to August 2025 £105 300 000 -
Total 500,000 5,094 340

Ali CSOP share options outstanding at the year end are in respect of unapproved schemes The fair value of the CSOP options granted was calculated using
the Black-Scholes model, incorporating relevant assumptions for weighted average share price weighted average exeraise price expected volatility, expecied
dwidend yield, nsk-free interest rate and share option term The resultant fair value was then spread over the relevant performance period for each tranche of
share options The fair value of CSOP options granted in the year 1s measured by use of the Black-Scholes option pricing modet using the following assumptions

2016

CSOP

Share price £106
Weighted average exerase price at grant date €105
Expected dmvidend yield 471%
Risk-free interest rate 050%
Expected volatility 40 00%
Term 10 years

Dunng the year 500,000 {2015 200,000) CSOP options were granted These shares had an exercise pce of £105 at the date of grant, 25 August 2015, and
a performance penod of between one ang two years
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24 Share opiion schemes continued

Company Share Option Plan {{CSOP’) continued

The expecied life used in the model has been adjusted based on management s besl estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, restrictions and behavioural
constderayions at the date of granting the options

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histonicat volatlity of the Company’s share prce over the term commensurate with the expected term
immediately prior to the date of grant

Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP')
Detals in relation to the Softcat Long Term Incentive Plan 2015 awards to Executive Directars are included tn the Directors’ Remuneration report on page 45
The awards wilt vest in 2018 upen achievement of certain performance targets and are conditional upon contmued employment

During the year 350 000 {2015 nil) share options related to LTiP schemes were issued to two Executive Directors at mil exescise price with a performance
period of three years The performance condsuons on these awards include the Executve Director s continued employment at the date of vesting and satisfaction
of the performance condiians which are inked to earnings per share and total shareholder return over the vesting penod These shares have been valued
at the market price at date of grant and management is comfortable that the value established Is not materially different from a more complex approach
Management assumes these LTIPs will vest in full with the charge to the income statement spread over the vesting peniod with a corresponding entry n equity

Share Incentive Plan {'SIP’)

The Company operates a SIP for employees who were awarded free shares following the initlal public offering In November 2015 Shares were alocated 1o
employees on the basis of length of service Free shares awarded to an employee under the SIP are subject 1o a holding penod ending nat earher than the
third anniversary and not later than the fifth anniversary of the date on which beneficial interest In the relevant ordinary shares is canferred by the SIP
Trustee to the employee

Histarical employee attrition Jates have been used to calculate the expected number of shares expected to vest The resulting income statement charge
is spread over the three-year vesting perlod with a corresponding entry in equity

On 11 December 2015 629,883 {2015 nil) free shares were granted 10 employees tn additron, all employeas are eligible to paricipate in a voluntary
parinership share purchase programme as part of the SIP

All share-based payment arrangements
The number and weighted average exeraise pnice of share options for all share-based payment arrangements are as follows

No of shares No of shares

Weighted under aptions Weighted under options

average asat average asat

exercise price 3t July 216 exercise price 31 July 2015

Qutstanding at 1 August 5,094 340 10,486,400
Granted durning the year £034 1567562 £105 200,000
Forferted during the year £101 {894 979) 0on {87.680)
Exercised during the year €023 {4237,740) £019 (5504 380)
Outstanding at 31 July 1,429 183 5,094,340
Exerclsable at 31 July - 3 750,060

The fair value of share options granted In the year was £2,441,725 (2015 £18,600} This 1s split between CSOP options granted of £89,750 (2015 £18,600),
LTIP options of £980 000 (2015 €nil) and free shares granted of £1,371,975 (2015 &Enil}

The weighted average remaiming contractua! lfe of share aptions at the year end was 6 43 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 31 July 2016

25 Post balance sheet events
Dmidend

The Board recommends a final dividend of 3 6p per ardinary share and a speclal dividend of 14 2p per ordinary share to be paid on 16 December 2016 10 all
ordinary shareholders who were on the register of members at the close of business on 18 November 2016 Shareholders wilt be asked to approve the final

and spectal dwvidends at the AGM on 8 December 2016

26 Related party relationships and transactions
Transactions with key management personnel

The remureration of key management personnel which consists of persons who have been deemad to be discharging managenal responsibiities, 15 set out
below In aggregate for each of the categories specified in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures The definition of key management personnel has been refined

In the current year, following the IPO, and the prior year figures have been restated accordingly

2015

2016 as restated

£ 000 £000

Short-term employee benefils 1,656 1179
Post-employment benefils 40 42
1,696 1229

During the year ended 31 July 2016, key management personnel receved a total of mil (2015 5,000) deferred purchase shares and were awarded a total
of 350,000 share options {2015 200 000) at a welghted average exercise price of £nll (2015 £2118) All share oplions issued to key management personnel

in the year were In the form of LTIP awards No LTIP awards were awarded in previous years

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense dunng the reporting period related to key management personnel
Share-based payment charges include £220,989 (2015 £3,104) in respect of key management personnel

Dvidends to Directors

016 2015

£000 £000

P D J Kelly 22170 3899
M J Hellawell 5119 886
C Brown 426 74
B Wallace 180 1
27905 4,870
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